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HOUSE OF THE PEOPLE
Friday, 1st August, 1952.

The House met at a Quarter Past
Eight of the Clock.

[MR. SPEAKER in the Chair)
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

(No Questions: Part I not published.)

FORWARD CONTRACTS
LATION) BILL

(REGU-

The Minister of Commerce and
Industry (Shri T. T. Krishnamachari):
I beg to move for leave to introduce
a Bill to provide for the regulation
of certain matters relating to forward
contracts, the prohibition of options
in goods and for matters connected
therewith.

Mr. Speaker: The question is.

“That leave be granted to in-
troduce a Bill to provide for the
regulation of certain matters re-
lating to forward contracts, the
prohibition of options in goods
and for matters connected there-
with.”

The motion was adopted.

Shri T, T. Krishnamachari: I in-
troduce the Bill.

PREVENTIVE DETENTION (SECOND
AMENDMENT) BILL

The Minister of Home Affairs and
States (Dr Katju): I beg to move:

“That the Bill further to amend
tae  Preventive Detention Act,
1950, as reporied by the Joint
Committee, be taken inio consi-
deration.”

124 PS.D.

4098 A

The House would have noticed that
the Report has appended to it a large
number of dissenting minutes. It has ,
been rather a curious experience for
the Select Committee. The normal
rule has always been that when a Bill
is referred to a Select Committee it
is presumed that the House acquiesc-
es in the principle of the Bill and only
details will be thrashed out. In this
particular case hon. Members who
became members of the Committee
declared on the floor of the House
that they were opposed to the Bill
root and branch. every principle of
the Bill and, therefore. no one would
be surprised that they would not be
satisfied and could not be satisfied.

Mr. Speaker: I would like to
make one point clear here. When
the motion for reference of the
Bill to .the Select Committee was
put to the vote of the House it was
pointed out that certain Members of
the House did not fee! themselves
beund and they had some mental
reservations of their own as regards
the principle of the Bill. I had then
clarified the position that whatever
mental reservations individual Mem-
bers may have. so far as the House
was concerned, by the acceptance of
the motion, the House as a whole was
committed to the princinle of :he Bill
and there would be no question of
reopening any discussion on the prin-
ciple of the Bill. Whatever one.may
have to say as regards the details is
a different matter. The only diffe-
rence in the usual or normal proce-
dure and the present one is that the
House was pleased to give instruc-
tions to the Select Committee not
only to touch on and consider the
clauses of the amending Bill but also
all the sections of th:e original Act.
That does not mean that the prin-
ciple of the Act is open for discussion
today.

Dr. Katju: Sir. I am indebted. and
I hope the House as a whole is in-
debted, to you. Sir, for this_clarifira-
tion of the whole procedure. I was
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only going to suggest in passing that
hon. —Members who went into the
Select Committee on that particular
basis would not be satisfied, could not
be satisfied, by any concession which
might be made. They said openly
that they were opponents of the Bill
and they were there not with a view
to try to improve the Bill in subs-
tance, but only, in so far as they could,
to make it ineffective.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee (Hooghly):
Sir, we must protest against these
remarks. That was not the attitude
of all the Members of the Select Com-
mittee. 1t is not fair to us.

Mr. Speaker: He said some of the
Members.

Shri A. K. Gopalan (Cannanore):
Sir, I have also to make some obser-
vations with regard to the hon.
Minister’s remark. Though on the
floor of the House we said that we
were opposed to the Bill, we
went into the Select Committee with
a view to improve the Bill by sug-
gesting amendments. The main
amendment we suggested was that if
there is to be preventive detention,
it must be used only in emergencies.
It is not opposition to the Bill. Even
though we did not agree to the prin-
ciple of preventive detention, when
we actually went into the Select Com-
wittee we said: “We agree to the
preventive detention: but it must be
used only when there is an emergency”.
Every amendment that we moved in the
Select Committee was an amendment
to the Bill: not with a view to
set aside the whole Bill. 1 am sure
the hon, Minister will accept this and
proceed on that basis.

Dr. Katju: I only wish to say one
thing, so that I may not have to
repeat it again and again. If any
interruption comes from any hon.
Member. I shall take it and consider
it absolutely a sort of presumptive
proof that the cap fits his head.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: (Calcutta
South-East): The cap fits your head
very well.

Mr. Speaker: It is better not to rake
up past controversies.” The hon. the
Home Minister will see that if he
carries on in that attitude, he will
be inviting replies which cannot be
prevented then. 1f he goes on in that
strain I must allow the other side
also to go on. But, with all respect
to the House, the hon. the Home
Minister and the Owpn»osition. I am
of the view that such a procedure,
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though it may satisfy the urge of
some of us to go at each other, is,
on tae whole, neither conducive to the
growth of Parliamentary Govern-
ment nor to tae dignity of the House.
That is the humble view I hold, in
spite of there being scope for diffe-
rences of opinion. On other grounds
also, I should appeal to all hon.
Members, including the Home Minis-
ter, not to go into the previous his-
tory but take the Bill as it is before
the House, as amended by the Joint
Committee, and on the assumption
that Mr. Gopalan and Mr. Chatterjee
and also Dr. Mookerjee......

Dr. S. P, Mookerjee: 1 was not
there.

Mr. Speaker: Anyhow, I take it he
will not differ from me—agree that
preventive detention may be there,
should be there—whatever their men-
tal reservations about it may be, that
it should be so worked that it will not
do any harm or mischief such as they
are afraid of. That is the limited
issue before the House. So, whether
there should be preventive detention
or not is not the question before the
House now.

Dr. Katju: Sir, starting with your
ruling, I shall immediately proceed to
the main points that now arise on this
Bill.

The first important point on which
there has been a difference of opi-
nion is about the duration of the Bill.
The Bill as was originally moved by
me provided that it should remain
in force for two years, namely till
1954. I would have made it 1st of
October 1954. But to summon the
House in the month of August and
September to re-enact the Bill would
be very inconvenient. Therefore, we
put down 31st of December 1954.

In future the House might consider
a Bill like this without any great
climatic inconvenience.

Now in the Select Committee
amendments varied. I would not call
it the extreme right or the extreme
left. An attempt was made to re-
duce the duration to three months,
namely, from 30th of September to
31st of December 1952.- On t:e other
hand, put it in any way you like,
there were amendments that the Bill
might be extended to 1955, 1956, 1957,
and I think somebody also said 1958,
and the Select Committee after a pro-
longed consideration thought that the
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Bill as framed was proper. I suggest
to the House that the Select Com-
mittee has arrived at a proper devi-
sion.

I am not going to cover the ground
once again on tae theoretic discus-
sions and repetitions of principles,
but I will beg the House to consider
the prevailing conditions in the
world, outside India and inside India.
We are living almost in stormy con-
ditions and I say again that the ex-
tension of the Act, if it is proved as
desirable by two years instead of one
year makes really no vital change in
the situation. So far as I can see
and speaking for myself, we cannot
expect that there will be any great
or material change in the world posi-
tion and in the Indian position in the
next coming two years. The House
would always bear in mind that this
is not an imperative Act in this Sense
that it must be acted upon. It all
depends. Even today there are many
States in which there is not a single
person in detention, and we all
hope and pray that the situation
would gradually improve, and if it
does improve, I am sure that no one
would be more happy than the State
authorities and the Central Govern-
ment that the Act should remain on
the statute book without any use
whatsoever in the coming two years.
But we must take a realistic attitude
about this matter and while owing to
a variety of circumstances, the situa-
tion has improved, there are still very
many black clouds in the horizon and
very many danger signals to be scen.
I am not in a position and it would
not be proper for me to say what sort
of information is received from time
to time, almost every week by Gov-
ernment and we cannot possibly be
complacent about it. I do not want
to injure anybody’s feelings. The
House would take it from me that I
am speaking with a full sense of res-
ponsibility about these matters. We
know the philosophies, the ideologies,
the different passions and emotions
which are vprevailing over large
groups of people. and as I said, this
Act is not directed towards any poli-
tical party; it is directed only
against one and no other object,
namely. that the purpnses fnr which
preventive detention is permitted
under the Constitution should be
always keot in view and those onur-
poses should be achieved.

Now in the Select Committee one
attempt was made to restrict the
operation of the Bill. T make no
insinuations of any kind. but the
House would rather be surprised to
hear that under the Constitution
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preventive detention may be used for
several purposes and notably among
tnem is the preservation of public
order, the preservation of essential
supplies and the preservation of
friendly relations with foreign
nations. An attempt was made—I
imagine it is also made in the dissent-
ing minute—that all those shall be
cut out; there should be preventive
detention directed only to two purpo-
ses and nothing else, namely, the
security of the state and the defence
of India. There should be no pre-
ventive detention for preservation of
public order; there should be no pre-
ventive detention even for the stopp-
ing of anti-social activities. compris-
ed in that description in the Constitu-
tion, namely, the preservation of
essential supplies and essential ser-
vit‘:‘es. They said: “We do not want
it

I will not say who sponsored that
particular amendment. The House
will gather it when the amendment
comes before it—we say that it is no
good saying that we want the Preven-
tive Detention Act to continue on the
statute book, but we want all the
relevant and more important pur-
poses to be cut out. Anyway the
Select Committee came to the conclu-
sion that two years was about the
minimum period for which this Pre-
ventive Detention Act should continue
on the statute book. I submit that it
takes a lot of time, enormous parlia-
mentary time. The House is here; the
Goverrment is responsible to the
House of the People. The Constitu-
tion says so and there is nothing to
prevent the Members of the House—
the House as a whole—moving a re-
solution at any time they like. that in
the opinion of the House. the Act
should be repealed and tarough that
resolution to convey the opinion of ihe
House. after six months, after 12
months or after 18 months or at any
time and I am sure that if there is
any indication of such an opinion,
namely, if the Opposition of the day
should like the matter to be discussed
by means of a resolution. I imagine
facilities would be given for the as-
certainment of the opinion of the
House. but to have a discussion about
ten days here and five days there and
year after year 1is not desirable.
Therefore. the first thing is two
years.

The second point that was consider-
ed was. who should have the right
to take the initiative. The Central
Government. no objection; State Gov-
ernment, no obhjection. but the whole
crux of the discussion lay on the
clause as to whether the district
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magistrates _ and additional district
magistrates—not every additional dis-
trict magistrate, but only those addi-
tional district magistrates, who are
specially empowered in that behalf by
the State Government—may be entitl-
ed to take action. It was said that
the district magistrates are—I put it
colloquially—an untrustworthy lot.
And it was said that they should not
be entrusted with these enormous
powers and therefore it should be cut
out. On the one hand, the very pur-
pose of the Preventive Detention Act
is to see to it, among other things,
that anti-social activities are put an
end to. that essential supplies and

essential services are not interfered
with unduly. And on the other hand
is this plea that there should be

delay.

Thes House would remember that
our district magistrates are not petty
officials. I am more familiar with
Uttar Pradesh. We have got now a
population there of 620 lakhs, all
divided into 52 districts, and there
are altogether 52 district magistrates.
Fach district magistrate, on an ave-
rage, therefore. looks after about 20
lakhs of people. In the course of his
administrative duties he looks after
the administration of the district, and
the other laws—what are called nor-
mal laws. the Criminal Procedure
Code and many other administrative
Acts—give to him, in emergencies,
great powers to act. He can direct
the Superintendent of Police to arrest
people on suspicion whenever there
is a question of commission of any
offence. He can—even magistrates of
the first class can—issue orders ban-
ning meetings and so on and so forth.
Now, to think that a district magis-
trate cannot be trusted to take action
under th's Act. and for a very limited
number of days—I shall come to that
—seems to me to be an argument based
on hypersensitiveness. 1 suggest
again that ii is really not intended to
make them have more power but to
avoid any hampering or obstruction
of the proper working of the Act.
For instance there are many districts
even in Uttar Pradesh, and I know in
Orissa with which also I am familiar,
where for long distances, hundreds of
miles, there are no communications.
In Orissa there are not even roads in
some Dpluces. Or you take for ins-

tance Rajasthan. Bikaner, Jaisalmer
and places on the border. Situations
may develop ai any time. Violent

speechcs may be delivered. There
may be incitement to violence. And
the district magistrate, if we hold
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him responsible, must act then and
there.

The amendment that was suggested
was: no, no, he must report. And
there was a very touching confidence
displayed in the ability—I take it the
judicial ability, administrative abili-
ly and impartiality—of the Home
Minister everywhere that he can be
trusted to pass very fair orders. He
became a sort of Lord Chief Justice,
he was not a part of the adminisira-
tion for that purpose. And, therefore,
the argument was that the district
magistrate should report to him; the
situation may be there but the district
. magistrate should report to him, re-
port all the materials to him, and
wait. The Home Minister might be
away on tour, unfortunate individual.
He may not be at headquarters.
There may be riots going on, but no,
no, you must wait. I suggest that
the Select Committee was quite justi-
fied in saying that this was not the
proper course to adopt.

I want to revert once again to
additional district magistrates. I do
not know about other Provinces.
"Hon. Members will forgive me if I
am wrong. I am only acquainted
with three of them, as I said, among
the Part A States, namely Utlar

Pradesh, Bengal and Orissa. The
additional district magistrate every-
where is a senior officer. He is not

an ordinary magistrate. He is really
there as a sort of—and that is why
he is so styled—an additional ¢isirict
magistrate. And he exercises in the
branches of work entrusted to him al-
most equal authority with the district
magistrate. Then there is this addi-
tional care that it is only that addi-
tional district magistrate that may
be selected or specially empowered in
that behalf by the State Government,
who will exercise these powers.

The House would also remembar
that in many States there is separa-
tion of judicial and executive func-
tions, for instance in Hyderabad.
The district magistrate is in charge
of the judicial administration, and the
Jperson who is in charge of the execu-

. tive  administration is called the
collecior. I am told that in some
other States also the district magis-
trate, where there has been a separa-
tion of judicial and executive func-
tions, has only judicial functioas.
So véve have got to bear that also in
mind.

Then

comes another important
change.

If the district magistrate
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intervenes and passes an order. for-
merly, under the Act of 1951, he had
barely to report for information of
the State Government—ijust for infor-
mation. And the State Government
might or might not intervene. Very
likely the State Government might
think that there would be the Advi-
sory Board, so let the orders stand.
Now we have made a very salutary
and important change. We made it
in the Bill, and we have altered it a
little in the Select Committee alsc.
The district magistrate, as the Bill
had been framed, was directed to re-
port the matter at once to the State
Government with all relevant papers
bearing on the necessity for making
the order, and the papers must in-
clude the grounds for detention. And
the State Government must approve,
expressly approve, the order within
fifteen cays. There the venerable
Home Minister would come on the
scene. Objection was taken to this—
look at it—that, the district magistrate
might suppress material. The Bill as
framed says that he should only send
papers bearing on the necessity for
making the order—very punctilious.
The Select Committee said: very good,
it w2s never the intention that he
would send half the papers and not
send the other half. So the change
has been made that the district magis-
trate should, along with the grounds
of detention, send all the relevant
papers bearing on the matter—both
ways, this way and that way—and I
am sure that if by that time. within
the five or seven days, the detenu has
already submitted his representation,
the magistrate will send that repre-
sentation also. So we get there.

Then came the period. Some one
said it should be three days; some one
said it should be seven days. In
the Select Committee I ventured to
suggest that the district magistrate
will send it at once. He may send it
within five days or seven days. But
you must give the State Government
time to consider. They said that it
may be considered by the Secretary,
by anybody, by the Deputy Secretary,
by the Under Secretary. 1T venture
to say that when the phrase used is
State Government, it may be taken for
granted that the matter will be dis-
posed of by some Minister, either the
Chief Minister or the Home Minister,
{ do not know. because in different
States there are different official des-
criptions. Sometimes, the Home
Minister is called the Police Minister;
sometimes, the Home Minister may be
called by some other designation.
But, I am sure that every State Gov-
ernment will see to it and us a
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matter of course, it might be made’
clear by , official instructions, that
whenever a reference is received from
a district magistrate, that reference
will be considered and disposed of
and action taken by him expressly
approved in the name of the Central
Government and on its behalf by
some Minister and not by some Secre-
iary, either Chief Secretary or Deputy
Secretary or Under Secretary. The
period was reduced. I was not very
keen about it. But, out of considera-
tion for the hon. Members who put
forward that view: I said, very well,
reduce it from 15 to 12 days. Here
the situation is, either you get the
order expressly approved within 12
days or the man is off. I submit that
no more reasonable course can be
taken. Do not let us be very tender
for law breakers or prospective law
breakers. During the course of the
discussion one hon. Member. I remem-
ber. referred to the people who remain
behind the screen and direct others to
take action, to lead processions, to
break the law. Some action has got to
be taken. If those gentiemen remain
there for four five or six days. no harm
will be done. That is about 12 days.

Then comes the next stage. In the
Bill it was said that as soon as the
State Government makes an order on
its own motion or apvproves an order
of the district magistrate. it should
send a report of it. I remind the
House, for the information of the
Central Government, because I do not
want the Central Government to come
very much into the picture. The pri-
mary responsibility for maintaining
iaw and order or peace an: trangquility
and the continuance of essential sup-
plies and everything else is that of the
State Governments. I do nct want to
interfere with that. I do not want to
take it over. Nor do I want to have
a sort of a parallel Advisory Board set
up here. Please remember that while
the State Government is communicat-
ing for the information of the Central
Government all these orders, simul-
taneously the papers will go also be-
fore an Advisory Board. We do not
want to hamver the consideration of
the Advisory Board by a parallel con-
sideration here. I am not talking of
exceptional and very rare cases.
Leaving that aside. the normal proce-
dure is that the papers come to the
Central Government merely for the
purpose of information so that we may
keep a record. we might not gather
from the newspapers as to which per-
son has been detained or not detained.
and we might have accurate official
information as to what happens. In-
cidentally I might also say, while we
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are discussing this question of wun-
authorised or improper detention, that
the House would recollect that the
Government in every State and here
is continuously, so to say, on_the
defence before the Legislature. There
is the short notice question, there is
the motion for adjournment. there is

the long notice question. Whenever-

any person is detained by any district
magistrate or State Government, it is
open to any Member of the House here
or the State Legislature to raise this
matter immediately by way of a ques-
tion and ask. why that man was de-
tained. Every Government would be
extra-careful to see that the order
made is an order justified by the cir-
cumstances of the case.

Mr. Speaker: I may just make one
observation hers so that there may
not be any mi:understanding. It is
not in resoect every detention that
a question or m:tion can be permitted
in this House. It is only in the State
Legislatures that that may be per-
mitted, except in cases where the
order is made by the Central Govern-
ment.

Dr. Katju: I beg your pardon.
When I said House of the People, I
wanted to include State Legislatures as

well: Legislature here and ‘he Legisla- -

tures in the States. If it is an order
by tke Central Government, the matter
can come up here. There is a State
Legisiature everywhere and they are
very much alive to the importance of
this matter.

Then, we come to the Advisory
Board. In the original Act it was pro-
vided that the matter must go before
an Advisory Board within a period of
six weeks. We wanted to shorten the
period and expedite disposal. That
period has been reduced from six
weeks to 30 days. Further more,
there is the constitution of the Advisory
Board. There is a direction laid down
in the Constitution namely that it
must consist of three classes of eligible
persons; either sitting High Court
Judges or retired High Court Judges
or persons who are qualified to be
appointed as High Court Judges.
Under the third category, you can
appoint advocates of ten years’ stand-
ing; you can appoint Judges who are
qualified to become High' Court
Judges. I circulated a list of the
members of the Advisory Boards in
the different States two months ago.

ou would find that in many States
the Advisorv Board consists either of
High Covurt Judges in toto, or at least
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one or in several States, there are two
High Court Judges. In some smaller
States, there are people who are quali-
fied to become Judges. A wish was
expressed that there must be a senior
man and he must be a High Court
Judge. We thought, very well, we
will nfake a change to that effect. The

‘Select Committee has recommended

that the Chairman of an Advisory
Board should either be a sitting High
Court Judge or an individual who has
been a High Court Judge. The object
I had in my mind was to ensure that
the Chairman was a man mature in
age, mature in learning and mature in
experience, and you get that by having
either a retired High Court Judge or
a sitting High Court Judge. It seems
to me that a High Court Judge on re-
tirement does not become merely
by retirement malleable to any
external influence. It would be
almost libel to say so. I  know
many and every High Court
Judge is an embodiment of integrity
and judicial honesty. So, that change
has been made. The remaining two
members, in the terms of the constitu-
tion, may be sitting or retired, or
persons qualified to be High Court
Judges.

Then, Sir, I made that suggestion
myself. I said: “We have got these
part C Statcs. small units. There are
no High Court Judges there, and it
would be very difficult to have the
Chairman as a High Court Judge for
the mere reason that there is no High
Court.” £, the Celect Committee has
suggested that in regard to Part C
States, the Central Government, in
consultation with the State Govern-
ments, may reconstifute the Advisory
Board so that _each Advisory Board of
each Part C State may have a High
Court Judge of a neighbouring State
as its Chairman. I suggest that that
shows an anxiety on our part to see
to it that the Advisory Board is a
real, functioning and completely inde-
pendent body.

Then comes the period, and what is
to come before the Advisory Board.
The House would recollect that beginn-
ing from 1950 in the first Act that was
introduced, the Advisory Board came
into the picture only when an order
was made against persons for anti-
social activities—hoarders, profiteers,
blackmarketeers, and also for persons
who wanted to interfere with commu-
nications, essential supplies—excepting
that there was no recourse to an Ad-
visory Board whenever public order
was endangered. Last year a change
was made and every case was to go
to the Advisory Board, but it was said
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that the Advisory Board would decide
the case on paper, it may send for a
person detained if it thought neces-
sary. Now, we went further this year
on our own accord, and we said if
the detenu expresses a desire that he
would like to be heard and should like
to make his representations personally
before the Advisory Board, well, he
should be entitled to go. I thought to
myself that this was a great privilege
given, and a great improvement. In
the Select Committee and during the
debate in this House, there was a
great discussion upon it, and they said
there must be a lawyer, legal repre-
sentation, and the right to summon wit-
nesses, examine and cross-examine
them. Now, I suggest once again that
an allowance of this description. I
mean if we were to allow any provi-

sion of this description, it will be-

totally destructive of the Act for a
variety of reasons, and one reason [
may say at once is: if you do so. then
why should a detenu have the bene-
fit of the service of three High Court
Judges, retired, qualified or sitting.
It is an expensive proposition. Send
it to an honorary miagistrate. He will
ear the witnesses, examine. cross-
examine and finish. It is a great pri-
vilege to have your case examined.
simply because it is a case of preven-
tive detention, by three officers. judi-
cial officers, highest in the land. “No.
no”, they said “we must have exami-
nation and cross-examination”.

Now, my next remarks, one or iwo
—there are many lawyers here—might
probably cause disapproval, perhaps
even resentment. I am a lawyer my-
self and an advocate. I will not say of
some standing, at least of some stand-
ing in point of years, and I have said
over and over again—if my hon.
friend wants to quote me again. I shall
send him the book—that the best art
of advocacy consists—I came to this
conclusion—in the advocate keeping
himself completely behind the priso-
ner, and not arguing the case at all.
I tell you it is a great mistake by
which we orofit of course—I am not
talking of legal rulings, legal discus-
sions in the Houses and rulings and
9 aM.
precedents of America, Australia,
Germany, England or anywhere. Full
Bench ruling or High Court ruling. I
am talking of pure facts. My expe-
rience has been this. Mr. Chatterjee
said that he was ashamed of me when
he heard it, but I will repeat it again
because it is my conclusion.

.Shri N, C. Chatterjee: It iy all
right. We shall have our say.

Dr. Katju: The moment a Judge
sees the seat of an advocate or a lgw

yer by the side of the accused vacant,
ke becomes suspicious.

Shri S. S. More (Sholapur): Is it not
derogatory to the judiciary?

Mr. Speaker: That is his opinion:

Dr. Katju: The Judge becomes sus-
picious. I have seen that and tihe
wisdom of our law-makers provides
far it. You, Sir, would recoilezt thut
there is a section in the Criminal Pro-
cedure Code which says that every
magistrate and every sessions judge
of a criminal trial. even though there
be a galaxy of legal talent before him,
must examine the accused personally
in regard to every circumstance ap-
pearing against him. I think it i .
section 342 of the Criminal Procedure
Code. It says when all the prosecution
evidence has been adduced, the Judge
must solemnly say to tiae prisoner at
the bar, “Now. what have you got to
say? Guilty or not guilty?” He zays
“not guiity”. Then: “What have you
got to say about this circumstance ap-
pearing against you? Such and such a
witness has said this against you.
What have you got to say?” It covers
pages. And there are mary rulings of
every High Court which say that if
this examination is perfunctory, the
whole trial is vitiated and there might
either te a retrial or.there might be
an acquittal on that very basis. Now,
why i: it so provided? Because the
Judges think and the legislators think
that the Judge should like. to have a
look at the accused when he is eitner
denying facts or not denying facts.

I venture to repeat again here that
it will be doing a positive disservice
to the detenu—I speak wit a sense of
responsibility, not as a Minister, but
as an Advocate—to make him go be-
fore the Advisory Board accompanied
by a lawyer. If the chances of the
Advisory Board of releasing him were
50 per cent. they would diminish to
five per cert. if the lawyer goes. You
may take it from me, in spite of what
all the jurists and the lawyers may
say. Because, please remember there
are three Judges. There is no rourt
atmosphere there. A lawyer. in orier
to function—a pleader, a vakil or an
advocate—requires a Judicial atmos-
phere. He requires the Evidence Act
at his elbow. He requires the right to
object—*“I object to "this questiom. it
is relevant, it is irrelevant”—and there
is cross-examination and there is cita-
tion of authority and so on and so
forth. But look at these three Judges
sitting across the table. No publicity.
Then t:e poor lawyer must feel him-
self completely at sea. What has he
te vay? There is nobody to clap for
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him or report him. I sometimes think
that judicial work and arrears would
‘be diminished by ten per cent. if there
were no reporters in the law courts. I
‘will not proceed further on this line,
but this question of lawyer represen-
~ tation is not a veritable boon,

And secondly. please consider what
is the essence of preventive detentisn?
It is not a one-pointed precise occur-
rence. It is not a trial for murder:
“on such and such a date at eleven
o’clock three vpeople came and shot”.
or whether this document is a forgery
or not. It is something srread over.
1 have seen files where it has been
stated “On such and such a day vou
made such and such a speech; another
speech you made on such and such a
day, you were doing this for the last
three or four months: from all tnis.
the inference is that ii you are ot
detained you would indulge in some
activities which may be prejudicial to
a variety of things”. You require a
man of commonsznse to look iuto all
that material, and there is no need for
a cross-examination. Please remem-
ber also this. The Advisory Board
consisting of these three competent
persons meet him, and as the standing
Acts says. they may hear the accused,
they may call for all information which
* they think fit, from anybody and even
the Government to whom they can say
“Supply this or that”. It is on this
whole material that they come to a
decision. Nothing is concealed from
them. nothing can ke kep’ secret from
them. It is true that a State Govern-
ment may keep away confidential sec-
ret papers on grounds of importance
from the detenu. but they cannot do so
in the case of the Advisory Board.
Someone said “Suppos'ng the demand is
not complied with. what wii! haopen?”
My answer to that is very simple. If
1 were a member of the Adviscry
Board and if the Government do not
supply me the information that I re-
quire, there is no question of 'y
fighting with them, I would only say
that “I shall release the accused, T do
not confirm the order of detention, be-
cause the information that you do not
send is very likely to be of some beane-
fit to the accused, and therefore you
are keeping it back from me”. The
case will then be finished and become
all blank. So there can be no Govern-
ment, -State or Central which would
dare to refuse the information to the
Advisory Board, when that is required
by them. It is open very likely to the
Advisory Board to say: ‘“We should
like to have such and such a
person before us, not as a witness, not
for examination or cross-examination,
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but we should just like to see tihat
man for durselves”.

There is a general idea that the
Advisory Boards are purely nominal
bodies which do nothing, and are just
some sort of rubber-stamping
machines, We looked into these
figures—I supplied them to the mem-
bers of the Select Committee. When
Sardar Patel’s Act, the first Preventive
Detention Act was passed, cases did not
use to go before the Advisory Board.
and when the previous Parliament
amended the Act last year, there was a
huge carry-over, and we found from
the figures that the Advisory Board
during the 18 months—beginning from,
I think, 22nd February 1950 to 3l1st
May 1951, perhaps—examined alto-
gether 4400 cases and released about
1200 persons. in about 28 per cent. of
the cases, and confirmed the order of
detention in about 72 per cent. of the
cases. What is the inference from
this that I draw? The inference is
that the Advi=ory Board acts in a sort
of judicial capyacity, and they have got

-plenty of material before them on

which they can form a judgment. 1f
you were to look into the statistics of
any appellate court, High Court, or the
court of the district and sessions judge,
you would notice that the number of
successful cases is not more. It is
something like 15, 20 or 28 or 30 per
cent. Similarly here. the fact that in
a large number of cases. the orders
were confirmed would go to show that
the State Governments were acting
with great discretion and even the dis-
trict magistrates were acting with
caution. On an ex<amination of Lhe
entire material. in about 28 per cent of
the cases, very likely they may have
thought “This man has been in deten-
tion for five or six weeks, let him gou
now”, or that “there was no justification
for the detention order”. Therefore, 1
suggest that the Advisory Board plays
a very important role, its Chairman-
ship has been strengthened. and -care
has been taken in this Bill that the
duration within which a case should go
before the Board should be minimised.
In this way, the papers must be sent
to the Advisory Board within 30 days.
It is open to the Board to take two
months, Formerly they could take
only six weeks. The reason why we
had said two months was that they can
muke a very detailed examination of
the case, they may send for the dulenu
twice or thrice if thev want to. So T
am hopeful that the Advisory Board
would be able to come to a conclusion
within two months. and s6 the matter
would be settled by that time once and
for all.
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Then came the question of the period
of detention. We proposed .the maxi-
mum period as one year from the date
of confirmation of the order by the
Advisory Board. There were varivus
amendments, Someone said three
months. I considered that, with all
respect, as a joke. The Advisory
Board may say “the order is well justi-
fied, please release him after three
months.” Then some one said six
months. But the Bill provides one
year. Please remember that one year
is the maximum period only. After
the Advisory Board ceases to function.
there comes into play section 13 of
the original Act. which authorizes both
the Central and the State Governments
to release any person if they so think
fit. During the last six months, the
State Governments have taken action
upon it. and I believe, more than a
thousand have been released. I can
speak here again from personal know-
ledge. and I can assure t:e House that
the case of every deteru is almost kept
eonstantly under review. In the fizst
place it may sound as a sort of anti-
ciimax if I say that the State Govern-
ment did not want to keep him, be-
cause he is an expensive proposiiion
In Bengal, I think. they spend about
Rupees -izrce to four on him per day.
It costs money to the State Government
and secondly apart from that, they do
not want to carry the odiumn. Why
should they? Then there are represen-
tations made, by hon. Members of the
Legislatur, by relations, and friends
going to the Minister and saying
“Here is a very innocent man, he has
suifered enough”. Then there is sec-
tion 14 which says that a detenu may
be released on parole. Hundreds of
detenus are released on parole. So
the maximum period of detention will
come into operation and become effec-
tive only for extremely serious cases.

Then after the expiry of the maxi-
mum. period of detention, I tell you
with great respect that we have taken
an extremely courageous step. I do
not think that many State Govern-
ments wil, be happy about it, because
we have said “Now your detention
means a . wash-out, all your past
records will not be looked into, they
may be looked into in comection
with what type of person vcu are, hut
for a fresh detention order. there must
be fresh material”. The House would
realise the importance of this on the
merits a " alsn in  connection with
another spect ot 1he case. When it
is said that the 1ili seeks to extend
the Preventive (letention Act for two
years. tuat evii is minimi by the
fact that so far as any Individual
detenu is corcern2d, no detenu will
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remain in detention in spite of tae
continuance of the Act. for more than
12 months substantially or say 14
months. It does not matter to him
whether the Act remains on the
statute-book .or not. He is going«o be
released.

I have covered almost the entire
picture and I want to assure the House
once again that so far as this review
business is concerned, you may take it
from me that every State Government
reviews and I have no doubt tha: if
they so advise, the: would make it a
point to review ihem every three
months or six monins. Some attempt
was made to bring it again before the
Advisory Board. Now to ask the
Advisory Board to ¢xamine the case
again—what would be the material?
The detenu had been in jail. He says:
“Look at my conduct; it has been very
wonderfu'; I have been a very quiet,
decent and law-abiding citizen in jaii”.
It is for the State Government, the
executive Government. o consider the
change in the political situation,
whether a particular detenu can be
released without danger or cannot be
released without danger. To ask the
Advisory Board to take up the matter
again. to consider it again, would be
very unfair to the Advisory Board
and. therefore, we have not taken that
matter up.

Some attempt was made to say that
there should be provision of faiaily
allowances. Now that is a mattec en-
tirely within the discretion of every
State Government. I know about the
State, wi.a which I am very familiar,
Bengal particularly. Such allowances
are granted in needy cases and it is
a_matter entirely within the discretion
of the State Governments. I have no
doubt that where there is considerable
pardghxp and any particular family is
in distress. they would pass suitable
orders. I cannot possibly lay down
any hard and fast rule for them snd
I submit it to the House that you
would not do it in the Act itself. And
please remember that while for con-
victs of all types we have no sym-
pathy, similarly for under-trials we
have no sympathy. I have seen
under-trials for eight months, {ten
months. So far as this preventive
husiness is concerned, either you say
that the Central Government or the
State Government are embarkiug
upon a course of f{yranny and there-
fore there should be this extenuating
circumstance—that they should soofien
their tyranny by giving something to
the dependants—or say that it 15 for
the prevention of crime that it is done
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and we must, therefore, leave it t: the
good sense and the discretion of every
State Government to take. sui‘able
acign.

I imagine that I have covered the
entire field and nothing remains {> be
dealt with at this instant. There is just
one other provision which I wouid like
to refer to and then conclude. We
had this question before us: what
about the people who are already
under detention? Now, I shal be
quite frank with the House.. During
the last three months there has been
a most intensive review by all State
Governments of old cases and very
few of the old detenus still remain in
custody. And State Governments
have deliberately, after the most care-
ful consideration, I imagine, by the
Chief Minister, the Home Minister,
probably by the entire Cabinet, come
to the conclusion that they cannot
possibly release some people. To
insist that those people should be
released forthwith would be extremely
unfair to those State Governments.
Now, so far as those cases are con-
cerned, the provision is that wnatever
may be the situation, such persons
must be released by the first day of
April 1953 or if there has been a
person who has been newly detained—
supposing someone was aetained on
the 1st of February 1952—as to him it
is said. twelve monthz. He would be
released after the expiry of twelva
months from the date of the order of
detention. The result is that so far as
older cases are concerned. the deadline
is the 1st day of April 1953 and so
far as more recent cases are concern-
ed, the deadline is the expiry of
twelve months from the date of the
order of detention.

. This practically covers the whol2
amending Bill and I submit that it has
now become a very improved pizsce of
legislation—I had almost said, a model
piece of legislation, but I will not say
that, it contains, if you accept the
principle, every possible precaution
that you can possibly think of. Safe-
guard No. one: If the district magis-
trate ‘intervenes, 12 days: safeguard
No. two: the State Government; safe-
guard No. three, the Advisory Board;
safeguard No. four, the right of ap-
pearance by tie person concerned. and
negative, protecting him from law-
yers. I seem to have made a hit.

Dr. Lanka Sundaram (Visakhapat-
gam) d You will get it back on the re-
ound.

Dr. Katju: ‘And strictly limiting the
period of detention. So far as the
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conditions in detention are concerned,
1 do not want to go into them. I will
just tell you the experience that I
had. I went to Murshidabad. Some
friends were in jail there. I went to
them. They were rather suliry to
begin with. But if you are deterinin-
ed to be friendly, no one can be sullry.
Threfore, I just talked to them and
told them: “I have not come to wis-
cuss with- you the policy underlying
this detention. That is not my ccn-
cern. That s for the Ministers. I
have come to ask you whether there
is anything in which I can help you”.
This is what I saw, a big barrack--it
reminded me of my old days also.
Every cot furnished with a mosqui‘o
net, a library of books, and four de-
tenus were entitled to have a news-
paper; there were about 20 or 25 of
them, so there were about ten news-
papers or so; then pen, pencil, every-
body can write...
.

Sardar A. S. Saigal (Bilaspur): It
is tempting to the hon. friends opposite.

Dr. Katju: Then a daily allowance of
rupees three. As soon as you are de-
tained, you get an outfit allowance of
Rs. 240. It reminded me of Gover-
nors.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: Are you pre-
pared to exchange places?

Dr. Katju: That is what I saw. And
no one could go there. The poor
jailors said to me: “You had the
courage to come here”. So they were
completely at liberty, in that particu-
lar way. Then games were provided
—badminton, volley ball; about twelve
servants for cooking, kitchen, and
doctor—everything provided. I think
about two crores of people in Bengal
have not got the facilities which those
people have there. That is
about the so-called hardships
and all that. Interviews, letters and
everything else. Of course, I did not
discuss with them the question of
policy, but they looked pretty—shall
I say—friendly, or whatever it is, as
you like.

I confidently recommend to the
House, every section of the House, to
pass the Bill with their blessings.

Mr. Speaker: Motion moved:

“That the Bill further to amend
the Preventive Detention Act,
1950, as reported by the Joint
Committee, be taken into consi-
deration.”

5010 .
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Before we proceed with further dis-
cussion, I think, I must dispose of
some amendments about circulation of
the Bill as reported by the Joint Com-
mittee for eliciting public opinton, or
recommittal of the Bill to the same
Committee. Now, as regards these
amendments I feel a difficulty. I am
not giving my ruling just now but I
am giving the ground on which I am
going to rule them out of order.
Before I do so, I should like to give
the hon. Members concerned a chance,
not to make long speeches but in a
very short statement to say as to why
these amendments should be held to be
in order. The matter is covered by
previous rulings starting from 1922.
I would take up only the last one on
this point and the principle enunciated
there is as follows. When an bhon.
Member sought to move an amend-
ment for recirculation of the Bill or
recommittal this is what the Chair
said. It was my predecessor—I may
make it clear:

“I do na} think he quite appre-
ciates the ruling I laid down a
little while ago regarding a
motion for recommittal.”

—-both are placed on the same foot-
ing—

“It is the business of the Chair
to protect the House against dila-
tory motions except where such mo-
tions are rendered necessary either
by the manner in which a Select
Committee have handled the Bill
or by unforeseen circumsiances
arising since the Bill emerged
from the Select Committee...... »

In that particular case this condition
was satisfied.

Now here, the Bill is coming before
the House so soon after the report of
the Committee that there is practi-
cally no case, there could not be any
case of unforeseen circumstances
having arisen since the Bill emerged
from the Committee. The only ques-
tion to be considered is: Was the Bill
so handled in the Committee that the
hon. Members' points of view were
not considered, or have they no fur-
ther chances of bringing in their
points of view now befare the House?
It is a very small point. I think the
Joint Committee took a very long
time. The House gave instructions
specially to have amendments to all
sections, whether included in the
amending Bill or not, and even now
those hon. Members will have a chance
of moving their amendments. Of
course, I cannot say that whatever
they move will or will not be in order.
That is to be looked into when the
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individual amendment comes up. ¥
should like, therefore. to know the
points of thes? hon. Members who
have tabled these amendments. Mr.
Vallatharas—has he to explain as to
why tais Bill should be recommitted?

Shri Vallatharas (Pudukkottai): The
only reason that prompted me to table
this amendment is this. hon. Mem-
bers had brought to the notice of the
Government the extent of the abuses
committed by the officers who either
abused the detention order or caused
the arrest. There were several cases
in which persons were unnecessarily
arrested. As a matter of fact. after-
wards they were released by the Gov-
ernment themselves or by the Advisory
Board. But there was no check upon
those officers to prevent further
abuses. There is a clause in the last
section saying, ‘“no suit will lie...” etc.
as a provision of immunity for those
officers. The abuses are committed
at the initial stage whatever the fate
of the detenu later on. And none of
these officers have been prosecuted for
such abuses.

Mr. Speaker: Order. order: I do not
want him to argue on those lines. The
only point is: Has the Select Com-
mittee in any manner so acted that
this Bill rejuires a recommittal or re-
circulation? His point as he is de-
valoping it seems to be that there are
certain things which he would have
liked the Select Committee to take
into _consideration. The points were
made in this House when the motion
for reference to Select Committee was
being discussed. But it is a matter of
opinion: The Select Committee may
agree or may not agree.

Shri Vallatharas: But they have not
made any mention of it. If the
Select Committee had considered it
and come to some conclusion, I would
not have minded. It concerns the
people at large. My rpoint is that indi-
vidual cases should be considered.

Mr, Speaker: Order, order. When
there was a debate in this House on
this Bill a large number of Members
wio were members of the Select Com-
mittee were present. It will not be a
quite correct presumption to say that
they had not considered the point
though there may not be any reference
to it—and a reference to it is not
necessary. I do not think he can be
said to have made out that point.

Shri Velayudhan (Quilon  cum
Mavelikkara—Reserved—Sch. Castes):
Sir, the way in which you have ex-
plained the scope of discussion of my
amendment makes me think that it is
so restricted that there is no point in
my saying anything more on that par-
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ticular subject. At the same time, I
may point out to you that certain new
factors regarding preventive detention
have come up. In my State about 200
people were arrested last week, most
of them under the preventive deten-
tion legislation.

Mr. Speaker: After the Select Com-
mittee’s report?

Shri Velayudhan: I do not know for
certain—perhaps it might have hap-
pened during the time of the Select
Committee itself.

Mr. Speaket: Let him be sure as to
facts.

Shri Velayudhan: I am not sure of
the facts, but I would like to speak on
this... .

Dr. Katju: May I, with your per-
mission, Sir, add one sentence on the
point of these officers acting...... ?

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. I am not
concerned at present with the merits
of the action of the officers. I am
concerned only with the admissibility
of these amendments. At this stage
we need not go into that question.

Or. Katju: I only wanted to state
what we did in the Select Committee.
That point was considered and the
Select Commiitee came to the conclu-
sioa that section 15 of the Act protects
an ofiicer who only acts in good faith.
We considered that was quite sufficient.
1f there was any cfficer who was act-
ing in bad faith he can be prosecuted.

Shri Seshagiri Rao (Nandyal): The
powers of Parliament to enact
the Preventive Detention Act are
derived from Lists I and II, but all
these  powers are circumscribed
under article......

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. He is
going into the merits. What I want to
know from him is this: Is he in a
position to show that the Select Com-
mittee acted in such a manner that
there is a case for recommittal of the
Bill to the Select Committee? That is
the point. Wheter a particular point
is held in favour of an hon. Member
or not is immaterial, but the question
is whether the matter has been fully
considered.

Shri Seshagiri Rao: The Select Com-
mittee has of course amended the ex-
isting clause and said that within five
days the detenu must be supplied the
grounds. But there is one other
right which the detenu has under the
Constitution, namely. the opportunity
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to make a representation. There are
therefore two obligations, only one of
which. the Select Committee has dis-
charged. The other one has not been
considered at all.

Mr. Speaker: I do not think a case
has been properly made out for allow-
ing this dilatory motion.

Shri Veeraswamy (Mayuram—Re-
served—Sch. Castes): It was agreed
on the floor of this House that when
the Select Committee considers this Bill
it can make changes in the parent Act.
The hon. the Prime Minister said so.
But the Joint Select Committee did
not consider the parent Act of 1950.
Not even one clause of that Act seems
to have been taken into consideration.
T:erefore. in-my opinion, it is neces-
sary that this Bill should be circulated
for eliciting public opinion thereon.

Mr. Speaker: I am not concerned
with the merits, but from the Select
Committee report and the minutes of
dissent it appears clear that the main
Act was thoroughly gone into by the
Select Committee. Whether it agreed
with the views of the hon. Member or
not, it went into the parent Act.
Therefore, I do not see any ground
made out for allowing this dilatory
motion at this stage.

Shri Madhao Reddi (Adilabad): I
have also a motion for circulation. I
want to ask one question. Is it the
pleasure of the Chair to suspend rule
97(2) of the Rules of Procedure?

Mr. Speaker: I do not propose to
go out of the way. There is no occa-
sion, or substantial reason, for it.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee (Calcutta North-
East): I also have a motion for circu-
lation. In the first instance. I submit
that you may be pleased to reconsider
your decision regarding interpretation
of rule 97(2), because I feel that
particularly in regard to motions of
this description it is fair to the House
that you interpret this rule as
liberally as you should. In the second
place, I think that the report of the
Joint Committee is a kind of docu-
ment which makes it imperative that
it should be circulated for eliciting
public opinion. This report is accom-
panied by as many as five mninutes of
dissent and in regard to the point
which has been mentioned already
about the authorisation of the Joint
Committee to go into the parent Act.
it seems to me to be the case that as
far as the minutes of dissent are con-
cerned, the provisions of the parent
Act were not really gone into with



5021 Preventive Detention

that kind of seriousness which was
expected when the House by unani-
mous motion required the Select Com-
mittee lo go into the parent Act as
well. In the minutes of dissent also
there are so many very distinct, con-
crete and objective proposals made in
order {2 make this Act somewhat less
objectionable than it is, and all those
suggestions, it seems, were simply
ruled out by the majority in the Joint
Committee.

Besides, the report nf the majority
of the Committee is couched in such
terms that it shows a complete indif-
ference to the arzuments advanced
with so much care in the minutes of
dissent by the represzniatives of diffe-
rent political parties as well as by
independent Members of Parliament.
In view of this particular character of
the report of the Joint Select Com-
mittee and in view of the directive of
the House whfch was so enthusiastically
acclaimed when the Prime Minister
intervened in regard to the discussion
of this proposition, I feel it is only fair
to the House as well as to the country
that the report of the Select Com-
mittee goes to the country for eliciting
public opinion. Let the peopnle have
an opportunity of going into the argu-
ments made out by the dissenters
from the majority from different points
of view. Thereafter, I am sure Parlia-
ment will be in a position to under-
stand the real implications of the Bill
as it‘is” going to be passed at present.
I submit with all respect that the re-

port of the majority of the Joint
Select Cominittee has been
drawn up not only without

due care for the interests of
the citizen but also without any real
understanding of the significance of
the measure which is under discussion.
The minutes of dissent show a very
wide, a very distinguished and a very
learned exposition of different points
which could have been incorporated in
the measure in order to make it less
pernicious than it is. In view of
that, it ought to be circulated for
eliciting public opinion.

Shri M. A, Ayyangar (Tirupati): I
was the Chairman of this Committee.
It is very wrong to say that we did
not consider any of the points that
were brought forward. We had been
in the habit of recording the minutes
of the proceedings from day to day
and next day they were circulated to
the members. In those minutes the
individual names of members who
sought to bring forward certain
amendments have also been noted. If
my hon. friend Mr. Hiren Mukerjee
means that merely because the whole
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Act has been sent to the Select Com-
mittee, therefore it is tantamount to
saying that every clause of that Act
according to his lights ought to be
amended, then the Select Committee
did not perform that function. Other-
wise, it only means that a chance was
given to the Select Committee and
to those Members who were anxious
to get even the parent Act amended
suitably to make representations there.
We did allow more than ample oppor-
tunity. There was not a single
gentleman there who ever raised an
objection that we were hustling
through. I am not letting out-a secret
when I say that I received encomiums
for the manner in which I conducted
the deliberations and they came from
all seetions. Therefore, no hon. Mem-
ber, to whichever party he may belong,
will say that ample opportunity was
not given. If you, Sir, permit these
minutes of the proceedings to be given
to such of the hon. Members as want
to read them—because it is supposed
to be an official document—they will

~mmediately find that not one of the

poinis that have been raised was not
noticed there but they were discussed
at length and threadbare. All these
hon. Members were there. Under
these circumstances, I submit this is
a dilatory motion.

Then again, Sir, you will please re-
member that only in cases where the
Select Committee has so modified the
Bill that 1t is necessary for the public
to know the reasons or tie views of
Members of Parliament necessitating
the modification, the Select Commiztee
itself recommends that such a Bill
may be circulated for eliciting public
opinion. We have made so many im-
provema=nts. Unless it is the desire of
my hon. friend that those improve-
ments should be lost and should be
once again removed from the original
Act. I do not see any reasan why this
Bill must go to the country at large.
This is a purely dilatory motion and
1 hope you will not allow it to be dis-
cussed. So far as amendments are
concerned, they can be tabled and the
House will have an opportunity to
consider them.

Shri S. S. More: I was one of the
members of the Joint Select Com-
mittee. Of course, I can in fairness
say that we discussed almost all the
points. But there was one point in
which we did not receive the necessary
satisfaction and that point was raised
by Dr. Kunzru.

Mr. Speaker: Order. order. The
proceedings of the Select Commiitee
are supposed to be confidential and
the hon. Member should not mention
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any member’s name in connection
with any matter.

Shri 8. S. More: Some of the
members of the Advisory Boards who
had gone into the different cases
ought to have been examined by the
Select Committee.

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. He is
refgrrmg now to some specific points
which, in his opinion, as also in the
opinion of some o‘her Members, the
Select Committee did not take into
consideration to his satisfacticn,
meaning that they did not agree with
his conclusions. That is <omething
different from saying that the Select
Committee did not consider the points
at all. In fact the hon. Member
himself conceded that all the points
were taken into consideration.” His
point now appears to be that in cne
or two points the Committee did not
agree with his conclusions. That does
not make any difference so far as the
admissibility of this motion is
concerned.

Shri S. S. More: ' May I have an
opportunity to explain?

Mr. Speaker: That will be in tne
course of the debate. If on a relevant
amendment discussion is allowed that
point can be raised. The Deputy-
Speaker has already pointed out how
the motion is dilatory. The Select
Committee itself in the concluding
paragraph of its report says: “The
Committee think that the Bill has 1ot
been so altered as to require circula-
tion”. There have been alterations ;
but they are not material alterations.

. I do not accept these motions to be
in order and the Bill will now be for
consideration before the House.

Shri M. S. Gurupadaswamy (My-
sore): I have got an amendment.

Mr. Speaker: Which amendment?

Shri M. S. Gurupadaswamy: That
the Bill be withdrawn from the
House.

Mr. - Speaker: He can vote against
the Bill and give effect to his
amendment.

Dr. P. S. Deshmukh (Amravati
East) : May I rise to a point of crder?
In the minute of dissent appended to
the report of the Select Committee.
signed by Messrs. Sundarayya and
Gopalan—it has probably escaped
your notice—this Act has been
described in as many as four places
as a “black Act”. I do not know if
there are any instructions so far as
the use of language in minutes of
dissent is concerned, but it will
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probably be as well for you to lay
down certain rules and direct that
there should be a certain amount of
restraint observed in writing minutes
of dissent. I do not wish to refer to
any other passages some of which,
at any rate, are rather strongly
worded. I do not know whether it
is prover.

The reason why I am raising this
point of order at this moment is that
I do not believe there are any
directions laid down so far and it
would be as well to do so now so that
there might not be instances of similar
nature later on. It may be permissible
to call a piece of legislation as
“a black Act” in the course of a
speech in the House. Whether some
hon. Members could be allowed the
use of such language in the course
of a minute of dissent is a matter for
examination and it would probably be
necessary to check those tendencies
at this early stage.

Incidentally, I would also lhike to
draw your attention to the fact that
one of the members of the Select
Committee has really appended a note
of assent and called it a note of
dissent. I refer to the minute of
Diwan Chaman Lal. How far that is
permissible should also be examined.
These are the two points which I
would iike to bring to the attention
of the House.

Mr. Speaker: 1 have not gone
through the dissenting minutes with
the purpose of finding out what
expressions in it are parliamentary or
unparliamentary. The hon. Member
has made a point which, I agree.
requires consideration and he may
invite my attention to other unparlia-
mentary expressions that may be
contained. not only in the minutes of
dissent. but even in the report of the
Committee and T shall be glad ic
consider and see whether 1 should
expunge them or not.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: May I at this
stage rise on a point of order? I find
that Rule 97(1) says:

“After the presentation of the
final report of the Select Com-
mittee on a Bill, the Member in
Charge may move:

(a} that the Bill. as reported
by the Select Committee, be taken
into consideration:

Provided that any inember of
the House may object to its being
so taken into consideration. if a
copy of the report has not .been
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made available for the use of
members for two days, and such
* objection shall prevail, unless the
Speaker allows the report o he
taken into consideration.”

We got this report on the night of
the 30th July and two full days have
not passed. This being a document
with so many dissenting ‘'minutes, il
certainly requires a good dea! oi
digestion.

Mr. Speaker: I had that rule in
mind and. in fact, in the Business
Advisory Committee, I believe this
point was touched. Then Members
wanted to be assured that they wou!
have sufficient time ~for  tabling
amendr::ents when the House proceeds
with ‘ke clause by clause recading.
The point of the rule is that they must
have sufficient time to table amenc-
ments. I said that if the Business
Advisory Committee was agreed—lct
me here repeat that that Committee
consists of Members representing ail
sections in the House—I was prepared
to waive notice under that rule and
the discussion might take place This
is being done with the agreement of
all sections of the House and, there-
fore, the point of order really does noct
arise.

Let us now proceed with the further
discussion.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: 'When the
Prime Minister made his announce-
ment on the floor of the House ‘hat
the Joint Committee was going to
consider not merely the few ciauses
of the Bill, but that the principal Act
and every cection and claure of the
Act would be open for consideration
we thought, it was a genuine gesture.
You know., Sir, that the Members of the
Opposition were very reluciant to go
to the Select Committee. Bul that
statement of the Prime Minister
dispelled to a large extent the
atmosphere of suspicion end we went
there with high hopes. We thought.
not merely that the few clauses of
the Bill would be considered therc.
but that there would be a dispassionate
consideration of this, muck-criticised
and retrograde features of the Act,
and thai we shall be uble to purge
this Act of its very .msaticfactocy
provisions.

Our hopes were frustrated. 1© seems
to me that there was somebody mere
powerful than the Prime Minisier of
India—possibly the Whip, we 4o act
know. We effected some very miner
amendmen’s in the Bill, but wlen we
came to the Act, I am corry to say
that each and evary one cof the
suggestions for improvement and
amendment was regularly  turazd

down. There was somebody working
behind. Not one, not even Dr.
Kunzru's amendment, ant even
Acharya Narendra Deva's, nor ours
was accepted.

I say in all seriousness that this
House is on its trial; the Select Com-
mittee was on its trial; this Pariia-
ment, the first real Parliament. elected
on the basis of adult suffrige. is on
its trial. We thought we would be
able to face the country by doing
some’hing to purge this vernicious Act
of some of its most unsa:isf:.~tory and
retrograde provisions We ploced
before the Committee some reasonable
suggestions made by the Civil
Liberties Union. Firsily the All-India
Civil Liberties Union has been point-
ing out that it is nothing but a parody
and farce of a hearing. There is
hardly any hearing.

What is it that we are fighling for?
It is not fair for the Home Minister to
say “You are trying to sabotage and
torpedo this Act”. It is not our in-
tention. We went there as responsible
men to get some facts.

Shri P. T. Chacko (Meenachil): On
a point of order, Sir. Is the Ykon.
Member in order in referring to what
all took place in the Joint Select Com-
mittee? He is giving even the names
of certain persons.

Mr. Speaker: He is not going. so
far as 1 am able to see. into the de-
tails of the matter but is only
generally describing the position that
they tabled a number of amendments
and none of them was accepied. I
think he can legitimately make that
grievance. He will not go into the
details of it. He knows it. I believe.

Shri C. R. Narasimhan (Krishna-
giri): Can he characterize iv 3s a
farce?

Mr. Speaker: le should not have
done it. But I do not think the
word is unparliamentary altogether.

Shri N. C, Chatterjee: What is it that
you are objecting to? We as respon-
sible and reasonable men thought that
possibly on the floor of the House.
with people sitting in the public gal-
leries, it will not be proper to expect
that the Home Minister would give
us all the details which would
justify the continuance of this much
criticized measure. Look at the
Statement of Objects and Reasons.
The hon. Minister says:

“The primary reason for the en-
actment of this legislation was to
protect the country against acti-
vities intend to subvert the Consti-
tution and the maintenance of law



5027 Preventive Detention

[Shri N. C. Chatterjee]

and order or to interfere with the
maintenance of supplies and ser-
vices essential to the community.
Attempts to do so, though consi-
derabiy reduced in iempo, have
not ceased and it is considered
essential that the powers confer-
red by. the Praventive Detention
Act should be continued.”

We wanted facts. We expected
some figures. I am not using the
ianguage of law, but the onus, ihe
purden was clearly on the Govern-
ment, on the hon. Minister to make
out a case where this kind of thLing

was going on, where subversive
activities were going on. Therefore
we wanted some material. We press-
ed for some materials. None was

given. We got no facts, no figures. In
the placid atmosphere of the Sclect
Committee we expected some iangible
evidence. Nothing was forthcoming.
Therefore we were handicapped. We
thought that as this Parliament was
on its trial we should be able to do
something really to bring it in confor-
mity with the spirit of the times. What
1s it that we are fighting for? Weaasre
continually saying that it is against
the postulates of a civilized system
of government to detain a man wiihout
trial. not to give him & real charge-
sheet. not to give him adequate op-
portunity of hzaring.

I appeal to this House even today,
I appeal to Parliament to consider.in
the year of Grace 1932. in Independoent
and Free India. under this Repubiiran
Constitution of which we are iroud,
with the ‘Thigh-sounding Preamble
guaranteeing social justice anu in-
dividua! l‘berty. is it not fawr atleast
that we should have those safeguards.
those privileges given to the detenus
which they enjoyed in war tirne pn-
der Pegulation 18B of the Defence of
Rezalm Regulations? That was the
main stand wr took. We were press-
ing. we pressed an amendmeni which
stood in the name of Pandit Thakur
Das Bhargava. That was nothing im-
proper, nothing extraordinary. The
amendment was in these words that
the detenu chould be given..

Mr. Speaker: Order. order. He
should nnt refer to the detailed ainend-
ments. which amendments came in
whose name and so on. It is not “in
order to refer to those proceedings of
the Select Committee. At tne most
he can say that an amendmnent of
this type came up.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: Very well,
Sir. That amendment was alrezdy
before this House. That had Leen
circulated. ’
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We pressed that there should be
given three essential attribules, name-
iy. a fair hearing, formulation of the
charge, and an independent judii-
riary and a right to  plead
the case by counse! or lawyers of ike
choice of the detenu. It is an amaz-
ing statement., 1 have great respect
for my hon. friend Dr. Katju. I gid
not say I was ashamed of him I told
him I am amazed at his statement and
at this stage of my life I have tonear
his plea: “For Heaven's sake co not
give the detenu a lawyer. that will
finish him”. Come with mec 1o the
Supreme Court. There are Judges
who are very anxious to try to goout
of their way to help the detenu. No
detcnu  except possibly cne in a
thousand can present his case prover-
ly, even if the Judges are willing,
sympathetic. attentive and anxious to
help. The greatest tragedy—I appeal
to your experience, to the experience
of every lawyer Member of this
House—the greatest tragedy tha: can
befall a man is to be a litigant nicad-
ing his own case befere any tribunal!
After all it is a tribunal. You may call
it a quasi-judicial tribunal, but it is
after all a tribunal. We have got cn
it a High Court Judge and two other
Judges. There are three Judges. Is
it possible. is it feasible, is it practic-
able that a detenu will be able to put
forward his defence properly? It is
impossible. We know it cannot be
done. Go to any High Court or to
the Supreme Court. Any day when
habeas cropus vpetitions are heard, tue

judges find the d=tenus impulsive,
they have no serse of relevancy.
materiality, cogency. they do not

understand that hearsay evidence camw
not be adduced. I am not thinking of
technicalities of law. But there are
fundamental maxims which must govern
all proceedings where some kind of a
semblance of justice is maintained.
The Judges have said “You better
stop, we will get a counsel” and that
counsel would plead for him. Is it
possible that before three Jucges the
detenu—some of them may be illiterate
or may have no training in 'aw- will
be able o put forward his case? I do
enter my emphatic caveat against the
statement made by the hon. the Home
Minister that the lawyer will be a
nuisance, a_handicap and will spcil the
detenus. He will do nothing of the
kind. It is his choice. If he says that
he canno’ himself do it, for Heaven’s
sake give him this elementary right,
the right which you gave to a- mur-
derer, a saboteur, a traltor to the
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country, to defend himself through a
man of his own choice. That is all
that we are pleading for.

[MRr. DEPUTY-SPEAKER in the Chair]

In England they did it. Mr. C. K.
Allen, one of the greatest authorities,
who was himself a member of the
Advisory Board in England, said that
-even in England it is impossible for
the detenus to really represent their
cases before the Advisory Board. The
language is this. I am quoting from
Mr. C. K. Allen’s book Law and
Orders:

“Speaking from considerable ex-
perience of the examination of
conscientious objectors, the present
writer- can say without hesitation
that legal aid may make all the
difference to that large class of
persons who are inarticulate or
discursive and quite wunable to
present their own cases; and this
must be so however eminent, ex-
perienced or sympathetic the ex-
amining tribunal may be.”

We know that the Home Minister
bhas been good enough to accept one
suggestion of ours, that there shall be
a High Court Judge. Of course he has
added an ex-Judge also. I am in diffi-
culty in saying anything against
ex-Judges of High Courts!

I)l:. Katju: I have got very high
opinion of ex-Judges.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: But what I
am pointing out is this. You have these
three Judges. But even there you
know Sir Walter Monckton was the
Chairman of the Board in England.
And Sir William Norman Birkett, one
of the greatest Judges England has pro-
duced, was Chairman of the Board.
And he says it is impossible for the
detenus to really represent their cases.
Remember the standard of education,
the standard of literacy, the equipment
in public life and the best traditions
of England. Even there it is said
that the detenus cannot present their
cases, where the proceedings are con-
ducted in the English language. There

so, Advisory Boards have in case
after case stopped them and sent for
counsel.

One or two instances were appended
in our minute of dissent. . . ..

Dr. Katju: On a point of order, Sir.
1s not my hon. friend making a grave
reflection upon the judiciary thatthey
are unable to understand the cases
without the assistance of the Counsel?

Bhri N. C. Chafterjee: It is not a
question of specific cases. What was
124 PS.D.
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Dr. Katju doing for 40 years in the
different courts? ' o

'Dr. Katju: I told you I ceased to
argu cases at the end of my career.

Shri N, C. Chatterjee: It is a libel
on’ the Allahabad High Court and I
hope some lawyers here will protes
the Judges there. a

From the statements of responsible
Ministers in Parliament it will be seem
that the detenus are given facilities
for the purpose of presenting their
cases. You have the statements with
you already.

“The English practice will be
seen from the statements of res-
ponsible Ministers in' the Britishr
House of Commons—Home Secre-
tary (October 31st, 1939)”—again
predecessor in office of Dr. Katju,
ex-Governor of Behgal,

Dr. Katju: I am sick of quotations.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: Because
theéy are very inconvenient to you, §
know. I quote: :

“The Advisory Committee have
before them all the evidence which
is in the possession of the Secretary
of State. But the Advisory Com-
mittee call in any person who, in
their opinion, may be able to assist
in elucidating the matter with
whilch the Committee have 10
deal.”

We pleaded that at least the Ad-
visory Committees should have all the
materials which is in the - possession
of the Government. Even that was
not accepted. Then we said that the
Advisory Committee should be allow-
ed to call any person who in the opi-
nion of the Judges may be able to
assist the Committee with which the
Committee have to deal. Solemnly
our: friends in the Committee turned
it down. Are you going to tell the

- people of India that you are putting

this Act on the statute book? In the
years 1941-42 when England was in
the throes of a terrific war, when her
existence was in danger and the
fcundations of her State were in
jeopardy, when her cities and towns
were bombed, Sir John Anderson
cculd allow it; Sir Walter Monckton
could allow it; Sir Norman Birkett
could allow it: I ask what has the
poor detenu done? What crime did
he commit? When Congressmen were
detained, when lovers of liberty were
detained under the Criminal Law
Amendment Act and Regulation 3 of
1818, they were very loud in their pro-
testations; we were fighting for freedom
from political bondage and we wanted
to sweep away the existing repres-
sive laws in order to secure the fullesf§
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development of human personality.
Do not commit the mistake of think-
ing that you can eradicate or suppress
Communism by this kind of preven-
tive detention. The British imperialists
also thought that they would crush the
Congress through this Preventive De-
tention Act, but they could not doit.
They could not suppress the liberty
movement. You will also not be able
to do it. This is not the way to doit.

I have my fundamental differences
with the comrades who are sitting
on the other side. But still I do not
think this is the way to eradicate
Communism. You are really giving
these people a handle; you are doing
the greatest disservice to India by
acting in this manner. Look at the
way you -are treating them. We were
then preaching that an independent
india will build up a real common-
wealth, a real republic, that justice
shall be done, where the frontiers of
despotism shall be pushed back, wbere
the frontiers of liberty shall be extend-
ed and there shall be no ong who shall
be deprived of liberty without trial,
without an opportunity to defend him-
gelf before an honest tribunal.

What does Dr. Katju say to that? He
is saying that “this is a model Bill”. It
is a wonderful Act. This is a wonder-
ful Bible which the Congress Govern-
ment has today brought out and they
are proud of it. I think they ought to
be ashamed of it. What is it that you
are going to say? I will give you
three Judges with one High Court
Judge or an ex-Judge but I will not
give you a lawyer. I wili not even
give you a chance of having a re-
presentation or your defence or a
statement written out by one who
knows; I will not even give you a
chance of consulting some lawyer for
the purpose of preparing your case,
even if it is a case of an alibi; I will
not allow you to call any witness
or cross-examine witnesses. These
three handicaps Dr. Katju is removing:
No lawyer, no examination of witness
in support of the defence, no cross-
examination of the police informer or
informant who supplies some informa-
tion to the executive officer, district
magistrate or his ‘wonderful’ addi-
tional magistrate or the Cocmmissioner
of Police. In the Uttar Pradesh there
are 52 wonderful district magistrates—
each one an ideal and a model.

" You know there have been abuses
of this kind; you know gross abuses
of this type, We know that the
Supreme Court and other High Courts
have released detenus because they
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were convinced that this Act has been
abused. Why was it abused? It was
abused because it was left to the sub-
jective satisfaction of one man. how-
ever well-equipped he may be. Wil
you allow him to arrest and then give
him a chance of a fair trial? Detain
him if you have some reasonable satis-
faction, if you have some real informa-
tion, but then immediately thereafter
give him a chance of defending him-
self. What is the harm there? He
is behind the prison bar; he cznnot
commit any prejudicial act. When he
is behind.the prison bar, why not give
him a chance of defending himself of
proving the incorrectness or the mala
fide of the case against him. We plead-
ed that at least the detenu should have
all the materials which you have placed
before the executive officer. That
was turned down.

When you are defending yourself
properly how do you expect the detenu
to defend himself if you do not give
him a chance of knowing what the
materials are on which the district
magistrate or the additional district
magistrate had ordered his detention. .
That is only fair; that is only minimum
justice; that is only the barest justige.
We also strongly protested against the
continuance of this measure for two
Years. Our appeal—my appeal and
those who are with me—was and is
“extend it for one year”. Why should
you have it for two years. Come up
before Parliament, convince us next
year that conditions exist which make
the continuance of this measure justifi-
able. Take Parliament into your
confidence. Simply because of climatie
reasons Members of Parliament may be
under some handicap to consider this
measure properly, therefore you have
it for two years; have it for 20 years,
so that Parliament will not have further
trouble with this Act. Do not take
away the Parliament’s right. Parlia-
ment will be doing the greatest dis-
service to itself and will be committing
a breach of trust if it allows a longer
period than one year. After all power
corrupts and absolute power, when
granted to these officials, is liable to be
abused. Therefore, I say that our
amendment and our suggestion which
:ya:d negatived was not properly nega-
ived.

What do you want? It is no use
the hon. Home Minister trylng to re-
dicule our suggestion. We suggested
the deletion of some words and sec-
tions. We said that the scope of tne
“prejudicial act” should be restricted
to a reasonable degree. Please do not
expand the scope of abuse. There was
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nothing improper. Our suggestion
was: “delete foreign relations”. What
is it? Why should you put a man
behind the prison bar on suspicion
that he may say something or do some-
thing which may imperil some foreign
relations with some other countries.
We know it was only meant for only
one country and there is absolutely
no necessity for it. It is our right.
it is our duty; it is the duty of every
citizen to speak out his mind if he
thinks that something has been done
in Pakistan or in another State which
is detrimental to our interest, to the
economy of India and to the self-res-
pect of India. It is our right to do so.
I say “delete it”. You have read the
comment of Pandit Kunzru; he is not
an extremist nor a Communist; he is
a sober, seasoned man and he pleaded
Yor it. It is not that I alone pleaded
for it, but it was turned down. To
whatever we suggested the answer

was peremptory, an unequivocal and -

unanimous ‘No’ from the majority.

That is our fate.

°

We also suggested, for Heaven's sake,
in India today, have a law on the same
footing as was the law in England;do
not entrust this unfettered discretion
to one officer, or to one police
officer however eminent he may
be. We are going to trust the hon.
Dr. Katju with the exercise of this
power. We are going to take the risk
of entrusting this subjective satisfac-
tion to every Home Minister in every
State in India. We said, for Heaven’s
sake, do not give it to any district
magistrate or additional district magis-
trate or police commissioner. That is
the English statute.

The English statute differs from our
statute in three ways. Firstly, it is
restricted to one particular emergency,
that is war. Never during peace time
have they had it. They repealed it; it
died a natural death at the end of the
war. Secondly they never gave the
power to a district magistrate or
county magistrate or any inferior
officer. They gave it only to a res-
ponsible Minister of the Cabinet, a
man in whom the country has confi-
dence, Parliament has confidence

‘and whose satisfaction is of some
value. Thirdly, even there, the Home
Minister can act only when he has rea-
sonable grounds to believe that the
person sought to be detained—I think
I am quoting the language properly—
the person sought to be detained was
recently concerned in some prejudi-
cial acts. Then and then only he can
exercise the power. That was the sug-
gestion that we made ; that is the sug-
gestion that we are making now. Do

not turn it down because the Opposi-
tion has put it forward. For Heaven's
sake consider it on its merits. We say,
take this responsibility yourself;
entrust it to responsible Ministers. But,
tell them that they cannot act unl_as
they are satisfied that the prospective
detenu was recently concerned in some
prejudicial act or in any instigation or
preparation for violence. I am only
suggesting this. There is nothing un-
reasonable, nothing improper in our
suggestion.

Dr. Katju said these are pecple who.
wanted to sabotage the Bill. Nothing.
of the kind. It is not a fair statement;.
i never expected it of him. What we-
wanted is that this Act shall come in--
to operation in any State or any part
of a State in India where the Central.
Government in its wisdom will think
that the conditions justify the applica--
tion of this extraordinary statute. Can
they not believe themselves? We are
giving the power to the Central Govern--
ment. Issue a notification in the-
Gazette any time you like. Do not ex--
tend it to the whole of India all at once..
Do not allow all the district magistrates
in all the districts in all the States of
India to exercise powers under this Act.
We have been told that in certain States
no action has been taken. Not one-
detenu has been kept behind the prison .
bar. Obviously it is not necessary"
there. We feel that it is only a just,.
fair and reasonable suggestion: only-
have it in those areas where the emer-
gency demands the application of this
emergency measure. You cannot stand
up and say against your own Statement"
of Objects and Reasons which says
that there are parts of India where it
is not at all needed and there is no:
g];xestion of the application of this Act

ere.

We made various other suggestions:
I do recognise that small changes have
been made. What are the wonderful.
changes that have been made? Oneis
that each order of detention has got
to be approved by the State Govern-
ment within 12 days instead of 15.
After three hours of passionate plead-
ing, the hon. Minister conceded three
days. I was lucky. The second is that:
the grounds must be disclosed tc the
detenu within five days cf detention:
a_small mercy and I «am thankful to
him. The third is that each case must
be referred to an Advisory Board within-
30 days instead of 42 days. We are
obliged for this small mercy again.
Then. there shall be a Chairman of the
Board, who will be a High Court Judge.
Lastly, the executive officer has got to
forward to the State Government all
the materials that he has against the
person detained. One tking I should
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point out in all fairness. The only
gain which we have achieved is that
there shall no longer be a repetition of
the renewal of the first detention order
exactly on the same grounds for which
the man was detained. Dr. Katju saw
the force of the argumeni. Therefore,
a fresh detention order must be now
issued on the happening of fresh facts
and not the old groumds.

I still maintain that unless you
radically alter the statute, this Act
shall be a_standing slander on India’s
right to seif-rule. It is a great imputa-
tion on our capacity for democratic
self-government. We have been pas-
sionately pleading that we shall re-
move all these statutes when we get
freedom. -After five years of freedom,
you are solemnly re-enacting all those
laws. You are still continuing to have
this power to detain without a fair op-
portunity of trial. We are still prepar-
ed, and we were all along prepared, to
consider the case of continuance of this
measure where such a case is made out.
Nothing was done. The hon. Minister
was kind enough to meniion certain
facts and figures here. That shows
that in 1241 cases the Advisory Boards
have ordered velease, that is, in about
28 per cent. of the cases, the Advisory
Boards have released the detenues.
Does it not show that in some cases, at
least in a good number cf 1241 cases
innocent men were rounded up? You
have got to act on suspicion. How can
you possibly say that this man is a
potential criminal, a poteniial saboteur?
You know there is no question of your
going to a court. Thc grounds are
non-justiciable. You carrot invoke the
jurisidiction of any court. You cannot
do anything in a court of law. That
position still continues. The onus which
was primarily on the Government was

. not discharged.

The black spots—I will not call or

- use the term “Black Act”—in this Pre-
-ventive Detention Act are still there.
- One: The detenu is not going to be
supplied with all the material which

the State has against him. I ask you

in all seriousness to delete this pro-

vision. It is only a rudimentary canon

of fairplay that what you have got

against him and what the Advisory

‘Board has got against him should be
placed before him. Two: There will

be still in a sense ex-parte hearing of

the case. There will be nc chance to

cross examine and no chance to lead

evidence. From our experience we can

say that a majority of the detenus will

.be under a great handicap. In India,
:having regard to the situation and the
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standard of literacy or illiteracy, it is
absolutely impossible for them to do
sustice. Three: We also urged, at
ieast te bring our law into conformity
with the English war-time law and put
it on that basis.

I appeal once again before I sit down.
Let us read the signs of the times. Let
us do something to make the common
man feel and be convinced that he is
not a mere machine, that he is not a
mere tax-payer, that he is not a mere
blind recipient of all ycur orders, but
that he has got a self, that he has got
a personality which contributes to the
making of the orders ard also colours
the nature of the orders. That is what
we wanted. Then, he will have the
supreme satisfaction of feeling—he
may be hungry, he may be under
many distresses, economic and other-
wise—that he has not been denied
justice. His deepening frustration will
be removed. There will be real res-
ponse. We can then face the mublic
and tell them that those who are in
authority today—Members of the Gov-
ernment who fought—fought not mere-
ly for freedom in the political field, but
also for the enthronement of indivi-
dual liberty—while they are in office,
they are not going to cast to the winds
all the cherished principles which they
preached, and that they are going to
practice, at least some of them, in free
and independent India.

Dr. Rama Rao (Kakinada): I happen
to be one who has enjoyed only one
fundamental right, the fundamental
right to detention without trial, and
as a result of that detention and as
a result of that terror regime in jails,
I have been kept away even from com-
ing to this House till recently. And
now, in spite of all Dr. Katju's sweet
arguments. I know I may not be able
to come to this House again not be-
cause I have any motives, but just be-
cause I will exercise the same right of
agitation against this Government as
I did before, and I am likely, under
this Preventive Detention Act, to be
detained again.

Before I pdoceed further, I will read

only one sentence from my detention
order:

“He was a staunch Communist
worker. After the Chief Com-
munist leaders went underground,
he had been directing the Com-
munist campaign in Ramachandra-
puram Taluk. He presided over
a number of Communist meetings
in Ramachandrapuram Taluk, and
had been exhorting Communist
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minded workers to agitate for lift-
ing the ban_on the Communist
news paper Praja Shakti.”

Shri B. Shiva Rao (South Kanara—
South): May I ask from which do-
cument the hon. Member is reading?

Dr. Rama Rao: The detention order
served on mne by the Government of
Madras. I was detained not for ask-
ing people to break any liw or any
order, but to agitate and bring pressure
on the Government of Madras to re-
move that unlawful ban on Praja-
Shakti. Praja Shakti was a daily from
Vijayawada which the Madras Gov-
ernment banned and suppressed. Of
course, the fundamental rights give
us so many freedoms, freedom of ex-
pression, freedom of public speech and
‘all that, but when I spoke from a
public platform of which the whole
record was there with the Government,
they could have prosecuted me for any
unlawful statemenis I had made. But
at the public meeting, I exhorted for
the lifting of the ban.

Is there any time limit for the spe-
ech? I am speaking slowly owing to
the after-effects ot detention. I am
feeling weak.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is it
that the hon. Member wants before he
proceeds?

_Hon, Members: Is there any time-
limit?

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let him go on
as he likes.

Dr. Rama Rao: I will read further:

“He organised ‘a large procession
on ‘May Day’ on 1st May, 1948
from Ventur to Ramachandra-
puram.”

In the first place, it is not a fact. It
is untrue. In the second place, it is
perfectly lawful. There is no section
144 or any other section banning that
procession:

“The procession went about
shouting objectionable slogans like
‘Congress Government should he
overthrown’, ‘Police should be
rooted out'.”

I do not know what is exactly meant
by “Police should be rooted out” and
whether the processionists sbouted
such slogans, and it does not say how
I was responsible for that:

“He instigated the workers to
defy orders under sectiom 144
CrP.C. at Pandalapaka, Kurma-
puram and Ventur in Ramachandra-
puram Tauluk”
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First, it is false. Secondly, the order
itself does not show that I defied the
order or any. such thing:

“Under his support, the Com-
munists openly announced that
they would open a conference at
the Taluk Ryots Assn. at Edida on
4/5th June, 1948 in spite of orders
under section 144 which were in
force in that village.”

Even -then, it does not show that
they defied the order. Again I repeat
I had nothing to do with any of tnese
meetings. Even till this date I have
not gone to that village Edida.

Here are certain statements made:
some of them are absolutely lawful

. activities, others absolutely false, but

my point here is that I had no oppor-
tunity to prove that any of the facts
were false, and there was no need for
the police to prove that any of these
statements was true.

Now, the presen{ Bill before us
practically gives the same power to the
folice,’ and places me in the same help-
ess position. You make certain state-
ments. Of course. these are al! vague,
and subsequent judgments of the High
Court showed it.and according to those:
judgments I could have been set at
liberty. But till now, if they make a
specific statement that on such and
such a date this Pr. Rama Rao did
certain things, I am helpless to prove:
it is false.

I will give one instance. In 1941 F
returned from the General Hospital,
Visakhapatnam, after a major gastric
operation. There was a conversation
between the local medical officer and.
the sub-divisional magisirate. People
sometimes become famous by the
operations they have to undergo.
During the conversation, the doctor
mentioned to the sub-divisional magis-
trate that I had undergone such and
such an operation. The sub-divisional
magistrate was surprised. He said:
“What. was he not in town?” “No. he
returned only three days ago.” “It is
gnod you told me. I was about to sign
a detention order against him on the
ground that he received an under-
ground Communist 20 days ago at such
and such a playground”. And for
two months before that I had been in
the General Hospital. This happenea
by accident. The sub-divisional magis-
trate told him: “I received informa-
tion that he received . . . .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Is the hon.
I\;I:n"‘il;er feeling feeble or too weak to
stan
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Dr. Rama Rae: I shall just manage.
After this I may not have this irouble
again.

Mr. Peputy-Speaker: In which case
1 would allow him to sit and speak.

Dr. Rama Rao: Thank you very
much, Sir.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Or he can come
to one of the front benches.

Dr. Rama Rao: I am very much
-obliged.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: On that ac-
‘count, it need not be too long.

Dr. Rama Rao: I will be very brief
‘if not for your sake, at least for my
-own sake.

I was mentioning a case in which I
escaped detention very narrowly by
.almost an accident. If that doctor had
mot met that sub-divisional magistrate
-on that date, probably in another four
or five days I would have been de-

. tained. And I had absolutely no
chance of proving the fact that .on
such and such a date I was lying as a
patient in the General Hospita! after
-a major gastric operation.

) Shri B. Shiva Rao: May I ask what
“ -was the date of this particular incident?

Dr. Rama Rao: This refers to 1941.
My point is not that Dr. Katju sent me
to prisom at that time. The funda-
mental fact is there. I had no oppor-
tunity of disproving a statement made
against me on which I was likely to
be sent to priscn. In fact; this deten-
tion order in which the only fact is
about the

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is the
date of particular detention order re-
ferred to?

Dr. Rama Rao: There are a number
of detention orders. I was first de-
tained on 24th June, 1948. Subse-
quently. so many orders have been
issued, but the fact remains that I
was in prison on the same grounds, for
more than three years.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: That is re-
moved by the recommendations of the
Select Committee. On the same
grounds no further “detention order
can be served.

Dr. Rama Rao: 1 am a man who
has suffered, and I know how these
things are carried out in practice. It
is true the same grounds will not be
supplied. I may b2 released and one
.week or ter days after that, they may
glve me a number of other grounds.
1nat I handed over an atom bomb to
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some body—if not so suppose thev
say: ‘“Three days agy, he harded
over ten revolvers to such and such a
person”. There is absolutely no chance
for me to prove that it is a downright.
lie. My point is that you are going to
use, you have used, both the Congress
Government and the British Govern-
ment have used the law for certain
political purpcses. At least the
British had this saving grace that they
used it during wer time. during a
great emergency. But now there is no
emergency in the country, and yet you
are still using the same Act, and you
are now seeking to extend it.

I am not for a moment going to
believe that after two years this Act
is going to stop. It is going to
continue as long as this Government
is in power. And they are going to
use it not merely against any possible
revolution, but against all opposition,
and are going to use it as a blanket
power. They are creating an atmos-
phere of lawlessness and irresponsi-
bility amongst the officers so that they

. need not satisfy any rules of procedure,

they need not satisfy any law, and
that they can arrest and detain a per-
son and send him {o prison as to the
Bastille, during their pleasure. Of
course, all the other rules practically
do not count for anything. 1If is not
only the district magistrate that can
do so, but even the lowest police officer
may send a person to prison if he is
pleased.

I can quote you a number of instances
where people have been sent to prisomr
for reasons other than political ones
also. For instance in Vizianagaram,
there was an advocate who was a
Congressman. But he did the mistake
of appearing on behalf of labour
unions on payment before labour
tribunals and boards, and unfortunate-
ly he won every case against the
mill-owners, and so naturally the
mill-owners got angry with him and
did something by which he was sent
to prison. Though he was a known
Congressman, and was well-known to
several Congress people, it took four
to six months to get him out of the jail,
just because he was detained under
certain charges which were absolutely
false but which he had no chance of
disproving. In my own place, one
advocate appeared on behalf of peopie
who were kept in prisorr under section
151 of the Indian Police Act, and be-
cause he was able to bring out those
people from jail on bail, the police
authorities, the local Hitlers got angry
with him and sent him to prison with
a number of false charges for which
he had to be in jail for nearly two
years. I know of a large number - or
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cases, where faor reasons connected
with village factions, village parties
were sent to prison because one parti-
cular party was in the good books of
the local police officer who could there-
fore send the other party to jail on any
number of charges.

My submission is that we must pro-
test against the sense of lawlessness
that has been created among the police
and local authorities. In Andhra for
instance, there was absolutely no rule
of law durmg 1949, 1950 and part of
1951, because the polxce officers had
the freedom to arrest any one, and
send him to jail. Not only that, it led
to the further freedom of harassing
people, torturing persons and even
murdering them. I know of a number
of such cases also. In Pithapuram two
Communists were arrested in a certain
-village four to five miles east of Pitha-
puram and were taken away and
hundreds of people had seen them and
thousands knew that on thal~ parti-
cular eveding these two Commumsts
were arrested, but the next marning
they were killed on'a road west of
Pithapuram. Then the usual state-
ment came that an “exchange of fire
took place between the armed Cam-
munists and the police, two Com-
munists died while the others escaped.
This sort of statement you will find
dozens of times in the old copies of
The Hindu and The Indian Express:
“Exchange of fire between armed Com-
munists ‘and the police--two Com-
munists died, others escaped”, and
never a policeman injured Of course,
sometimes it is not in a mango-
garden, but in a forest .

Shri Thanu Pillai (Tirunelveli)):.Is
this all relevant to discussion of the
Bill now?

.Dr. Rama Rae: Yes. Sir, my submis-
'sion is that it is perfectly relevant, be-
cause there is a feeling of lawlessness
among the police officers, because they
Teed not satisfy the rules of ordinary
aw.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What the hon.
Member evidently has meant is this.
He might as well have wanted to say
that the scope of the present discuse
sion is only this much. The Bill has
emerged from the Select Committee,
and the Committee has done wiwqt it
ought to have done. So we should mot
go into any other matters of policy or
general matters concerning the law-

lessness of police officers, etc. except _

in so far as they have a bearing on
what the Select Committee has done
‘or must have done.
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:Shri' A. K, Gopalan: My submlssion
is that......

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon. Mem-
ber . knows how to bring them in.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: What I wanted
to say was this. Though these things
are mentioned, they are not unconnect~
ed because there are so many amend-
ments which have been given notice
of, and which seek to say that there
must be some principie behind all this
detention, and it is as the basis for
these amendments, that the hon. Mem-
ber is now trying to bring out all these
cases.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: But hon. Mem-
bers who speak, must have an idea of
relevancy too. Other hen. Members
can certainly try to bring them to-
gether and interpret in a different way.
Of course, I do ‘ not attribute any
motives to anybody.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: My submission
is that even if you permit references of
this kind, you will kindly ask the hom.
Member to give the dates of these
alleged occurrences.

Dr. Rama Rao: I give this offer to
Mr. B. Shiva Rao. . . -

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is .no
question of challenging anybody here.
Whenever any statement is made by
any hon. Member on one side, the other
side must be able to answer that.

Pr. Rama Rao: If I cannot give the
exact dates, these are there on record,
and I will give the further offer for Mr.
Shiva Rac to come to Pithapuram and
see. . .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We have been
accustomed to this kind of challenge
and offer, Whatever is said here on
the one side or the other must, as far
as possible, be definite and specifie, so
that it can be answered by the other
side. A general statement of policy is
a different matter, the question of law
is a different matter, but so far as
particular facts are concerned, and
specific allegations are concerned, the
time, placed date, district, persons etc.
must be given, so that the other side
ntllay be able to refute them or admit
them.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: May I make
one observation here, Sir? I am not
asking for the precise date of any
occurrence, but I think it is necessary
that the hon. Member should specify
the year in which it occurred, be-
cause only a few minutes ago, he
mentioned an incident, which on an
inquiry from myself, he said ha&
occurred in 1941,
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‘Mr. Deputy-Speaker: As far as
possible these facts should relate to
the period after 1947.

Dr. Rama Rao: This happened in
1950, and I may submit that I do
not ask for any inquiry, judicial or
public, ‘into this. If the hon.
Member Mr. Shiva Rao himself goes
to Pithapuram and inquires from
Congressmen themselves and then he
says that “I do not find any proof of
these things”, and if he is satisfled
Lhat my statements are substantially

1 -am prepared to resign from
this House Not only this, I am
going to give you further instances
also, ‘and I shal) ‘place the ‘whole list
of cases before the hon. Member, and
let him go to Pithapuram and satisfy
himself. He need not satisfy me or
the House, but if he is satisfied that
my statements here@ are substantially
incorrect, my resignation will be in
his hands.

Why I am saying all this ‘is be-
cause instead of establishing a rule
‘of law, you are establishing a rude of
lawless law. Not -only 'are people
detained without any trial, but an
atmosphere is ¢éreated of lawlessness.
In 1948, one Mr. Mayurat Shankaran
was arrested in Malabar, and the next
day he was hantled over to the jail
authorities in a hopeless ‘condition of
lhjuries -arid in_a day or 'so he died.
It 'was the hon. Methber Mr. Kelappah
who ‘was ‘at that ‘time a very
important Congresp&nan who made a
:tatement to The Hindu bringing out

‘these facts. "The detenu was
tonl.fred in jail w}ule in police custo-
dy, and as a result in a day he died.
How did the police get the courage
to behave in this lawless manner?
Because there was this lawless law.

‘Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am efraid
the hon. ‘member §s going into the
principle of the Bill. The Bil! is
there with the principle having been
accepted. It was sent to -the Select
Committee, and it has emerged now
from the Select Committee. The
scope of the Bill is therefore narrow.
if the hon. Member wants to say that
an opportunity should be given to the
detenu to go before the Advisory
Boards and make these complaints,
then that is one matter, and if argu-
ments are advanced, they must have
a relevancy. But if any suggestions
are to be made that this Bill may be
amended or that such and such a
thing was not done by the Select
Committee, that is another matter.
But all this talk about the general
question of lawlessness etc. goes to
the root of the matter that the Bill is
not to ‘be there. The hon. Member
may reserve all this at this stage.
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‘Dr. Rama Rao: This should be
used only in an emergency and should
not be used as a normal law.
suggestion that only when the Presi-
dent or the Government declare a
state of emergency this should be
used was rejected by the Select Com-
mittee. I was in Cuddalore Jail
detained on what I consider to be
absolutely false and unlawful grounds.
I was there beaten, robbed of my
articles. I was shot at and my health
was broken. AWM these because I
had addressed a public meeting ask-
ing people to agitate against the ban
on ......

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: In what yedr?

Dr. Rima Rao: 1949. Now,
several false statements were made
against us, that we went to the jail
offices with certain demands, that we
refused to go, we wused sticks and
stones and all that. If the hon.
Member, Mr. Shiva Rao, would go to
the Cuddalore Central Jail and see
the place of flring and beating where
two of our comrades died on the spot
and one lost an eye and another
became permanently lame and see the
mark made by the shot which was
aimed at me, on an electric pole there
and if he then says ‘that my state-
ment is urtrue, I am prepared to
resign. We were helpless in deten-
tion; we could not ‘do ‘anything.

‘Pandit Thakur Das Bhargava: Gur-
gaon): Was any enquiry made?

Dr. Rama Rao: Certainly not. Two
hundred of my, comrades, went on
hunger strike for 27 days asking for
an inquiry. No inquiry was made,
unless you call ‘it an inquiry when
the district magistrate came there and
asked the man who was guilty of this
murder and went away, without see-
ing us or our memorandum We
definitely asked for an inquiry, though
we did send the memorandum to
Government, and naturally it must
have found its way to the wastepaper
basket. Two hundred of us were on
hunger strike for 27 days just asking
for an inquiry. I think I must give
some facts to the House.

Dr. Lanka Sundaram: Was it
published?

Dr,.Rama Rao: Not at all. There
was # o inquiry, no report and false
stayéients  were  published. One
thing more. On the previous day om
some lame excuse, our interviews were
stopped and our letters were cut off
for one month, so much so that for
one month we could not see any of
our relatives or send letters. We
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:could not give any publicity to this.
The next day we were going in a
procession. Processions were then
quite lawful and common. Proces-
sions were usual and the jaid autho-
‘rities never objected to them, not
even to that procession on that day.
We practically completed it. When
we came to the last stage, the super-
intendent was outside the gate—of
course most of the hon. Members
know about jail except one or two
who spoke as if they did not know.
It was a double gate. Warders with
arms, rifles and lathis were kept in-
-side the gate. Only the superinten-
-dent was outside. If we had seen
them with arms and lathis, there, we
would have stopped the procession. 1f
we had received a word that they did
not want the procession to proceed,
we would have stopped, because we
knew in what temper the superinten-
dent was. On the previous day he
was thrusting his revolver on the
chest of my leader, Mr. Gopalan. We
knew he was out to shoot us. So
we would not have gone there; we
want to achieve Communism, not to
die in jail like rats. So the next
day, when we were going in proces-
sion, without warning, without even
giving us an inkling that they were
ready for some mischief, he pounced
upcn us. About 100 yards from the

Shri B. Shiva Rao: I am reluctant
to interrupt the ‘hon. ‘Member on a
point of order. May I know if all
these details are, strictly speaking, in
order at 'this stage of the discussion
of the ‘Bill.

‘Shri A. K.:Gopalan: The hon. Home
Minister explained the jody and
happy conditions inside the jail when
he went to see some friends in jail
when he was Governor. He said
they were ‘happy, they had news-
papers and all other things were
supplied and so on. The hon.
Member is only explaining the other
side that the hon. Home Minister did
not see.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: It is not that
every statement made by the Minister
ought to be replied to, unless there is a
positive suggestion either for amend-
ment of this Bill or that the matter
was not coasidered by the Select
Committee. Every hon. Member may
have his own experience in jail—
both on this side and on that side,
under one Government or another
Government. Therefore, it will be
endless. Let the hon. Member come
to the point.

-Dr. Rama Rao: Since they are not
likely to suffer under this Bill and
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since we have suffered, I must telk
them. I am just reminded of an in-
cident when Pandit Motilal Nehru.
went to consult a physician and then.
he was telling a story; the physxcxan
was getting restless and finally N
Pandit Motilal Nehru: “What is your -
present trouble” and Pandit Motilak.
Nehru replied: “My present trouble -
is that I have a physician who has no .
patience to hear me”. Of course, I
cannot say the same thing to this.
House.

Shri C. R. Narasimhan: Can the-
jail administration be discussed here? °

Dr. Rama Rao: It is this lawless-.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I do not want-:
to keep the debate prolonged by such. .
statements. Some of the hon
friends in the Select Committee -
wanted various kinds of concessions. -
in the jail administration, their
allowances and so many conveniences,
comforts -etc. inside the jails. It is-
possible for them to say that so far
as a man is put into a jail, he ought .
not to be forgotten. When such .
serious incidents occur in jail affecting .
some of the detenus, there must be -
some safeguards. It is not wrong .
for him to vent out his feelings here -
and then say such and suchkr a thing
ought to be done. It is the duty -and .

»responsxblllty of -every Government—

‘State or Central—before ‘it exercises -
‘its powers under this Detention Act
‘the man is safe and

taken inside the jail.
to shut it out. Hon. Members will

bear with that. But I would not like

repetition of all those sorrowful and .
sickening stories. One incident is -
enough.

I do not want .

Dr. Rama Rao: I would only add
that this is the sort of terror regime -
in jails. It broke down our health
completely.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is the
remedy?

Dr. Rama Rao: The remedy is that
it must be used only as an emergency -
and not as normal law which now
the present Bill wants.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: So in an emer- .
gency these murders in jail are allow-
ed? I am not able to follow the --
argument of the hon. Member.

Dr. Rama Rao: At least it will be
limited and that is all I want to sub-
mit. So this lawless behaviour of -
the police, where they looted and
hundreds of women......
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Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We are now
.going into another story. It is true.
I did not expect every hon. Member
to know the details. I would only
arge upon hon. Members to bear this
-constantly in mind: What is the
Bill that was referred to the Select
~Committee? How has it emerged
from the Select Committee? What
.are the points in the minutes of
~dissent which require consideration?
These are the points on which the hon.
Member must concentrate.

Shrimati Sucheta Kripalaai (New
‘Delhi): If he makes a constructive
suggestion...... .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I do not know
Tow far the case is......

Dr. Rama Rao: I will not trouble
you, Sir.

‘Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is no
-gquestion of troubling. I must regulate
‘the debate in the House. I am
2nxious to hear the hon. Member as
:much as possible; only he must be rele-
-vant.

Dr. Rama Rao: Coming to the point,
this authority to detain a person
.should not be left to an executive
officer like a district magistrate who
in the ultimate analysis is the police
.inspector, but it must be restricted, at
least as a brake, as suggested in the
.minutes of dissent, to the Home
Ministers at the Centre and in the
.States. Otherwise, what happens is
that the freedom given to the sub-
inspector is misused. This lawless-
ness on the part of the police creates
.a situation where the people are
.compelled to take law and order in
their own hands. Just because there
was no law and order in the country
and custodians of law and order went
.about raping and murdering, several
.incidents happened wherein people
took law and order in their own
hands. But the Party in Opposition
has been blamed for so many unlaw-
ful and violent acts. This black
Act—about which our friends are
very sensitive—this black Act gives
+that power of lawlessness into the
hands of the lower executive. There-
fore, I submit it must be restricted at
every stage. Tt should be used only
in an emergency, and it must be used
.only by the Home Ministers at least
whom we can expect to use it with
.caution and care. It should also be
used very sparingly.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: So many emi-
‘nent lawyers have taken part in this
jebate, both for and against this
measure, that I felt the point of view
5f a layman would not be out of

-Committee said a

~
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place, especially of one who served
on the Select Committee, who listened
very carefully and attentively to
-the discussions that took place in the
Select Committee and weighed each
proposal made for the amendment of
the Bill by various members of that
Committee. I must say I was greatly
disappointed with the speech of my
hon. friend, Mr. Chatterjee. He first
said that the majority in the Select
‘“peremptory no”
to every proposal that emanated from
members of the other groups. That
that is an unfounded allegation is
borne out by the report of the Select
Committee itself. Later he modified
this statement, and he grudgingly
acknowledged. ridiculing them at the
same time, that ‘“some small changes”
had been introduced. Speaking this
morning, the Home Minister explained
the main changes that have been in-
corporated in the Bili as a result of
the labours of the Select Committee,
and incidentally referred to the pro-
visions of the principal Act in order
to indicate the nature and the magni-
tude of the advance made. In view
of the speech made by the last
speaker. I think it would be relevant
to refer very briefly to the changes
that have been made in the applica-
tion of the principle of preventive
detention during the last four years.
The Home Minister made certain
casual references to that aspect of
the case, and I propose to go into a
little more detail than he did.

11 A . M.

Broadly speaking, preventive deten-
tion has passed through four stages
during the last four years; and I
maintain that at each successive
stage there has been, on the one side,
increasing restraints placed on the

discretion of the executive, and,
on the other, increasing safe-
guards provided for the detenu.
Most of the criticisms that have

been levelled against the princi-
pal Act and the report of the Select
Committee might have been valid
during 1948 and 1949. The last speaker
misunderstood the point of my inter-
ventions and he seemed to think that
I challenged the accuracy of his
statements. That was not my object.
I wanted to point out that many of
the things to which he objected, and
very rightly objected, took place, some
of them before 1948. and all of them
in either 1948 or 1949. I labour the
point because it was only in 1950
that Sardar Patel brought the Central
Government into the picture so far as
the principle of preventive detention
is concerned.

It is easy, sitting in this House, or
even outside, in 1952 to be critical of
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various acts of ihe administration in
1948 and 1949. ‘1948, nead I remind
the House, was the year in which the
great tragedy took place in Birla
House? We know there was a good
deal of searching of hearts at various
levels of the executive, both at the
Centre and in the States, whether that
‘tragedy could have been averted by
.more vigorous action, by greater
vigilance on the part of the execu-
live. In 1948, as an independent
Republic we were a few months old,
and inevitably the administration had
‘to face the serious dislocation caused
by partition. Many States, because
of large-scale retirement of senior
-cfficers, were compelled to put junior
and even inexperienced officers in
charge of districts; and I have no
doubt, not only from statements made
there, but from judgments of the High
‘Courts and even of the Supreme
‘Court, that in a number of cases ex-
ecutive officers acted hastily or on
insufficient grounds. But let us not
forget the other side of the picture:
where junior officers placed in respon-
&ibility, because there was no one else
1o take their palce, were faced with
issue like this, were they to err on the
side of the security of the State or on
‘the side of the liberty of the citizen?
They took the safer course and ‘resort-
ed to policies and actions which later,
in some cases at any rate, did not bear
the scrutiny of the High Courts. And
‘who can blame them for acting in that
manner in a very difficult situation?
“That, as I said, was th® first phase, in
1948 and 1949. when cases of preventive
detention were not referred to Advi-
;sory Boards.

It was in 1950, in the early part of
1950, that Sardar Pates brought this
“measure in this House in the light of
+experience gained in the previous two
years. At that stage Sardar Patel felt
“that he could not go further than he
did ir providing more safeguards for
detenus. The Home Minister referred
‘to the fact that at that time, under the
principal Act of 1950, though Advisory
Boards were constituted. only in a
very limited number of cases was
reference made to those Boards: Cases
cvonnected either with the maintenance
of supplies or essential services or of
detention of a foreigner. I have taken
the trouble to find out precisely what
was the prooortion of cases that were
referred to the Advisory Bozrds under
Sardar Patel's Act of 1950. and the
answer I have got is very significant.
Not more than two or three per cent. of
those cases were referred to the Ad-
visory Boards. In cases where a de-
tention order was made for reasons
connected either with the defence of
India or the security of India, or the
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maintenance of public.order, there was
no provision in that Act for reference
to an Advisory Board. It was open fo
the Government to review such cases
in consultation with a Judge, or one
qualified to be a Judge, of the Hi
Court.  But even there Mr. Chatterjee
complained that the Home Minister
gave no facts and figures to support the
proposition that in 1950 the executive
acted with a certain measure of
restraint and circumspection. = I have
figures here before me, also obtained
from official sources, which are of
{pterest and relevancy in this connec-
ion.

It was in July 1948 that the Central
Government made an attempt for the
first time to obtain the figures of de-
tenus from all States, but until a
month or two later they could not
obtain the figures from many of the
Part B and some of the Part C States.
Mr. Gopalan said in his speech on an
earlier occasion that according to his
information there were 15,000 cases of
detention at the peak of the moment.
That figure is wide of the mark. The
highest was about 8,000 at any time.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: Including
Hyderabad or excluding Hyderabad?

Shri B. Shiva Rao: 8090 on thé 15th

"April 1950 and this includes accérding

to my information which is based on
an, official statement all States, Part A,
B and C. Anyhow, I will have that
point checked. ' :

Shri Nambiar (Mayuram): I want
to know the total number so far dealt
with under the Preventive Detention
gxctt, not the figure on a particular
ate.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: This is not
question hour and the hon. Member is
not giving replies’ to questions. Ac-
cording to his own data, he is giving
the figures. ) N

Shri Nambiar: But the clarification
must be correct.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is no
harm in his stating his figures. Mr.
Gopalan said it was 15,000 and the hon.
g’[(%gber is saying that it is onky

Shri B. Shiva Rao: In the first haif
of 1948, I may repeat, these were the
figures available with the Government
of India, but in the second half of
1948 the highest was 4,800 detentions
in September of that year. In April
1949 the number rose to 5.400. Later
it rose to 8090 and then there was a
gradual policy of release, although
there was no reference to Advisory
Boards. The number dropped to 7,500
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in Novemtl;legrh 1949 anddthen gg::'le 1'53
again a slight rise and in i
the figure was over 8,000. But after

summer of 1950 the number of
detenus diminished considerably -and
at the end of 1950 it had dropped from
8,090 to 3,200. That was the second
phase of the application of the princi-
ple of preventive detention immediate-
ly on the Central Government coming
into the picture.

Sardar Patel’s successor, Shri Raja-
gopalachari, introduced an amending
Bill in February of last year, and the
result of that amending Bill was that
the working of the prinicipal Act was
considerably liberalised so as to require
the reference of all cases of detention
to three-member Advisory Boards.
That point is of particular significance,
and I repeat it because Mr. Chatterjee
was not here a few minutes ago, but
he has now come into the House.
Under the principal Act of 1950, 98 per
cent. of the cases of detention were
not referred to Advisory Boards, but
after the amendment of the Act in
1951 all cases were to be referred to
three-member Advisory Boards. Mr.
i tterjee made the point that as a
result of such reference to Advisory
Boards over 1,200 cases of detemtion
were found to be on inadequate
gounds and those detenus were te-

ased. I must confess that I am not
able to :grasp the significance of that
statement. On the other hand, I should
have thought that a fair-minded
«critic weuld have given credit to .the
Government of India for having had
the fairness to refer all those Ccases,
which previously had not been so
referred, to Advisory Boards and fer
acting so promptly and so generously
on the advice of these Boards. It
was also provided in the amending
Bill that in any case where the
detenu so desired he could be heard
in person. There was further an
express provision enabling the
Goverpment to Ttelease detenus on
parole.

Apain, let me come to the other
aspect of facts and figures. I said
a minute or two ago that the number
of detenus at the end of 1950 stood at
3,200. By the end of May 1951 the
number had dropped to 2,100. At the
end of August 1951 it was below 1.900.
Figures were given by the Home
Minister at an earlier stage of the
debate, detailing month by month
the releases of detenus since the
beginning of this year, and at the end
of May 1952 the number of detenus
was 990 in the whole of India. This
background is necessary to appreciate
what I said at the beginning, namely,
that many changes have been incor-
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porated in the Bill as a result of the
labours of the Select Committee and
the first thing that any fair-minded
person would readily concede is that
the Bilh has been considerably im-
proved by the Select Committee.

There has been a good deal of com-
plaint. Mr. Chatterjee said that un-
fettered discretion has been placed in
the executive officer who passes the
order of detention in the first place.
He did not choose to point out that
that officer hereafter must place all
particulars bearing on any detention
order before the State Government
for its final approval and obtain that
approval within twelve days. Under
the old Act, he was expected to sub-
mit to the State Government only
those materials which bore on the
necessity of the order, in other
words, materials which in his opinion
justified the passing of the order.

Another important step taken as a
result of the labours of the Select Com-
mittee is that the State Government,
after giving its approval to a detentiom
order, should communicate it as soon as
may beto the Central Government for
information. I would like to point out to
the House that taking this amendment
with rection 13 which authorises the
Central Government to revoke 'a
detention order. the amended measure
as it is now before the House gives:
the 'Central Government a much
larger ‘measure of authority and ‘-
fluence to ensure that the provisions
of the Act are applied with due eir-
cumspection and restraint.

Another new clause that has beenr
added ensures that the Chairman of
every Advisory Board should be a
rerson who is or has been a judge of
a High Court. The period within
which the reference to an Advisory
Board should be made has been
tl:leduced from six weeks to thirty
ays.

Another point of importance—ana@
this Mr. Chatterjee was candid enough
to acknowledge—is that once a per-
son has been detained and has served
his period of detention a fresh order
can be passed against him only on the
basis of fresh facts. Therefore, k
maintain that the result of the work
of the Select Committee, taking in one
sweep as it were the various Acts that
have been in operation, both Centra¥
and State, has been a very consider-
able advance in favour of the detenus.
This Bill, if placed on the statute book.
would, I submit, fcr all practical pur-
poses be both fool-proof and knave-
proof. I make this point because
crities of this measure have indulged
in a good deal of criticism and have
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poinied out many unsatisfactory
teatures in the administration of this
Act, practically all of which relate
‘to the first period of 1946 and 1949,
since which time this measure has
been changed beyond recognition.
‘They have been flogging not only a
dead horse, but a horse which died
more than two years ago and they
thave had tc exhume the bones of that
dead horse in order to flog them on
the floor of this House.

I have another complaint against
the Members of the Opposition who
have been indulging in ' criticism
against the various provisions of, the
Act and the manner in which it has
been administered. Mr. Gopalan
read out, when he made a long speech,
from this volumg Civil Liberties in
India. Unconsciously I hope, he gave
the impression to the House that he
was quoting from the actual texts of
the various detention orders which
were passed by the 'Madras Govern-
ment under the Maintenance of Public
Order Act. I took the trouble of
obtaining a copy of that volume. It
is a very interesting volume, and it is
also very interesting to observe what
use Mr. Gopalan made of this volume.
Appendix No. I from which he read,
does not contain the actual texts of
any of the detention orders. It is
in many cases a summary in three or
four words prepared by Mr. S.
Krishnamevurthy, Secretary of the
Madras Civil Liberties Union, indi-
cating the nature of the charges under
the Maintenance of Public Order Act.

I will read just two or three of the
summaries which were prepared by
this gentleman to indicate the one-
sided and the thoroughly mischievous
nature of these summaries. One
man is supposed to have been detain-
ed: for participating in a mill strike;
another man, because he appears in a
red uniform; a third man is supposed
to have been detained because he
attacks Government’s food policy; a
fourth man because he spends ‘his
time read’'ng Communist literature.
And then. Sir. may I come to Mr.
‘Gopalan himself.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I read out the
whole thing about the man who was
arrested for wearing a red shirt and a
white pyjama.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: 1 will have
-something more to tell Mr. Gopalan
before I finish. I now come to Mr.
‘Gopalan himself. I am prepared to
place abundant material before the
House to indicate the utterly irres-
ponsible and mischievous nature of
this sort of thing which has been
bandied about on the floor of the
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House and my hon. friend has given
the impression that these are textual
reproductions of detention orders.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I had the book
with me and I clearly stated that it
was a summary of the detention
orders. I did not say that I was
reading from the actual detention
orders.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon.
Member, Mr. Shiva o evidently
wants to remove any doubt or mis-
apprehension that might have been
created in the minds of hon. Members.
The impression that was left in the
mind of several hon. Members was
that wearing a red shirt and .white
trousers was all the charge against
the detenu; whereas. Mr. iva
wants to say that it was only one of
the several other charges.

He may be allowed to proceed.

Shri A. K. Gopalan,: Even if it was
only one of the several other charges,
that charge™alone, wearing a red shirt
and a white pyjama, makes the other
charges illegal.

-
Shri B. Shiva Rao: I c¢an see my
hon. friend becoming very uneasy.....

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I am not at
all uneasy. I have got a bundle of
detention orders which I shall read
out to you.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: May I seek the
protection of the Chair, Sir? We
listen to hon. Members opposite
patiently.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker : Let, me regulate
the debate. It is not unparliamentary
if an hon. Member speaks with force
and emotion. According to Mr. Shiva
Rao the hon. Member is feeling
upeasy—that is his reading.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Let me deal
with my hon. friend himself. He
said he had a copy of his own deten-
tion arder in front of him, but be
chose to read the summary. I am
reading from the report of the pro-
ceedings of the House on that day:

“Mr. Gopalan: The main
grounds of detention are: 1947:
ex-President of the Kerala
Congress Committee; Resigned
from the Congress Party; stood as
a Communist candidate in

Calicut; collected Rs. 8,000 for
Communist party funds; demand-
ed an enquiry into the conduet
of corrupt officials and black-
marketeers; condemned the Cong-
ress people for running after joba,
and so on.”
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"There is one. little sentence wh:ch
he did not want to read.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Is the order
agamft Mr. Gopalan wholly extracted

Shri B. Shiva Rao: I am reading a
passage from Mr. Gopalan’s speech in
which he has indicated the grounds of
bis detention. After he knows
his own grothds of detention very
much better than anyone else. He
created the impression in the House
that what he was reading from this
volume represented a fair summary of
the grounds of detention given to him
by the Madras Government.

_8hri A. K. Gopalan r0se—

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Let me proceed ;
I protest against this sort of inter-
ruption.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker : So far as facts
are concerned, if an hon. Member
says that is not what he said, I think
he must be given an opportunity to
explain.

Shri B. Spiva Rao: I am coming to
the expkanation.
S0 uneasy that he does not want me
to proceed.

: Mr. Deputy-Speaker: My recollec-
tion is what is reported in the speech
is from his own detention order which
he read in extenso,

Shri B, Shiva Rao: I will satisfy
you in a minute, Sir, because I have
here the full text of the detention
order against Mr. Gopalan and I want
you and I want the House to judge
how far the summary that he read out
and which he wanted the House to
understand as a fair summary is
correct. I am reading from Mr.
Gopalan’s own detention order issued
by the Chief Secretary to the Madras
Government, on the 9th of December
1948. . I hope you will allow me a
few minutes, because it is - a point of
some importance:

“Mr. Gopalan is one of the
accredited leaders of the Commu-
nist Party in Malabar. The
Communist Party has of late
launched a campaign of utter law-
lessness in Malabar, committing
dacoities in out of the way places,
assaulting innocent persons, for-
cibly snatching fire arms from
licence-holders and intimidating
the public in many ways.

In 1946 Mr. Gopalan incited the
Mapalas of Eranad.””—yeu and I
know very well what exvlosive
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atmosphere can be ecreated in
Malabar and particularly in
Eranad—“Mr. Gopalan incited the
' Mapalas of Malabar to precipitate
a communal revolt in furtherance
of the party’s plan to create wide-
spread unrest and was arrested
and proceeded against under
section 107. He exhorted the
Police to go on strike and to dis-
obey the orders of their superiors
when dealing with strikes sponsor-
ed by the Communist Party.”

I have not the least objection to-
place the whole of the document op
the Table of the House. I do not.
want to take the time of the House..
(Interruption).

“Speaking at Alathur on 3rd
November, 1947......

Shri A. K. Gopalan: If the whole-
charge-sheet is placed on the Table-
of the House, I am not against it, Sir.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon.
Member himself is giving way. Various
extracts were read by the hon.-
Member, Mr. Gopalan, on this side-
from various detention orders trying
to make it appear that the grounds of
detention were so absurd that any
honourable man could be arrested and:
detained. So far as I can under-
stand, the intention of the hon.
Member, Mr. Shiva Rao, is to show
ithat the grounds are not such harm-
less things as have been made to-
appear but more serious things. If°
he wants to refer to them, let him do
so. I find that hon. Members start
something and then collapse and put:
it to the Chair to intervene between
the troubles here! 1 allowed Mr.
Gopalan to read certain things. I
have no objection to Mr. Shiva Rao-
reading certain other things. If I find
that it is irrelevant I will tell him so.

Shri A, K. Gopalan: I am not
against his reading the extracts. The-
whole charge-sheet may be read. T
am not against it.

Shri Feroze Gandhi (Pratapgarh
Distt.—West cum Rae Bareli Distt.—
East): On a point of information, Sir.
When Members of the Opposition are-
soeaking, th2 Speaker does not allow
any of us to make any interruption.
We have to keep our mouths shut.
May I know -wvhether you intend to
follow the same practice? When
Members on this side speak, all the
time there is interruption.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Certainly I
will not allow any hon. Member to-
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interrupt. But the hon. Member him-
self ought not to invite interruptions!

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Sir, if truth in-
vites interruptions I cannot help it.
But I must in all fairness place the
facts before the House, the actual
grounds of detentior in the words in
which the order was communicated to
the hon. Member.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let him read.
Shri B. Shiva Rao:

“Speaking at Alathur on 3rd
November 1947 he incited disaffec-
tion amongst the - ranks of the
Police suggesting that the police-
men should do only six hours
duty. * *

Speaking at Mannarghat on
10th November, 1947, he said that
:Sub-Inspector”—Sir, I shall omit
the name—*“so-and-so was going
to create Hindu-Muslim riots and
that the Collector and the Deputy
Superintendent of Police had
made use of this Sub-Inspector to
prepare the scene for British rule
to come back.

On 16th November 1947 at
Talikkara he held out a threat
that if the Sub-Inspector of Nada-
puram was to continue his ways
he would have to face the same
fate as  Sub-Inspector _ Kutti
Krishna Menon who was killed in
:)l;e kcourse of a rioting a few years

ck.”

Dr. Katju: That is soft language!
Shri B. Shiva Rao:

“Speaking at Tellicherry on
18th November, 1947, he incited
the public against the Malabar
Special Police by alleging that
they _were responsible for several
atrocities and threatened them
"with dire consequences when the
Communists came into power at
a future date.”

I am sorry that my hon. friend Dr.
Syama Prasad Mookerjee is not here.
Oh, he has®come.

“Speaking on Fth December,
. 1947, he incited the public against
Head Constable Ananda Kurup,
advocating that he should be
killed like Sub-Inspector Kutti
Krishna Menon.”

My friend comes in at a very con-
Venient moment.

“He (Mr. Gopalan) spoke in
contemptuous terms of the
Government of India and said
that it consisted of reactionaries
like Syama Prasad Mukerjee,
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R. K. Shanmukham Chetty and
Baldev Singh who were responsi-
ble for the communal riots in
the country.” .

These are the actual grounds of~
detention  communicated to Mr.
Gopalan by the Madras Government
from which he sought to create the-
impression in the House that he was .
giving a fair summary. It may be-
of passing interest... .

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: Please read .
the whole of it.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: The matter -
was decided by a court and I was
acquitted in al} the three cases to-
which he referred. When a case has--
been decided upon in court, is it in_

. order...

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We are going-.
into what followed.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I was acquitted.. .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon. .
Member, Mr. Gopalan, said that many
of the charges were apparently so
absurd that no charges could be made.
It is another thing for the courts to -
come to the conclusion that particular
charges have not been proved. We -
are in the initial stage now. Possi-
bly the hon. Member may come to -
some more cases decided by the courts.
There is a saying in my part of the
country. *“As soon as a Reddy or patilt .
comes, once again the purana must
be started”. Merely because Dr.
Syama Prasad Mookerjee has come in,
should it be repeated once again?

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Sir, I will not
start the purana once again—not the -
whole of it.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Yes, not the -
whole of it.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: It will interest
the House to know that when Mr.
Gopalan read out this summary from
this volume regarding himself, he -
omitted one little sentence. The
House will be interested to know the
manner in which the summary was
made, that Mr. Gopalan objected to -
the appointment of Mr. . K
Shanmukham Chetty and Dr. Syama
Prasad Mookerjee. That one sentence
he did not read out to the House
when he read out the summary. Of °
course I can understand...

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is the -
objection?

Shri B. Shiva Rao: ... the idea being'-
that Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee has:
passed through a certain reformation: .
and is a good littke boy.
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Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: What is the
point? The police said that Mr.
‘Gopalan said that Syama Prasad
Mookerjee was an undesirable person
in the Cabinet.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is un-
.fortunately some unnecessary mis-
understanding created. The hon.
Member evidently was reading, be-
fore Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee
-:came in, from the authentic copy that
was obtained from the Madras Govern-
ment regarding the grounds of deten-
“tion of Mr. Gopalan. Then he said
-ithat a reference was made even to
such hon. Members like Dr. Syama
. Prasad Mookerjee as reactionaries in
-the Government.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: So far as I
--could gather, in the grounds of deten-
“tion which were supplied it was men-
‘tioned that the police said that Mr.

Gopalan said that so-and-so-was

v reactionary. Mr. Gopalan said he
«did not say it, and that was proved.
"That is the sort of grounds on which
people are detained.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker : The hon.
"Member is now reading the grounds
~that were submitted to the detenu.
"He has not yet come to the next stage
+of the decision of the court.

Shri B. Shiva Rao:

“In one of the speeches Mr.
* Gopalan said that if the present
. state of affairs continued, many
.incidents like the Jallianwala
- Bagh would be repeated in the
history of the country. He also
stated in one of his speeches that
* he told the Collector (of Malabar)
once that if the Communists were
- to come to power they would dig
a trench and bury those belonging
to the Malabar Special Police”.

This is the kind of...

Shri Nambiar: Cock and bull
s+ stories.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I have repeat-
--edly asked hon. Members not to be so
impatient. They lose their case by
showing such impatience. It does
- not give them an advantage. I shall
see to the best of my ability that there
is no interruption unnecessarily, so
- far as hon. Members on either side are
concerned. Let not the thread of it
i be disturbed. It applies to both sides.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Sir, 1 shall leave

" Mr. Gopalan alone with the statement
on the grounds of order given to him

by the Madras Government. My

only purpose was to indicate that in

:giving this House summaries of such
~orders, they should at least be fair and
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indicate what were the grounds which
were communicated to them.

In the course of the debate the
Home Minister put a straight question
to hon. Members sitting opposite and
said: Will you give a categorica
assurance that you will abjure
violence, then there will be no need
for an Act of this kind on the statute
book. And Mr. Hiren Mukerjee
went into a long and very eloquent
passage about people’ rising up in
arms, people suppressed for genera-
tions and so on, and he said: If
there is murder, if there is some blood-
shed, after all it is like the prick of a
thorn on a rose bush.

The other day Mr. Gopalan read a
certain extract from the judgment of
Justice Mack of the Madras High
Court and he referred to it with
approval. I too will quote a judg-
ment given by Justice Mack and it
was on a bail application case before
the appellate side of the Madras High
Court. It is dated the 3rd of
November 1951, Mr. M. V. Sundaram
and 42 other Communists in the
Ramanathapuram conspiracy case
appealed to the High Court for bail
and this is what Justice Mack said on
beﬁalf of his brother judge and him-
self:

“The accused were charged with
conspiracy with the object of over-
awing the Government by crimi-
nal force and acts of violence bet-

ween January 1949 and June
1950...",

Shri Nambiar: On a point of order,
may I say that this case is sub-judice
as the case is pending in the Hi
Court and any reference to that is
not justified.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: The bail appli-
cation is complete.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: So far as the
bail application is concerned, the sub-
ject has been disposed of.

Shri B. Shiva Rao : The first accused,
Mr. Sundaram had filled an affidavit
before their Lordships end in
judgment Justice Mack observed:

“This application for bail has
been supported by an affidavit by
Sundaram, the first accused”—

I am quoting the words of the Judge:

“With rather an astonishing
attempt to explain and justify
throwing of bombs included in
the overt acts alleged in pursuance
of the conspiracy.”
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“One paragraph in_the affidavit stated
the following and I am quoting from
the judgment:

“The unprecedented repression
let loose by the Government on
the members of the Communist
Party had resulted in the
members of the party resorting to
these acts.”

His Lordship said that this was an as-
tonishing line of defence for the user
of country-bombs angd explosives in
self-preservation—whether of the indi-
vidual or party is not clear,

He added and again I am quoting
from the judgment:

“I{ was -a very disturbing
feature of this application. It
could be regarded in fact as an
invitation to the courts them-
selves to uphold and justify the
use of bombs by a pohtical party
or its members which under no
eircumstances whatsoever could

ssibly be tolerated or justified.

'he affidavit reveals the existence
of a most subversive doctrine
seeking to justify resort to the use
of bombs, explosives and all kinds
of violence as self-defence against
the alleged repression of the
Government.”

The last speaker complained that in
Andhra, whereas the armed Commu-
nists were- killed by the police, the
police would not obligingly stand in
the way of the bullets released by the
Communists; and that is another act
of repression - oan the part of the
Government, I suppose!

. Let me-go back
judgment:

“A further disturbing feature
ma;ntest in the present trial is the
faeility with which the members
of the Communist Party abscond
when .wanted in connection with
cases against them and successfully
evade arrest for long periods.
The modus operandi plays fast and
loose. with the entire criminal
machinery of the law, holding up
cases indefinitely and results in
absconding accused having to be
tried over and over again in
separate trials. It is extremely
difficult to absolve the Communist
Party organisation from responsi-
bility for this technique. It is a
reasonable inference that the or-
ganisation is aware where the
accused absconding in the present
case are.”

I do not want to take more time of
the House, but Mr. Chatterjee in the
124 PS.D,

to Justice Mack’s

1 AUGUST 1952

(Second Amendment) 5032
Bill.

concluding portions of his speech said
“Parliament is on its trial”. I entirely
agree with him that Farliament is on
its trial. Whether the Bill should be
put on the statute book, what shoqld
be its provisions, what should be its
duration—these are not questions
which are answered by the Prime
Minister or the Members of his Govern-
ment. .These are questions which can
be answered satisfactorily only by
Members sitting opposite.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee in one of his
most eloquent passages in his last
speech dramatized a certain incident
in this House more than 20 years ago:
that Pandit Motilal Nehru was sitting
where Shri Gopalan was sitting and
Vithalbhai Patel was sitting where you
are sitting at present and he said that
Pandit Motilal Nehru denounced the
principle of preventive detention with
all the vigour of ‘which he was capable.
That is perfectly true. At that time
may I suggest to Dr. Mookerjee that
the method of the ballot box was not
open to the Swarajist Party. Entren-
ched on these Benches was insolence’
in all its might. The slogan at that
time was: “Let the dogs bark but the
caravan marches on”. 1s that the
situation at the present moment?

Mr. H. N. Mukerjee threw a
challenge at us and said: Why does
not the Prime Minister or any member
of the Congress Party contest the
election in any part of the ecountry?
Why did we miss that opportunity six
or eight months ago? They speak
glibly of the millions of India, but for
whom they speak? Dr. Mookerjee
spoke of the millions whose views he
reflects on the floor of the House.
looked at the results of the General
Elections. There are not many
millions. Dr. Mookerjee’s party
represents not even one million; not
even half a million; it is 268,000. The "
Congress Party got 38 million votes’
out of the 52 million and that is the
support behind this measure. If Mr.
Chatterjee asks: How long is this
law going tc be on the statute book, I
again repeat, the answer can be fur-
nished not by Members of the Govern-
ment sitting here but by the Members
sitting opposite.

Shri Sarangadhar Das (Dhenkanal—
West Cuttack): On this occasion I have
no desire to go into the details of the
Bill. As I said on a previous occasion,
I as well as my party were opposed
to the very principle of it. I went into
the Select Committee to see if the pro-
visions of the Bill as well as the parent
Act could be moderated and brought
nearer to the fundamental principles
of democracy, namely, personal liberty.
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As my colleagues have already stated,
we failed to convince the majority.
It has been mentioned that certain
improvements have been made and it
has been said in such a way as if we
were the beggars and our friends
opposite were generous enough to give
us something.

I wish to pcint out particularly
about other couniries where democracy
is of a longer duration. Take, for
instance, the United States of America,
where I happened to live three decades
ago and I lived there for over a decade.
At that time, the Communist Party
was not born, but the anarchists were
bug-bears for the Americans. They
had, in their immigration law, which
may have been changed now, not
mentioned the Communist Party. But,
every immigrant who went from
foreign countries had to say on »jath
that he did not believe in anarchism.
In that way they were screening the
anarchists and keeping them out of the
eoinfry: In spite of that, some people
Beca anarchists. There was a good
denl 52 propaganda by their leaders all
ovér the counfry and they preached
anarchism and said that the Govern-
ment should be changed by force.
But, you will be surprised to know
that there was no action taken. Their
audiences were few. No action was
taken in initiating proposals for a pre-
ventive detention law because that is
absolutely against the fundamental
rights of freedom of speech, and free-
dom 6f association enunciated in their
Constitution. The principles of their
Constitfution are so sacred even to the
ordimary man in the street that no
Gevernment ever dares to encroach
upon those rights. Yet,® anarchism
would not spread there.

Since then, things have changed.
From the reports that I read in the
papers and books coming from ‘that
country, I find that to every American
whetker he is in the Government or a
private citizen, Communism is like a
red rag to a bull, Communists and
Communism will subvert the American
weay of life. That is why they see red
everywhere. Yet, as vou know, Sir,
there §s no Preventive Detention Act.
Lately. there have been Communists
who, as spies for Russia. have delved
into atomic secrets. Some of them
were caught selling them to Russia.
¥ven then America has not initinted
any Preventive Detention Act. Thev
have other laws by the due process of
wsrhich thev punish them. In that way
Communism does not spread. The
people who are anxious to protect their
eivil liberties are in such a position
that Communism does not grow there.
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Similarly, recently in Japan, the
Constitution that was promulgated, I
believe it is after the American pattern,
because American occupation forces
under General MacArthur were doing
everything to introduce American
democracy into Japan that had gone
through all kinds of authoritarian rule.
In that Constitution, there is no pro-
vision for a Preventive Detention Act.
Recently there were riots against
Americans. Some Japanese friends
who came to India, only a few days
ago, assured me that those riots were
engineered by the Communists and
perhaps some North Koreans resident
in Japan. But, there is no preventive
detention. Under the ordinary law, the
leaders of such disruptive forces are
taken in hand, they go to the law
courts and there they are suitably
punished.

So it is in the United Kingdom and
1 do not think it necessary for me to
repeat all that, because the provisions
and judgments in the United Kingdom
have been often quoted here and I
cannct improve on them.

In our counrty, if we go into the
genesis of the Preventive Detention
Act, we find that in Hyderabad, after
the Police Action and after the defeat
of the Razakars, trouble was created
there by certain elements, which, I am
bold to say, owed allegiance to another
an extra-territorial power. However
that may be, because of that trouble
and because of the disturbances in the
neighbouring Andhra country, the Pre-
ventive Detention Act was rushed
through by the late Sardar Patel when
he was the Home Minister. The im-
pression was given at that time that
it was a temporary measure. When
our friends opposite say that the pre-
sent Bill has many improvements that
the original Act did not have, and that
the number of detentions has been
decreasing from 1950, I wish to pre-
sent another aspect of this decrease.
Does it not show that the trouble that
was started, that was rampant in
Hvderabad and the Andhra country in
1949-50 has subsided? All over the
country, barring Hvderabad—the *case
of Saurashtra is mentioned now—
barring these two places, there is no
case for this Act to handle any dis-
ruption. There is no disruption.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am afraid the
on. Member is going back to the
sacond reading stage. The House has
accepted the principle that this Bill is
necessary and also sent to the Select
Committee. Is it necessary to touch
upon the parent Act now? What the
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Select Committee has done, what the
Select Committee has not done, that
would be the subject matter at ihis
stage.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: May I sub-
mit, Sir, that just now Mr. Shiva Rao
went back to the past. I am trying to
prove that the Act is not necessary and
then I shall come to the second stage to
show how the Act has been abused
and so I will have to go back.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Mr. Shiva Rao
referred to the cases of detention and
grounds, etc. It had been alieged that
the Act had been abused, that there
must be something like a judicial
tribunal. He said that the Act nad
not been .abused, these were the
grounds, the grounds had been quoted
in part, that all the grounds had not
been tully placed beiore e House,
that only a portion had been placed
and so on. That is quite relevant.
There is no good going back to ihe
parent Act now.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: 1 am going
back only to this extent, about
the beginning of the Act in 19s0.
I am not going back any further
than that. What I mean to say
is this that although the Home
Minister and the speakers on the other
side have always repeated in their
speeches that this Act is not intended
against any political party, but from
all the Speeches here as well as else-
where, it is evident that the Com-
munist Party is the target (An hon.
M‘emoer: No, no.) but I also agree
with you that it is not the Communist
Party alone but all political parties
that oppose the Congress that are the
targets. This is my point. I will give

Mr, Deputy-Speaker: I am not going
to allow ims, waatever the hon. em-
ber.may teel. This is going back once
again to the principle or the Bill, Whe-
ther it was to be accepted or not was
discussed at length at the consideration
stage, and if it was not acceptable, it
could have been thrown out. The
House has accepted the principle. All
that the hon. Member can now say is
that some of the rigours of the Bill may
be removed, some other amendments
may be made, or some improvements
effected. That is all that is open to
any hon. Member at this stage.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: I -omi
to that. gad am coming

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is no
good coming to that in a dilatory man-
ner like that,

_Shri Sarangadhar Das: It is not a
dilatory manner.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I will not allow
any relerence to tne principles.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: On a pre-
vivus occasion L was not ailoweda to
speak, and now atker giving me a
cnance...

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am sorry on
the previous occasion he had no cnance
to speak. He cannot refer to all that
now.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: I am not
reterring to inat wcident. I am com-
ing to the pont whnere the Act sull
needs some improvement, particularly
that the Act should not be applied all
over tne country. it is not necessary.
In order to prove that I have w gave
some of tne inciieats that have not
been mentioned here.

About two years ago, this Act was
appiled in Assam m conrection with a
bye-election to the seat of the Chief
Minister Shri Bardoloi when he died.
Because the Socialist Party was con-
tesiing there, some tour or five days
beiore poiling, there was a raid to arrest
the R.C.P.I. people who were taking
shelter in Assam. It was my rarty
that had informed the Assam Govera-
meat that the R.C.P.I. were forming
pockets in different places in Assamy
and they should be watched, but
nothing was done, but the Act was
used 11 rounaing up Socialists and
Socialist sympathisers in that consu-
tuency due to which the Socialist Party
lost and the Congress won.

Some Hon. Members: Absolutely
false.

Shri Beli Ram Das (Barpeta): Abse-
lutely talse. I come from that
constituency. I was member of that
constituency for 15 years. There was
not a single arrest of any Socialist.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: I do not want
to be disturbed. I am here to speak.
You can speak afterwards,

An. Hon. Member: He is uneasy
now.

-Shri Sarangadhar Das: Talk about
uneasiness here, there is uneasiness on
the other side rather.

12 Noox

The same way it is being applied
against inconvenient men in the trade
union movement. In Bombay today
there are about five or six trade uninn
leaders under detention. There is one
De Mello, a very powerful man and
now Secretary of the Bombay
Dack Workers’ Union. He was named
by mv party as a candidate in’ that
dock area, and in the month
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of August before nomination papers
were to be filed, he was
spirited away. He 1is still un-
der detention in Bombay jails. If
a man organises trade unions, and it
there is a rival trade union try-
ng to monopolise, then if
the subedars of the Central Govern-
ment, the Chief Ministers, find the
man inconvenient, they clap him in
jail under the Preventive Detention
Act. Many a time challenges nhave
been given and it was discussed in the
Bombay Council lately, but the Chief
Minister said that he is a dangerous
man. Well I ask, it he is a dangerous
man, if his Union demands that he
should be tried in a law court, why
1s he not tried? That is why I say
this Act is being used in order to op-
pose all Opposition whether it is Com-
munist, Hindu Maha Sabha, Socialist
or any other party. Any party ‘hat
is opposed to.the Congress 1s persona
non-grata to my friends opposite and
consequently the Act has to be used,
because in the law courts, the cases
cannot be won.

. There is another instance in Orissa.
Although the Preventive Detention Act
was not on the statute book then, the
Public Maintenance of Order Act
which was in existence in some of the
States was used against a Socialist
worker who had gone among the tribal
people. His movements were restrict-
ed. He was given notice to appear
before the superintendent or 1ihe
deputy superintendent of police and
give his programme of tour. If he
changed that programme, he must g0
back to the superintendent or deputy
superintendent of police, although he
might be 15 or 20 miles away, inform
him, get his sanction and then alone
could he start his new programme.

This is another Act in _ line
with the Preventive Deten-
tion Act that came later,

which was used to stifle opposition.
Fortunately for me, I was in that area
when this order was passed on this
Socialist worker. It was said the
Adivasis, the tribal people, are excit-
able, and there should be no party pro-
paganda among them. I went all over
that area, many of the tribes that
live in the Keonjhar district, and
found them the most peaceable people.
I saw one case in a village where this
Socialist worker had helped the vil-
lagers to initiate a school. As our
Governments do not establish any
schools. a public organisation goes
and initiates a school there, and they
‘were building a little mud-house
which was stopped by the police saying
that the Government orders were such
that they could not build this school
for the ignorant village people. On

the one hand, we have ignorance all
over the country. Our Education Minis-
try says we must remove this ignor-
ance within ten years or twenty years,
whatever their Five Year Plan is,
and when we go to the State Govern-
ments, there is no money to establish
schools, and when some public organi-
sation with a litile bit of money wants
to put up a school, it becomes the
Socialist Party’s school, consequently
it must be stopped, prevented., That
was done in the district of Keonjhar.
I know of other instances which I do
not want to say because they are
similar.

Shri Syamnandan Sahaya (Muzaf-
farpur Central): Was the school closed
under the Preventive Detention order?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: It was under
the Orissa Public Maintenance Order,
similar to the Preventive Detention
Act, the elder brother, that was born
before.

Pandit Thakur Das Bhargava: In
what year?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: Although I
have said that I do not see the neces-
sity for this Act, it is being enacted
this time for a longer period up to
the end of 1954. We tried to have a
shorter duration for the Act, so that
Parliament may get facts and figures
if necessary and review it from time
to time. and then decide whether to
prolong it or to stop it. But that also
failed. My contention is that in the
name of suppressing Communism and
the Communist Party in India, the
party that is now in power, and which
is now well-known to be the sup-
porters of vested interests, the sup-
porters of the stotus quo of Indian
Society...

Shri Syamnandan Sahaya: Where
are the vested interests? They have
been completely abolished.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: To maintain
the status quo of our society, that
party says to us “We know every-
thing well. Whatever we say you
must carry out, so that there cannot
be a;tly change in the structure of our
society.” It is not law and erder. it
is not peace and tranquillity that is
really behind the mind of the mover
of this Bill,

‘When you take into consideratioen
the way it has been abused, I also
have to point out another thing. If
the Communist Party in the Telen-
gana and in the Andhra areas created
these troubles and these disruptions.
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: ask what was our police and magis-
acy uolug were:  During the last
tour or five years, our police and our
magistracy ail over the country have
oecome ncompetent and inefficient. 4
suould like to ask tnis question today.
now 1s 11 wien lnai although Laik Ah
was pui under house arrest instead ot
in jad, ana how is 1t that although a
very high officer oi the police, such as
e  uepuly inspector-General of
Police or some otner high officer was
guarding the House, he did not know
ubout the escape of Laik Ali till two
aays aiter he had departed? That is
why 1 say, our police, and our C.LD.
are not watchtul. I may recall here
what an American writer, Mr. John
Gunther who wrote a book on Asia
said 1n this conneciion. He said that
last time he was going through India,
the Home Member or the Home Secre-
vary of the British Government had
saa: “Tnis tuime wiien Congress wants
to do anything or wants to have
satycgraha or cause any trouble dur-
myg ihe war. we have their auribers.
We have the *aumber of every leader,
evey sub-leader, &nd every sub-sub-
ieader, and every village-worker, and
we will nab them in 24 hours” I
ceed that when I was in Jaii under
detention, and I felt that
the British at that time were very
efficient, in getting at everybo;iy.
But  what is our police doing
woday? When there is some trouble
in any place in Orissa or in any other
State, and when it comes to the top,
they get at tacse people who have
sheltered these disrupters and harass
them and put them under detention.
Incstead of improving the efficiency of
the police, and getting at the proper
officers in the proper places, what is
Government doing? What the Gov-
ernments in the States are doing is
simply to cover up their inefficiency and
incompetency through this Preventive
Detention Act so that any one who
criticizes Government and becomes a
little inconvenient in any place where
the Opposition Party begins to grow
and the Congress begins to wane,
may be hauled up under this Act
which could be applied to him or
against any party to which that person
belongs.

"

I have aiso other cases that have
happened recently. Dr. Syama Prasad
Mookerjee had mentioned a case in
Ajmer. I lrtve here signed declara-
tions by M.L.As., M.Ps., many muni-
cipal commissioners etc., who have
pleaded for him and said that he is
ot guilty of the charges that have
ween framed against him. A large
nimber of journalists also had signed

. taere, because the person concerned
was a journalist himself. (Interrup-
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tion) The hon. Member can sey what
he wants to say aiier L have rinisnea.

They have all pleaded for him...

Shri Jwala Prashaa (:Ajmer North):
lay 1 Know tne names oL iwhe M.Ps.?

Saii sarangdaar Das: Two M.L.As.
Mr. Arjun was, MI. Parasuraa, oue
ivico.,, M. ML L. bdig, dadd Owier pel-
sons, municipal  Comnissioners, auvo-
cales; medical practiiioners, journalisis
etc,,... :

Shri R. K. Chaudbury (Gauhali):
May 1 know whether py M.P., medical
practitioners are meant?

Siri Chatvopadhyaya (Vijayavada) :
Or does it mean ‘Major foet?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: It is some
poiitical  jeatousy undger wnich tine
party has' kKept unader detenuon ing
people  from the Opposition. Waea
ramie conaditions prevailed in Hissar,
in Punjab, my party was asking the
people to protest against it, ‘ana w go
w the district - magistrate or the
deputy commissioner to represent their
grievances. But there two people
nave been detained just a few days
ago.  (neerrupaon) gcrom all  ths,
you will see that it is the Communisc
Party which is using violence. 1 know
tnet:t. But the Socialist' Party docs
not.

Ch. Ranbir Singh (Rohtak): Wil
the hon. Member cite the names or
the persons who have been detained?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: The Sociaiist
Party believes in constitutional agita-
tion, in performing satyagrana to right
any evil that is before us. It is all
peacetul. (Unterruption) By fasting
they do not take the liberty of others.
They are free to fast as they please.
That is a personal matter.

Under these circumstances, how is it
possible that these men who do not
belong to the Communist Party are de-
tained? It is just simply detaining
every inconvenient man or woman who
happens to belong to some Opposition
party. And finallyy I put it before the
House that although in the Select
Committee we had given our notes ot
dissent, the amendments were reject-
ed by the majority, that is, the
Congress Party—about 30 of them. You
must consider, Sir; whether there is
such a necessity now to have this Act
to cover the whole country. Barring
Hyderabad and Saurashtra, there is
no trouble anywhere. (An Hon.
Member : Rajasthan) In Rajasthan
it was ircompetency. Since Rajasthan
was formed, I remember the way the
villagers killed a magistrate and some
police officials in Karauli, when Sardar
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Vallabhbhai was living. That sort of
thing you cannot throw at us without
looking inwards and finding out what
they have been doing. Because these
disruptive elements are abroad and
they can kill a magistrate, a law that
was never known is being introduced.
I know Rajasthan politics, I know
what was happening in Kajasthan be-
fore the elections, I know some of my
friends in Rajasthan, very dea:
friends, who were wanting to dis-
franchise the rulers. I was one who
was unwilling to subscribe to it. 1
said I have not worked for the Rajas
or Maharajas. I worked for ten years

giving up my industrial career
to end feudal rule. Feudal rule is now
ended. But the Raja or Maharaja 1s
just as much a citizen as I am. How-
ever, my friends from Rajasthan were
trying to win over the people by dis-
franchising the Rajas and Maharajas.
That is not the way of democracy.
What happened in Rajasthan? It 1s
no use my telling here now, but I
can say in short that with most of the
States that were merged or formed
into Unions, Congress organisations
began to peter out from that time.
There was no Congress work among
the masses and consequently, the
vacuym was filled by any other party
that happened to be there. So my
frignds cannot give the instance of
Rajasthan. I say no other State, ex-
cept Hyderabad and Saurashtra, is
disturbed and the Act should be ap-
plicable only to those two States and
nowhere else until there is apprehen-
sion of imminent danger and the Cen-
tral Government or the President de-
clares that there is a disturbed condi-
tion in a certain area, and then only
can Government take action.

Swami  Ramapanda Tirtha (Gul-
berga): I have to participate in the
discussions at a stage where the
principle of this enactment has been
agreed to. I, therefore, do not want to
g0 into the merits or otherwise of the
necessity of enacting this legislation.
I have been listening to the speeches
of some of the Members and I thought
it was necessary for me to say what I
feel in the present context.

Do not consider us to be so mean as
to feel that no Opposition should be
allowed under a  democratic regime.
That is not at all the intention. We
are wise enough to know that demo-
cracy cannot flourish except under the
eriticisms of the Opposition. It would
be uncharitable on the part of the
Ofposition to say that this measure is
directed against the Communists. Not
st all. It is only directed against
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suliz
those elements, sections, individuals,
Wno resort 10 violence, Wno Iesori
to certain acts which are directed

against the very fundamentals o1 wne
Constitution, 1 am not atraid of the
Communists. Why should 17 Because

it 1s airter all people who will de-

cide whether they would like a paru-
cular order, economic or otherwise. 1
need not be afraid of any school of
thought. Enough tor us that we be-
lieve in a particular ideology, preacn
it and we shall convert the peopie v
our own point of view. 'lheretore, the
law that is being promulgated shouid
not be construed to be a hit against
the Communist Party.

My friend, Mr.
has quoted certain instances. I have
had the pleasure of working with him
some years back, and I teel if there is
any genuine grievance against the use
or misuse of a partucular law, 1t has
to be voiced. But to feel that this law
is being promulgated to crush the
Socialist Party: I think it would be
the greatest error on the part of any
democratic Government to try to sup-
press any political party with the force
and strength of the bayonet. We know
Communmism cannot be crushed by

Sarangadhar Das, '

bayonets. We know that, but it is aiso *

clear that no society, no social order,
no economic order can be ushered in
or allowed to be ushered in at the
point of the bayonet. That is all the
purpose oif this Act. I, theretore, appeal
to my friends who differ from us not
to cast aspersions and say that we
want to erush you, Who are we to
crush you? It is not bayonets that
crush 1deologies, as I have said.
After all this democratic regime
I do call it a democratic regime in spite
of all the objections raised against it;
it is a ‘democratic regime—if at all
this democratic regime is to survive,
we know it is by bettering the lot of
the people and not by promulgating
such an Act. That we do realise. But
I say we are passing through a period
of tramsition and looking to the past.
I have the boldness and the courage
to say that the situation is still fluid.
I do not know what situation may
arise a two months hence. I am not a
poet and I am not going to quote any
verses here, but [ can say that certain
developments are taking place, certain
incidents are being fostersd. and we
do not know where this is going to end.

Something has been said about
Hyderabad. I do not want to dilate
upon that subject. I do not want to
say anything about Telengana also be-
cause the past is unhappy, and let us
bury the past. There were atrocities
on the part of the police in a parti-
cular context which was also atroclous.

—~
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let us forget that. But today why
fgouel’c;l we not feel reassured that
there will be no recurrence of violence?
Is it too much to expect this of any
political party? The right of vote is
there and I do not think that those of
us who are sitting on the Treasury
Benches feel that for all times, as the
‘froverb goes—81a7 & faarsa —
we are going to occupy these Benqhes.
Well, democracy works through jolts
and changes, let it take its own course.
But when a mentality is being created
that it is the bayonet and the sten gun
snd recourse to violence that will
change the social or the economic
order, it is our duty to tell the pegple
that it is not going to pay. I believe
{he purpose of this Act is not to hit
~any political party. I would humbly
submit that in Hyderabad so far as I
know no such hit has been given
under a popular regime- and it
*will not be given in future. I
can assure my friends about that. But
there are certain democratic practices
and conventions, methods and ways.
If they are followed I do not think that
the Home Minister of this Governmant
would ever feel the necessity of put-
ting into execution any of the_ provi-
sions of this Preventive Detention Act.
An argument has been advanced that
#his Act should be applied to parti-
cular parts of India only. I do not
know what parts are entitled to its ap-
plication. = My friend. Mr. Saranga-
dhar Das said that Hyderabad may
be considered as a suitable place. My
friends of the opposite section who
differ from Mr. Sarangadhar uJas
would say that it is not at all neces-
sary in Hyderabad. So. it is the whole
sitvation that you visualise and the
country as a whole that vou consider,
‘?nd when you feel that it is necessary
(o] prevent recurrence of such sub—
i versive and violent activities, the Act
» becomes applicable to all the narts of
% India. In what parts it will actually
2 o eorate depends upon the situation.
[

# 1 would humbly submit to the
Home  Minister that the misgivings
tbeing entertained by friends on the
Jother side are because there were cer-
Main misuses. wrong uses to which
%pch Acts were directed, and it is no-
Puty to remnve those misgivings. to
Mo away with them, and to reassure
bur friends that this Act is not direct-
A against any political party, be it the
-ommunicts.  the Hindu Mahasabha
$he Socialists or anv others. I would
n all humility submit that as Ae-
$nocrats we have to see that everw
arty has the freedom to provagate
s idras democraticallv and that no
ch liberty is suppressed.

£ One word mcre and 1 shall have
firivhed. T know that India is passing

3
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through a critical period. There is a
clash of ideologies and it is bound to
be there because the world is in such
a stormy atmosphere. But it is also
equally true that the storm and the
excitement and the turmoil can be
pacified only by bettering the lot of
the people. That is a positive ap-
proach and with that positive ap~
proach if we proceed I am sure the
day will not be far off when this Pre-
ventive Detention Act will not be
found necessary in this land of ours..

I hope I have put before the House
what we on this side feel about this
enactment. It is an extraordinary
legislation, no doubt, but it is neces-
sary, and the sooner the necessity for
such an enactment goes the better for
all of us because then we shall feei
that in India there is not any activity
which may go against the very funda-
mentals of the Constitution.

Shri Seshagiri Rao: I wil] not speak
on the prianciple of the Bill beeaus:
hon. Members who preceded me have
spoken on it at length. There aye
four fundamental rights that hzve
been conferred under the Constitutipn
of India on the detenus, namely, first-
ly. the right of enquiry before an
Advisory Board, secondly, that the
detenu must be able to get the grounds
of his detention “as soon as may ba”,
thirdly, that he must be given the
earliest opportunity to make a repre-
sentation, and, fourthly and more im-
portant than all these, that the maxi-
mum period of detention should be
given in the Act. The peculiar feature
of this Preventive Detention Aect is
that it eontains verbatim the exact
words that are foynd in the Constltu-
tion. Article 22(8) ef the Constitu-
tion says:

“When any persen is detained
in pursuance of an order made
under any law providing for pre-

. ventive detention, the authority
making the order shall, as soon as
may be, communicate to such per-
son the grounds on which the
order has been made and shall af-
ford hl'm the earliest opportunity
of making a representation against
the order.”

‘How far these two mandatory pro-
visions have been followed in this Bill
is an important point. In section 7
of the Act it says:

“When a person is detained in
pursuance of a detention order.
the authority making the order
nicate to him the grounds om
shall, as soon as may be, commu-
which the order has been made and
shall afford to him the earliest op-
x{yrtunity g'f making a representa-

fon.........
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Vallabhbhai was living. That sort of
thing you cannot throw at us without
looking inwards and finding out what
they have been doing. Because these
disruptive elements are abroad and
they can kill a magistrate, a law that
was never known is being introduced.
[ know Rajasthan politics, I know
what was happening in Rajasthan be-
fore the elections, I know some of my
friends in Rajasthan, very dea:
friends, who were wanting to dis-
franchise the rulers. I was one who
was unwilling to subscribe to it. I
said I have not worked for the Rajas
or Maharajas. I worked for ten years
after giving up my industrial career
to end feudal rule. Feudal rule is now
ended. But the Raja or Maharaja 1s
just as much a citizen as I am. How-
ever, my friends from Rajasthan were
trying to win over the people by dis-
franchising the Rajas and Maharajas.
That is not the way of democracy.
What happened in Rajasthan? It 1s
no use my telling here now, but I
can say in short that with most of the
States that were merged or formed
into Unions, Congress organisations
began to peter out from that time.
There was no Congress work among
the masses and consequently, the
vacuym was filled by any other party
that happened to be there. So my
friends cannot give the instance of
Rajasthan. I say no other State, ex-
cept Hyderabad and  Saurashtra, is
disturbed and the Act should be ap-
plicable only to those two States and
nowhere else until there is apprehen-
sion of imminent danger and the Cen-
tral Government or the President de-
clares that there is a disturbed condi-
tion in a certain area, and then only
can Government take action.

Swami Ramapanda Tirtha (Gul-
berga): I have to patticipate in the
discussions at a stage where the
principle of this enactment has been
agreed to. I, therefore, do not want to
go into the merits or otherwise of the
necessity of enacting this legislation.
I have been listening to the speeches
of some of the Members and I thought
it was necessary for me to say what I
feel in the present context.

Do not consider us to be so mean as
to feel that no Opposition should be
allowed under a_ democratic regime.
That is not at all the intention. We
are wise enough to know that demo-
cracy cannot flourish except under the
criticisms of the Opposition. It would
be uncharitable on the part of the
OPpositlon to say that this measure is
directed against the Communists. Not

st all. It is only dirécted against
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those elements, sections, individuals,
Wno resort 10 vioience, WNo TIesoru
to certain acts which are directed

against the very tundamentals o1 e
Consutution, 1 am not atraid of the
Communists. Why should 17 Because
it 1s arter all people
cide whether they would like a paru-
cular order, economic or otherwise. 1l
need not be afraid of any school ol
thought. Enough tor us that we be-
lieve in a particular ideology, preacn
it and we shall convert the people v
our own point of view. Theretore, the
law that is being promulgated should
not be construed to be a hit against
the Communist Party.

My friend, Mr. Sarangadhar Das,
has quoted certain instances. I Lave
had the pleasure of working with him
some years back, and I teel if there is
any genuine grievance against the use
or misuse ot a parucular law, 1t has
to be voiced. But to feel that this law
is being promulgated to crush the
Socialist Party: I think it would be
the greatest error on the part of any
democratic Government to try to sup-
press any political party with the force
and strength of the bayonet. We know
Communism cannot be crushed by

who will de-

bayonets. We know that, but it is aiso °

clear that no society, no social order,
no economic order can be ushered in
or allowed to be ushered in at the
point of the bayonet. That is all the
purpose of this Act. I, theretore, appeal
to my friends who difter from us not
to cast aspersions and say
want to crush you.
crush you? It is not bayonets that
crush 1deologies, as I have said.
After all this democratic regime
I do call it a democratic regime in spite
of all the objections raised against it;
it is a ‘democratic regime—if at all
this democratic regime is to survive,
we know it is by bettering the lot of
the people and not by promulgating
such an Act. That we do realise. But
1 say we are passing through a period
of transition and looking to the past.
1 have the boldness and the courage
to say that the situation is still fluid.
I do not know what situation may
arise a two months hence. I am not a
poet and I am not going to quote any
verses here, but [ can say that certain
developments are taking place, certain
incidents are being fostered. and we
do not know where this is going to end.

that we
Who are we to

Something has been said about
Hyderabad. I do not want tc dilate
upon that subject. I do not want to
say anything about Telengana also be-
cause the past is unhappy, and let us
bury the past. There were atrocities
on the part of the police in a parti-
cular context which was also atrocious.
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let us forget that. But today why
Elc;ould we not feel reassured that
there will be no recurrence of violence?
Is it too much to expect this of any
political party? The right of vote is
there and I do not think that those of
us who are sitting on the Treasury
Benches feel that for all times, as the
Hroverb goes—51a1 w7 faarsa —
we are going to occupy these Benches.
Well, democracy works through jolts
and changes, let it take its own course.
But when a mentality is being created
that it is the bayonet and the sten gun
:nd recourse to violence that will
change the social or the economic
order, it is our duty to tell the people
that it is not going to pay. I believe
“{ne purpose of this Act is not to hit
-any political party. I would humbly
submit that in Hyderabad so far as I
know no such hit has been given
under a popular regime- and it
*will not be given in future. I
can assure my friends about that. But
there are certain democratic practices
and conventions, methods and ways.
If they are followed I do not think that
the Home Minister of this Governmant
would ever feel the necessity of put-
ting into execution any of the provi-
sions of this Preventive Detention Act.
An argument has been advanced that
#his Act should be applied to parti-
cular parts of India only. I do not
know what parts are entitled to its ap-
plication. =~ My friend. Mr. Saranga-
dhar Das said that Hyderabad may
be considered as a suitable place. My
friends of the opposite section who
differ from Mr. Sarangadhar uJas
would say that it is not at all neces-
sary in Hyderabad. So. it is the whole
situation that you visualise and the
country as a whole that you consider,
jnd when you feel that it is necessary
‘0 prevent recurrence of such sub—
versive and violent activities, the Act
becomes applicable to all the parts of
India. In what parts it will actually
rmerate depends upon the situation.

I would humbly submit to the
HHome Minister that the misgivings
being entertained by friends on the
other side are because there were cer-
tain misuses. wrong uses to which
spch Acts were directed, and it is no-
duty to remove those misgivings. to
do awav with them, and to reassure
cur friends that this Act is not direct-
ed against any political party, be it the
Communists.  the Hindu Mahasabha
the Socialists or any others. I would
in all humility submit that as Ae-
mocrats we have to see that everw
varty has the freedom to provagate
_its idang democratically and that no
:such liberty is suppressed.

One word more and I shall have
fivivhed. T know that India is passing
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through a critical period. There is a
clash of ideologies and it is bound to
be there because the world is in such
a stormy atmosphere. But it is also
equally true that the storm and the
excitement and the turmoil can be
pacified only by bettering the lot of
the people. That is a positive ap-
proach and with that positive ap-
proach if we proceed I am sure the
day will not be far off when this Pre-
ventive Detention Act will not be
found necessary in this land of ours.

I hope I have put before the House
what we on this side feel about this
enactment. It is an extraordinary
legislation, no doubt, but it is neces-
sary, and the sooner the necessity for
such an enactment goes the better for
all of us because then we shall fsel
that in India there is not any activity
which may go against the very funda-
mentals of the Constitution.

Shri Seshagiri Rao: I wil] not speak
on the principle of the Bill beecause
hon. Members who preceded me have
spoken on it at length. There are
four fundamental rights that hgve
been conferred under the Constitutipn
of India on_the detenus, namely, first-
ly. the right of enquiry before an
Advisory Board, secondly, that the
detenu must be able to get the grounds
of his detentlon “as soon as may be”,
thirdly, that he must be given the
earliest opportunity to make a repre-
sentation, and, fourthly and more im-
portant than all these, that the maxi-
mum period of detention should be
given in the Act. The peculiar feature
of this Preventive Detention Aect i
that it eontaing verbatim the exact
words that are foynd in the Constltu-
tion. Article 22(8) of the Censtifu-
tion says:

“When any person is detained
in pursuance of an order made
under any law providing for pre-
ventive detention, the authority
making the order chall, as soon as
may be, communicate to such per-
son the grounds on which the
order has been made and shall af-
ford him the earliest opportunity
of making a representation against
the order.”

How far these two mandatory pro-
visions have been followed in this Bill
is an important point. In section 7
of the Act it says:

“When a person is detained in
pursuance of a detention order.
the authority making the order
nicate to him. the grounds om
shall, as soon as may be, commu-
which the order has been made and
shall afford to him the earliest op-
portunity r's,t‘ making a representa-
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They are the same words, “as soon
as may be”, as are found in the Con-
stitution. What is intended in the
Constitution is that a certain time-
limit should be given so that the
authorities may not say that the
reasonable time is a month or two
months. The Select Committee has
rightly come to the conclusion that
not more than five eays at the latest
should be given. The time-limit is
important because the detenu must
have the earliest opportunity to make
the representation. What is the op-
portunity that is going to be .gxyen?
The important point is that within 3
week or three or four days the de-
tenu must be taken to the State Gov-
ernment so that he may make the re-
presentation. What is the | earliest
opportunity? 1Is it only giving him
some pencil and paper? - Or is he go-
ing to be taken to the St.ate. Govern-
ment? Under the Constitution, the
only important right which
a detenu has is of making re-
nresentations to Government and also
ihe right of enquiry by the Advisory
Board. This is not clearly defined in
Section 7 and the same phrase
“earliest opportunity” is used. Is it
ome month or two months? Especially
when the order is going to be follow-
ed by a reference within twelve days,
he must be given the earliest op-
rortunity to appear before the State
Government and express his case,

I am not inclined t6 support the re;
presentation of 3 detenu ‘by a lega
nractitioner.  Article 22 (1) says:

“No person who ‘is arreqted
shall be detained in custody with-
out being informed, as soon as
may be, of the .grounds for such
arrest nor shall he be denied the
right to consult, and to be defend-
ed by, a legal practitioner of his
choice.” S

But 22 (3) says:

“Nothing in clauses (1) and (2)
shall apply—

(a) to any person who for the
time being is an enemy alien; or

(b) to any person who is arrested
or detained under any law provid-
ing for preventive detention.”

Therefore, as long as the Constitu-
tion remains as it is and is not amend-
ed, representation by legal practi-
+ioners is not possible. It would be
<gainst the Constitution, But I want
10 know whether by liberalising the
provisions this right can be conferred
upon the detenu.

1 AUGUST 1952

(Second Amendmesit; T
Bill

One'new provision that has been .
made is that a {resh detention can
only be made if ccrtain fresh facts
are brought to light. But what would
be the position if certain facts- are
brought to light when the man is in
detention? Could he ke  detained
again on the basis of thos:z facts? i
want to have clarification on this
point.

Shri Altekar (North Satara): As a
legal practitioner ior the last thirty
years and also as a siudent ol iaw
and the philosophy of iaw, i woull
like to state that the civil law of 2
free nation is the reflection of the be-
naviour and culture of thc society and
the sections of socicty in that nation,
and the criminal law is the reaction
of the State " towards the behaviour
and culture of the society or sections
(_u‘ society in that nation. When it
is said that we are enacting a black
law or that this Preventive Detention
Act is an unusual Act, we have to
take into consideration the objective
~onditions in the country. ff you
simply sit in a room lize a philosopher
or a professor of law and lay down
how the law should be, what the in~
dividual rights should be and how
they should be protected. without any
relation whatsoever to the behaviour
of the sections of the society in the
nation, then you will be doing a.thing
which is entirely unconnected. with.
the objective conditions in.that nation.
I beg to point out that when we ere
enacting this Preventive Detention
Bill and certain provisions are made
therein, we do so becausz of the neces-
sity imposed by conditions that obtain
at present. When it is stated that in
the Select Committee certain oro-
vosals were made and that they were
not accepted, I beg to submit that the
whole attention to this Rill has been
given by taking into con=ideration the
conditions that obtain in the country -
and, as a matter of fact. the utmos!
concessions have been given and the
clauses that are now before tha House
after return of the Bill from the Selec! .
Committee are such as are necessita‘ed
by the circumstances thnt « vin
day. When various demands a
by the Opposition that the dotenr
should have the help of a legal nra:ti
tioner when the case come: vp he
fore the Advisory Board or that a!
the facts available to the Government
should be given to the detenu. it ulti
mately comes to this that there should
be a regular trial and nothing more
and nothing less. The only guestion
is whether the circumstances ‘hat
obtain today can permit such a faci-
lity, that is, whether we can rule ac-
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ing to the normal law. I beg to
Z?ﬁ)dlngg that the provisions are such
as are necessitated by the circum-
stances of the time.

There is a great obsession in the
mind of the Opposition that this Act
1s intended to crush political op-
ponents. There is nothing of the kind.
If you look at the various parts of
the country during the last few years.
you will find that a sort of technique,
a mechanism, a’' method has been em-
ployed by some anti-social elements
ihat makes it almost impossible to
bring the culprits to book. It is im-
possible to maintain peace and order
and tranquillity through the_qrd.mary
iaw of the land and the provisions en-
visaged here are necessary for this
purpose.

in certain districts of Bombay State,
the villagers come and say that there
is no regular rule by the Government
in their area, because crimes and
murders are committed; arson and
looting are indulged in. An ordinary
person finds it difficult to lead a
peaceful life. The difficulty is felt
when it is stated that there should be
- witnesses; there should be cross-
examination; there should be the help
of a pleader and so on. For, these
villagers are living under such ter-
rorism that they are unable to come
forward and state what is actually
happening. They come to you and
say: “These acts have been per-
petrated. Please do not mention our
names, but somehow or other bring
the offenders to book.” When the
people concerned are themselves so
much terror-stricken, you can imagine
how difficult it would be for witnesses
to come and state what has happened.
I shall just state how these people be-
have. I have nothing to say with res-
pect to any political party. I only
speak of certain anti-social elements
who want to thrive, by preying upon
the common man. They have got un-
licensed arms; they form themselves
into a gang; and the victims are so
terrorised that when the police come
they are afraid of giving any informa-
tion. The witnesses too are afraid of
coming forward and giving evidence.

Anothner technique which is usually
resorted to by these culprits is to efface
altogether any trace of evidence that
may be available, I will just cite a
few cases that happened after the
elections. In a certain village there
was a person, a patil, who was said to
be a Communist. He was kidnapped.
No one knows where he is. There was
another person who stood as a candi-
date on the Socialist ticket. He was
kidnapped by three persons with un-
licensed arms. They are known to be

124 PS.D
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criminals. No one knows where the
kidnapped person is. A friend of
mine who also happens to be a friend
of that Sacialist says that both these
persons have been done away with
and as a matter of fact they will never
see the light of the world again.

The technique that is usually fol-
lowed by these persons is this. Tney
take the victims to a very distant, re-
mote and secluded place. They cut
him to pieces and these pieces are
thrown into the deep waters of a river
where great fishes eat them away. 3o,
there will not be any trace of :he
victims.. Such persons we have to
deal with; such persons have to he
brought to book. The poor villagers
are not in a position to raise their little
finger, or even their voice, againsy
these persons. They are very much
afraid on account of the atrocities
committed by them They are afraid
to seek the help of the police and the
magistracy. They say: if we seek the
aid of the police or the magistracy.
the next day our houses will not he
there; we do not know where we our-
selves would be.

We have, therefore, to root out these
unsocial elements who, as a matter ot
fact, are having a rule of no law in
several villages. Here in this House
we hear sermons on civil liberties sna
individual rights, and the protectionr
of rights of a detenu. It was said that
the detenus should be given legal aid,
that he should be allowed to lead evi-
dence and also that he should have the
right to cross-examine witnesses, j
submit that on account of the rule of
terror that obtains in several of the
villages, mo witnesses would come tv
give evidence. In these circumstances
we have to see whether the rights «.f
such persons who are a menace to
society, and who, as a matter of fact.
if I may use a strong word, are preying
upon society as ferocious animals, are
to be protected. If we give legal help
and the right of cross-examination to
such detenus who are behaving in this
manner, no witness would come for-
ward to give evidence.

Shri B. S. Murthy (Eluru): On a
point of order, Sir, The hon. Member
used the words “ferocious animals”
and immediately referred to detenus.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: So long as he
has not referred to any hon. Member
here, he is in order. He thinks they
are all in the nature of animals. We
have not evolved from that stage.

Shri Nambiar: There are ex-detenus
here.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The ex-detenu
is an hon. Member of this House now.



5079 Preventive Detention 1 AUCUST 1952  (Second A'rgea'rlldmem) 5080

[Mr. Deputy-Speakerl

he is no longer a detenu. Many hon.
Members on the other side of the
House too are ex-detenus.

Shri Altekar: I myself am an ex-
detenu.

I am only speaking of persons who
. are a menage to any civilised society.
I do not at aill refer to any political
party, or persons holding particulas
ideologies. I am only pointing out
that such przcautions ani such
measures are necessary for the pur-
pose of maintaining peace and
tranquillity in the country. If there
is no such measure it will be atsolutely
impossible to catch hold of such
persons and bring them to book. That
is what we are actually expcriencing
in the Bombay Presidency for so many
years. Here are the figures I have
with regard to Bombay Presidency.

On the 28th February i951 there
were only 21 political detenus and 66
criminal detenus; on the 21st August
1951 30 political detenus and 94
criminal detenus; on 29th February
1952, 34 political detenus and 146
criminal detenus; on 30'h June 1952,
29 political detenus and 214 criminal
detenus.

An Hon. Member: What is meant
Yy criminal detenus.

Shri Altekar: Persons who have
been detained for comunitting criminal
acts like arson, murder, daccity, etc.,
and whose previous history shows
that they have indulged in such
crimes. -

I submit that unless there is such
a measure, there will not be any peace
and tranquillity in the zountry. What
people actually say is not that there
should not be such an Act, but that
it is not being used properly and
sufficiently. They ask: why are you
so much restrained in using it against
such persons.

So far as these persons are con-
cerned, I may say that many of them
are persons who are not connected
with any political party or opinion.
They are anti-social elements and
their activities have got to be curbed
in an effective manner so that such
crimes may not <‘ake place again.
When afflicted persons come to us they
say: unless you are ia a position to
bring these persons to book you have
no right to rule the country. When
we ask them who tkese people are
they say that they come near you;
some times move rourd you. But you

do not know them. You go only by
their outward appearance. They are
not like the Rakshasas of Ramayana.
They appear to be o-dinary persons,
but as a matter of fact we know
exactly how they bekave and what
they do. I am reminded here of an
incident in Ramayand. Rama, after
Sita was kidnapped, was going in
search of her and was moving
towards the South. He thean came
near 18ke Pampa. Having come there
he saw a white bird with tall legs,
a long beak and white feather
(An Hon. Member : Not a white cap?)
and he said to Lakshmana: “Oh,
Lakshmana, see on the bank cf this
Pampa this white bird ; he appears to
be a saintly one—

9T FEAT qqrar aF:  qeATIReE: |
TR arars st aERigm u

He lifts his toe gently and paces
forward very slowly so that no insect
may die underneath.” When these
words of Rama were heard by a fish
in the lake, that fish is reporied to
have said :

gAY faonarty agafy faafeay
a5 & auid aq g fasglosa: o

“Only an associate knows the
behaviour of his comrade, Rama, what
praise are you bestowing upon this
white bird who has totally annihilated
my family!”

So, when such sort of persons are
there moving in society and the
ordinary law is not sufficient to catch
hold of them, to curb their activities
and to bring them to book, we have
to enact measures that will as a matter
of fact enable the Government to
prevent such sort of crimes happening,
to prevent such atrocities being com-
mitted. And we can do this by the
measure that is before the House. I
submit that the measure that is before
us and that is being enacted by us has
given almost all the corcessions that
could be given so that the individual
liberty of the detenu or his rights may
be protected to the extent that they
can be protected. The other alter-
native before us w2s to drop the
measure altogether and to have
recourse to the ordinary laws and say
let there be any sort of chaos 1n
society and let the Lives of millions or
people be subjected to the atrociues
and tortuers of some anti-social
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elements. Are we going to do that?
That is the question before us. If we
are to maintain peace and tranquillity
in the country, if we are to maintain
the civil liberties of millicns of pecple
in thjs countiry, if we are to maintain
that the social life of the vast number
of villagers that are dwelling in the
lakhs of villages in this country
should go on smoothly and peacefully.
then such a measure as is being
enacted here is absolutely neccssary,
and we have enacted only such
provisions as are necessary for the
gurﬁose of bringing these persons to
ook.

I submit that if we look at the Bill
as it has emerged frum the Select
Committee it can bhe seen that we
have, as a matter of fact, while
considering the main Acl, given four
~ncessions to  the Opposition’s
demands. Originally, section 7 was
not in any way sought to be amended.
But when a demand wus made by the
Opposition we agr:zed to make an
amendment. What was originally
provided in section 7 was that the
grounds may be made known to the
detenu as soon as may be. When
there was a demand that a specific
time should be put in there, we agreed
and we have put in “ as soon as may
be, but not later than five days from
the date of detention”. That was the
concession that nas been given.

l1pm

Then in section 8 it .was asked what
should be the composition of the
Advisory Board.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Is the hon.
Member concluding? ’

Shri Altekar: No. Sir, I shall
require another fifteen or twenty
minutes.

. Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Then he may
continue in the ~fternoon.

MESSAGES FROM THE COUNCIL OF
STATES

Secretary: Sir, I have to report
the following two messages received
fsl‘tté)‘rtr:3 the Secretary of the Council of

S

(i) “In accordance with the
provisions of rule 125 of the Rules
of Procedure and Conduct of
Business in the Council of States,

am directed to inform the
House of the People that the
Council of States av its sitting
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held on the 31st Julv 1952, agreed
without any amendrient to the
State Armed  Poiice  Forces
(Extension of Laws) Bill, 1952,
which was passed by the House
of the People at its sitting held
on the 15th July, 1952.”

(ii) “I am directed to inform the
House of the People that the Code
of Criminal Procedure (Second
Amendment) Bill, 1952, which was
passed by the House of the People
at its sitting held on the 1ith Jjuly.
1952, has been passed by the
Council of States at its sitting
held on the 31st July, 1952, with
the following amendment :

‘That in clause 7 of the Bill at
the end of clause (a) of the
proposad section 132A of the
principal Act, the words “so
operating” shall pe added.

I am, therefore, to return here-
with the said Bil in accurdance
with the provisions of rule 126 of
the Rules of Procedure and Con-
duct of Business in the Council
of States with the request that the
concurrence of the House of the
Teople to the :aid emendment be
communicated to the Council.”

CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE
(SECOND AMENDMENT) B1LL

Secretary: Sir, I beg to lay on
the Table of the House the Code of
the Criminal Procedure (Second
Amendment) Bill. 1952, which has
been returned by the Council of States
with an amendment.

RESERVE AND AUXILTARY AIR
FORCES BILL

PRESENTATION OF REPORT OF JOINT
COMMITTEE

The Minister of Defence (Shri
Gopalaswami) : I beg to present the
Report of the Joint Committee on ihe
Bill to provide for the constitution
and regulation of certain Air Forrce
Reserves and also an Auxiliary Air
Force and for maitters connected
therewith.

The House then adjourned till Half
Past Three of the Clock.

m———
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The House re-assembled at Half Past
Three of the Clock.

[MR. SPEAKER in the Chair]

PREVENTIVE DETENTION (SECOND
AMENDMENT) BILL.—contd.

Shri Altekar: T was dealing with
the question of the amendments that
were effected in the sections of the
original Act and which were not
previously amended in any way by
the original Bill that is here before
us. I dealt with the amendment that
is effected in sectivn 7 of the original
Act and that now...

Shri Feroze Gandhi: There is no
one there on the Treasury Benches.

Shri Gadgil (Poona Central) : I am
representing for the (ime being.........

Mr. Speaker: I do not think I could
permit a private Member to represent
the Government. (Interruption) It is
not a question of a point of order. It
is a point of propriety.

Babu Ramnarayan Singh (Hazari-
bagh West) : They do not deserve to
be there.

Shri Altekar: In the original section
7 of the Preventive Detention Act the
words were ‘“as soon as may be”, but
the Select Committee have substituted
the words “as soon as may be but not
later than five days from the date of
detention”. There is only a period
of five days that is given to supply the
grounds to the detenu from the time
that he is detained.

Further in section 8 wherein the

composition of the Advisory Board is
given, the present amendment reads
us follows:

“The appropriate Government
shall appoint one of the members
nf the Advisory Board who is or
has been a Judge of a High Court,
to be its Chairman, and in the
case of a Part C State, the
appointment to the Advisory
Board, of any person who is a
Judge of the High Court of a
Part A State or a Part B State
shall be with the previous
approval of the State Government
concerned.”

Mr. Speaker: Order, order.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: As we are
giscussing a very important Bill, I
suggest the House may be adjourned
for two minutes till somebody from
the other side is present in the House.
We fear that the absence of Members
on the Treasury Benches is an
indication that they do not want to
hear even what we want to say. We
feel that this discussion Is a very
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important one. It is taken for granted
that the Bill will be passed and that
what ever we say is something thar
is not to be heard.

Shri G. H. Deshpande (Nasik—
Central) : On a point of information,
Sir. Is it the privilege of the
Opposition to criticise and then to
remain absent when one is being
replied to?

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. Such
repartees will not help a proper
discussion. I myself wanted to say
that whatever the business outside
which any individual Minister or the
Minister responsible may have, it is
necessary to remember that no
engagement outside can be higher or
of greater importance than  his
presence in this House. It is no excuse,
as the hon. Member Mr. Gadgil
suggested that there is a Select Com-
mittee, that there is this Committee
and that Commrittee. At least, 1
personally feel that the absence from
the House of the responsible Minister
is perhaps not giving the House the
attention and the respect that it is
entitled to. I can understand reasons
for absence in case of illness or
sudden . difficulties, but certainly not
any other engagement.

As regards the point which the hon.
Member is making, I do not think we
need go to the length of attributing
that they do not want to hear. I do
not think that the matter is so serious
as that. It is the usual way in which
affairs are carried on unfortunately
in our country. Nothing beyond that.
Of course, we have now one hon.
Minister from the Government who
will be taking notes. I do stress the
point that the Minister must be
present in the House.

Dr. Katju: I am very sorry, Sir.
I was just detained by two minutes.

An Hon. Member: Better late than
never.

Mr. Speaker: During the absence
of the hon. Minister—his absence may
have been quite accidental—a suspi-
cion crept in, in the minds of the
Opposition particularly, that it was
not the desire of the Government to
hear what they had to say. Of course,
I have disillusioned them so far as
I could. I also expressed the view
that whatever other engagements the
Ministers may have outside, their
presence in the House is an engage-
ment of the highest type. There may
be causes such as an accidental fall or
the motor-car not working and all
that is excusable but otherwise it is
in a sense, though not Intended,
slighting the House.
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Dr. Katju: On a point of personal
explanation, there was a very valid
excuze and so far as my anxiety to
hear the speeches of the other side is
concerned, it 1is intense, though I
anticipate what they will say.

Mr. Speaker: I do not want to go
into that chapter. I may say that I
made that remark because Mr. Gadgil
pleaded there was a Select Committee
in which the hon. Minister was present
and perhaps his case was rather
judged adversely because of the
pleading of his advocate...

The Minister of Works, Housing and
Supply (Sardar Swaran Singh) : That
is why in the preventive detention
advocates are prevented.

Shri Altekar: 1 am dealing with
the amendments that are made in the
sections of the original Act and which
were not sought to be amended by
the Bill that is placed before us.

As regards section 8 in the original
Bill there is no such provision that
there should be any Chairman and
that Chairman should be a High Court
Judge or who has been a High Court
Judge, so that he will be a man of
great judicial experience and he will
bring to bear his mind upon that
question and would give all possible
legal facilities and all possible judicial
consideration to the subject. That is
the reason why this important amend-
ment has been made and it has been
accepted. I may say that in pursuance
of the Prime Minister’s statement that
the whole Act may be reconsidered,
this important provision has been
made in this section. That no
important change has been made in
the original Act is rather a statement
which, of course, is beside the mark.
That is the least I can say about it.
Fven in the case of Part C States
where there are no High Courts, the
Chairman to be appointed will be a
High Court Judge from either a Part
A or Part B State and then in a small
State like Coorg it will have a
Board which will have as its Chairman
a High Court Judge from a Part A
or B State. So this is a very important
amendment that has been made and
cannot be so lightly overlooked.

Then we have alio made an amend-
ment in section 9:

“In every (ase where a
detention order has been made
under this Act, the appropriate
Government shaii, within thirty
days from the date of detention
under the order, place before the
Advisory Board constituted by it
under section 8 the grounds on
Wwhich the order has been made
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and the representation, if any,
made by the person affected by
the order and in case where the
order has been made by an officer,
also the report by such officer
under sub-se~tion (3) of section
3. g

So far as the other sections are
concerned, formerly the time that was
given was six weeks; now that has
been reduced to 30 days. The whole
procedure has been expedited. An-
other change that has been effected
is that along with the report of the
officer, he has to send certain papers
that were formerly not necessary to
be produced. The exact wording of
the amendment is: for the words
“have a bearing on the necessity for
the order” the words to be substituted
are : “have a bearing on the matter”.
That is a very important change. The
sub-section says:

“When any order is made under
this section by a district magis-
trate,...... he shall forthwith report
the fact to the State Government
to which he is subordinate
together with the grounds on
which the order has been made
and such other particulars as in
his opinion have a bearing on the
matter...:.."”

That is the present amendment.
Formerly, the words were: “in his
opinion have abearing on the necessity
for the order”. So that, if, according
to the opinion of the district magis-
trate or officer who had madce that
order it was not necessary to send
those papers, he could withhold ‘hem.
Now, by this amendment, all the
papers and all the documents that
may be in his possession which relate
to that matter, which have a bearing
on that matter have to be sent
irrespective of the fact whether he
thinks them to be necessary or not.
This is a very important point. Much
criticism was levelled by the Oppo-
sition that some papers may be
withheld and that the Board wiil not
be in a position...

Mr. Speaker: I may invite the
attention of the hon. Member that all
these points were made by hon.
Minister while moving the Bili and
now the hon. Member is practically
repeating the same thing. I may also
further remind him that though in
matters of legislation, there is not
strictly any time limit, I believe the
House is practically of the view that
speeches should not exceed 15 to 20
minutes. Otherwise, a large pnumber
of hon. Members will never get a
chance of speaking or giving their
views on this Bill. The hon. Member
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[Mr. Speaker]
has already taken 20 minutes. He
may now conclude his remarks with
just such things as are necessary for
the conclusion.

Shri Altekar: I shall only point cut
one important point that was not
referred. That is in connection with

section 10, sub-section (3). Formerly
the wording was: “or to appear by
any legal representative”. Now, the

amendment is, for the words “legal
representative the words “legal
practitioner” shall be substituted. So
that, what he is prevented from doing
is, he cannot have a legal practitioner
to support him ; but, if in the opinion
of the Advxsory Board, it seems
necessary that he should have some
legal aid, possibly he would be given
the legal aid of a person who is not
a legal practitioner; but possibly of
a rétired Judge or some other person
who could help the detenu on legal
points. This is an important change.

I shall now conclude by saying that
in case of emergency, the district
magistrate alone can act, and if he
is not so allowed to act, possibly there
will be a frustration of the whole Act.
Therefore, the power has to be given
to him and as a matter of fact, his
order has to be approved by the
Government afterwards. All these
amendments have been effected in
such a way that under the circum-
stances, the detenu is given the fullest
possible opportunity to have as much
aid as possible and a sort of summary
trial is provided. That is the farthest
extent to which we can go and that
has been done. The difficult conditions
obtaining in various parts of the
country have rendered this Act
necessary. To call this a black Act
or a stinking Act is to take into
consideration only the Act and not the
deeds that are behind or the methods
which are being followed by the
anti-social elements. The thing is
that they feel the stink of the halter
of the assassin. They feel the stink
of the idoform and iodine but not of
of the executioner, but not of the axe
the lacerating and the putrefying
wound that is there. They feel the
stink in the hall of the surgeon, but
not that in the den of the marauder.
They feel the stink of the measures
that are being taken against the most
anti-social elements, but not that of
the hundreds of murders and the
corpses that are putrefying all over
the country for so long a time. What
is needed is an all-round effort,
a co-operative effort of all the sections
in the country; and if they all
co-operate, this lawlessness can be
put an end to. But, if instead of
condemning the black acts and
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stinking acts, we only condemn the
measures that have been rendered
necessary today, that is not a proper
way of approaching this problem.

Shri Nambiar: This Bill which has
been discussed for so many days here,
has now come from the Select Com-
mittee. We first hoped that the Bill
would be withdrawn and we
demanded or rather requested the
majority party to withdraw it because
it is an obnoxious law which can
never find a place on the statute bouok
of any democratic country in this
world. But, unfortunately, the hon.
Minister and the majority party
refused to take that stand. Then, they
said that they would try their best
to see that the parent Act itself is
allowed to be discussed if any
considerable improvements could be
made. Unfortunately, from the
minutes of dissent we understand that
the parent Act was not greatly
touched, but only very small improve-
ments were made, with regard to
certain items such as reference to the
Advisory Board within 30 days instead
of 42 days and so on. Practically,
no unprovement worth mentioning
has been made in the Act. Therefore,
we certainly oppose the Bill tota]ly.
You may say, here is a Bill before
the House, how can you oppose. We
once again request the hon. Mirister
to withdraw the Bill and the hon.
Members to request him, to persuade
him to withdraw the Bill. That is my
attempt. Why I say so_Is this. In
thed parent Act, in section 3, it is
sai

“The Central Government or
the State Government may—

(a) if satisfied with respect to
any person that with a view t{o
preventing him from acting in any
manner prejudicial to...” That is
very vague.

“(i) the defence of India...”

Anything can be brought under
this. Any speech made about the
foreign policy of this Government
by any Member outside can be
said to be prejudicial to the
defence of India or that “it is
prejudicial to the relations with
foreign countries”. Anything can
be brought under that.

It goes on: “relations with foreign
powers or the secunty of India”.
“Security of India” is a very vague
term. I need not emphasize fit,
because anybody can understand that
any act can be said to be detrimental
to the security of India, however,
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small it may look, because in the
various detention orders passed, I can
quote that very small, flimsy reasons
are advanced to detain persons. This
morning, when the question was
discussed, the hon. Shri B. Shiva Rao
said there are certain allegations
against Mr. A. K. Gopalan. He said
* that that portion was not read out
by Mr. Gopalan whereas the other
portions which looked very light were
only gone into. I can quote you ceses
where if you go through the entire

# detention order, there is no justification
whatsoever to detain the person under
the reasons given there. But that is
being done. Therefore,*what I submit
is that “security of India” is a very
wide and vague term ; anything under
the sun can be brought under it, and
it can be said “this is against the
security of India, and therefore he has
to be detained.”

Again, it says “maintenance of
supplies and services essential to the
community”. I can speak with some
authority on this matter because I
was connected with the Railway
labour movement in the South. From
1947 onwards whenever any action
was contemplated by the Railwayman,
1 was the first fellow to be detained.
There was a strike in Golden Rock
in the South Indian Railway in 1946.
As Secretary of the labour union I
had something to do with it. I
organised the strike. I have got the
right to do it under the Constitution.
Ever since 1946, if any action
contemplated by the Railwaymen
thrcughout India. if I am available,
I will be booked and kept under
detention, but I was not available for
Som% time, therefore they could not
o it.

An Hon. Member: “U. G.”, under-
ground..

Shri Nambiar: That is a quite
different issue. If I am available, I will
be the first person to go to jail. If it
So happens that a strike is contempla-
ted 'in _the north west frentier
¢r in East Punjab or West Bengal
or anywhere in India. the first man
1o be booked would be myself. That
1s the position. I can prove the facts
with the detention orders. And- not
only was I detained several times, to
show what happened inside the jails,
I want to demonstrate to you how my
hand is bent today. In all humility
I say here you can see, Sir, this is the

and  which was fractured in the
Vellore_: Central Jail while under
detention. You see the bend of the

and. I was a member of the Madras

Leglslatlve_ Assembly from .946 to
1951, and in the course o’ five years

of my membership, for 24 years I was
in the Vellore Central Jail as a detenu.
And during the period I got my hand
fractured for the simple reason that
I resisted, saying that I must be
given the allowance of Rs. three pro-
mised. First it was said: “you will
be given Rs. three allowance per day
so that you may live”. Then it was
reduced to Rs. 1/8/- by the Madras
Government, and so we protested. We
said we wanted to go on a protest
strike, and while on hunger strike, we
were forcibly put in lock-up. One day,
I said: “I cannot go to the lock-up
because during the lock-up period if
anything happens inside while on
hunger strike, I will die”. For that
reason I was lathi-charged and put
into the lock-up in which my hand was
broken. I ask: Can the Government
deny it? So, I was lathi-charged inside
the Vellore Central Jail and my hand
was broken.

And today they want to pass the
same Act, the same obnoxious law,
under our very nose and they expect
us to be very quiet, peaceable, good-
talking boys. They cannot expect us
to be like that, because we are
ourselves the victims. We have paid,
I have paid them with my btlood and
they want to abuse this Act, and they
want to abuse not only this Act; they
want to say that they are justified
because the whole electorate is behind
them ; they are in a majority, the
majority is passing the Bill, therefore
the whole electorate agrees to it. But
I humbly submit today : Will zny hon.
Member of the Congress benches go to
the public today on the issue of
preventive detention? Will he resign?
I will resign my seat and challenge
him and defeat him. Let us then not
pass the Bill. Do not do it now. Tell
the people and go to the people outside
on the issue because we have every
grievance, This is an Act which every
one of the Opposition is afraid of,
because this Act is intended to stifle
Opposition political parties. Any party
other than the Congress they do not
want to tolerate, and they want to
take advantage of this situation saying
that in some part of the country there
is some calamity. Therefore, they
want everyone to be threatened with
action under this Act. That is the
reason why I submit that this is an
obnoxious law. The very =lause of it
says that anything can be brought
unger ft.

Not only that. While under detention
in the Vellore Central Jail as a
member of the Madras Legislative
Assembly, I wanted to communicate
with the hon. Speaker of the Assembly.
My letter addressed to the hon
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Speaker was withheld. They said:
“Under Rule 11 (4) of the rules framed
under section 4 of the Preventive
Detention Act, no detenu has got any
right to correspond if it is considered
to be harmful or objectionable to the
security of the State.” So, niy letter
to the hon. Speaker of the Madras
Legislative Assembly requesting him
to take me to the Assembly to attend
it was considered to be objectionable
and the jail superintendent witbheld
the letter. So I had io go to the Madras
High Court and the Madras High Court
passed an order saying that this is
unheard of in any country and
immediately directed the jail superin-
tendent and the Chief Secretary to the
Government of Madras to send all my
correspondence to the hon. Speaker.
So they went to that extent. They
would not allow any representation to
Government for our maintenance.
They would not allow even this letter
addressed to the hon. Speaker while
I was in detention in the Vellore
Central Jail, and today when we speak
about the conditions of the detenus,
Dr. Katju says that the life cf two
crores of people in Bengal is nothing
like that of the life of the sc-celled
detenus—they are given Rs. three
a day, they are well-treated. But I
would request him that if it is so good,
let him go to detention for one month.
I am prepared to go for one year.
Let him be detained for one month.
He will be locked up at nine o’clock.
The warder will come, and willingly
and very humbly he will get into the
lock-up, and he will be locked up, and
the next morning he will come out,
and his letters to his wife and children
will also be withheld by the censor.
Let him undergo all that.

There is no use of thus talking
piously to us now when he is the
Home Minister sitting on the Treasury
Benches. He speaks so eloquently
about the life of the detenus, about
the money that they get and the
happiness, but we do not want that
happiness, nor do the people care to
have happiness inside the jails.. If
their happiness which he wants to
create inside the jail is a model one,
then the peace he is going to have in
this country will be the peace of the
graveyard. Of course, these two things
must have bearing and connection with
each other. Therefore, let us not talk
of this vague and illusory happiness
of a detenu.

Though we oppose the very idea of
detention tooth and nail, we also
suggest that even with regard to the
treatment that you are going to give
to the detenus, you are so conservative.

You will not give them even enough
food. You will not give them lock-up-
free nights. While in the Vellore
Central Jail, we made so many
applications that we might be allowed
to sleep outside in the summer days.
They would not allow. Even the bulbs
were removed from the rooms. That
is the position.

. Mr, Speaker: I do not want to
interfere. I can understand the
feelings of the hon. Member, but I
should like to invite his attention to
the fact that the subject under
discussion now is not the administra-
tion of the Vellore Central Jail, but
the Preventive Detention Act.

Shri Venkataraman (Tanjore): Nor
even his biography.

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. I think
he has sufficiently illustrated by his
own case as to why people feel the
difficulties of the working of this Act,
What he said is quite relevant. I am
not prepared to say it is irrelevant.
But, as we have had a self-denying
ordinance of speaking within a certain
limit, I advise him to come to the
Preventive Detention Bill, rather than
go into the Vellore jail incident now.
Otherwise, he will not get the time.

4pM.
Shri Nambiar: The rule-framing

authority is handed over to the
executive. When it was suggested by

the Members of the Select Com-
mittee that some improvements on
the life of the detenus should

be made, even that was not
accepted. That is why I have been
saying that something should be done
towards them. Even granting that
there are some unfortunate men in
this country who are going to be
detained, give them at least better
food, and better living conditions inside
the jail. This point was raised by
some hon. Members of the Select
Committee, ‘but it was not heeded to
by them.

The third point which I want to deal
with is about the right of detention
of a Member of a Legislature or
Parliament. This question was also
raised by me in the Madras Legis-
lature as also before the Madras
Government. I took the whoic vase
before the Madras High Court. The
Judges of the Madras High Court said
that the immunity from arrest was a
point which has to be decided later on.
And that question was not pressed by
me at that time. My case was that
Members of Parliament or Legislatures
should be allowed to attend Parliament
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sessions even under detention, and that
they may be escorted from the jail
to the Parliament House where they
can exercise their legitimate functions
as the representatives of the people.
This point was driven home to them,
and the two hon. Judges, although they
differed on the question of immunity
of arrest, upheld my first point
that the case should have been referred
to the Privileges Committee of the
Madras Legislature. They said, “This
is wrong, this case should have been
referred to the Privileges Committee.”
On this point, both the Judges agreed,
but on the immunity question they did
not. Anyhow, the whole point was
settled, because I was released by the
High Court, and I could not press my
point any longer.

I have given an amendment also
which seeks to provide .that all
Members of Parliament should have
immunity from arrest, and even to this
the Select Committee did not agree.
My second point was that even
granting that they should not have this
immunity and that they might be
detained under this Act. they should
at least be taken to Parliament House
while Parliament is in session. The
third point which I stressed was that
even if such arrest were to be made,
it should be done under the orders of
the concerned Home Minister. If he
is a Member of Madras Legislature
who is arrested, then the Home
Minister of the Madras Government,
and in the case of the Member of
Parliament, the concerned Home Minis-
ter. that is, the Union Home Minister
should pass the orders of detention
and the arrest should be made under
his instructions only. I suggested that
for the following reason. Supposing
the Trichinopoly district magistrate
finds that I am doing something which
is harmful in the interests of the
security of the State, then he can
detain me within that district, but he
has no limits beyond that district, but
my being a Member of Parliament, my
duties and privileges inside Parliament
and my rights etc. cannot be decided
by the Trichinopoly district magistrate,
because he cannot think about them.
They can, be better understood only
by the Home Minister here. My sub-
mission is that only the IIome Minister
has got the right to apply his mind to
the question of detaining a person and
considering the justice or otherwise of
doing such a thing. Therefore, I
submitted that in the case of a Member
of Parliament who is to be arrested
in the Madras State, let the Union
Home Minister issue the instructions
and let the Madras Government arrest
me under those instructions; and if it
is a Member of a State Legislature, let
that State Government arrest him
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under the orders of the State Home
Minister. Even my amendment to this
eflect was negatived in the Select
Committee. Why I requested was
because under Regulation 18B in
England, the procedure was that cnly
the Home Minister has got a right to
arrest a Member of Parliament. And
here in India according to article 105
of the Constitution, we are cntitled to
have all the privileges and rights of
the Members of the House of Commons
of the United Kingdom. If it is so,
then every right and privilege that an
hon. Member of the House of Commons
enjoys has been guaranteed to us, but
with regard to detention, it has been
provided that a district magistrate
can arrest me. I asked why have these
two things contradictory to each other?
The answer was that the rule in
England was that the arrest can be
ordered by the Home Secretary as
happened in Captain Ramsay's case,
but here the rule is that the district
magistrate can arrest anybody, and
that therefore I come under this
category. Then I said: ““What about
my right and privilege as a Member
of the Legislature which has been
guaranteed under the Constitution in
article 105?” It has been provided
there in that article,, and no district
magistrate can violate that right which
is given by that article. The answer
came: “One article provides also for
preventive detention; therefore you
come in the category mentioned under
that article. Therefore, the other right
is gone.” I submit that on a reason-
able interpretation of these two
articles, any man will come to the
conclusion that we have not got the
rights and privileges guaranteed to the
Members of the House of Commons
because the preventive detention laws
are that anybody can be arrested by
the orders of a district magistrate.
Therefore, I say that this point may
be taken into consideration not only
in its technical and legal aspects, but
also from the wider political angle.

I have tabled an amendment which
seeks to give immunity to Members
of Legislatures and Parliament from
arrest. I have given my case also that
we have a right to that immunity. In
the United Kingdom Regulation 18B
was passed during an emergency,
during the war-time. It was therefore
a war-time legislation. But we are
not having a war-time Legislation here.
Captain Ramsay's case was considered
in the light of the whole situation, and
he was considered to be a spy in the
camps of Oswald Mosley which was a
fascist organisation, therefore the
Privileges Committee did not go into
the whole question of the issue of
immunity of arrest, because he was
considered to be acting against the
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[Shri Nambiar]

defence of the country. If it is so
here, let them say so. Let the hon.
Home Minister issue the order himself
and say, “Mr. Nambiar, or Mr. so and
so, who is a Member of Parliament
must = be arrested because he is
considered to be acting against the
defence of the country under such and
such a rule”, and arrest me or even
crucify me. That is then quite a
different issue. When there is no such
allegation against us, how can a district
magistrate simply arrest us and put
us in jail?

Even granting that there is the need
for a detention, why cannot we be
allowed to go and attend Parliament
session? When we were detenus we
were taken to the Supreme Court
under police escort—I myself had come
to the Supreme Court in this building
in connection with my case when I
was in detention—to appear before the
Judges, and inside the court, we were
not handcuffed, but outside the police
were waiting, and as soon as we came
out of the court, the police again
caught rpe and put me into their van.
Supposing a Member of Parliament
who is detained, goes inside Parliament
and speaks there his speeches ipside
the House cannot be considcred as a
breach of the security of the State or
the maintenance of law and order,
because we are privileged to f{alk
here ; and we can speak anything here
within the rules, because we are
privileged. If an act of any Member
of Parliament is considered to be
prejudicial to the security of the State
or against the interests of the nation,
I submit that he may be taken under
police escort up to the gates of
the Parliament Hall, and the police
can wait outside. while he may be
allowed to discharge inside his duties
which he owes to the electorates. It
is said even in the Preamble of the
Constitution, “We, the people of India,
having solemnly resolved to constitute
India into a Sovereign Democratic
Republic and to secure {o all its
citizens...” Actually the 35 crores of
people do not come and do ike thing.
Tt is their representatives that exercise
that right. How can that <overeignty
be exercised if the representatives are
not allowed to have their say?
Sovereignty of the people cannot be
exercised except through the represen-
tatives through whom their right is
exercised. Therefore, if a Member of
Parliament can be detained, why
cannot he be allowed to attend
Parliament while it is in session and
thus discharge his duties which he
owes to his electorate, and also the
sovereign right of the people which
is guaranteed to them by the very
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Preamble of the Constiiution. The
Preventive Detention Act provides that
any citizen can be brought under that
Act, and be detained. But 1 submit
that there must be a difference so far
as the Members of Legislatures or
Parliament are concerned, because
they have got an extra responsibility
as representatives of the people and
they should be allowed to talk irside
the Legislatures or Parliament and take
part in the deliberations there. Other-
wise, the whole thing is wrong.

My humble submission that the
Members of Parliament should be
allowed to take part in the delibera-
tions of the House does not mean that
I allow or agree with this detention.
We demand that we should get
immunity from arrest and, granting
that that immunity is not allowed. we
should not be deprived of the right
to represent the people inside the
House. Therefore, I think I have made
out my case clearly, and considering
the rights and privileges conferred
under the article of the Constitution
and considering the moral and legal
responsibility that the Government has
to discharge towards the electorate. we
must be allowed. the Members of
Parliament or Legislatures must be
allowed. even if they were to be
arrested under the provisions of the
Preventive Detention Act. to discharge
this duty. Why I am taking this
particular case is that Mr. Deshpande
was arrested and detained in the Delhi
jail when Parliament was sitting. I
do not know whether Mr. Deshpande
wanted to come and attend the session;
I did not go through the whole case.
But if he so desired. granting that
there was a detention order. there rnust
be a provision that he must be allowed
to take part in the proceedings of
Parliament. But that was not done
in Mr. Deshpande’s case. That is why
I have my own fear that in future we
are not going to get it. Therefore, I
make this humble submission and with
these observations, with these appeals
and requests also I opoose the Bill
in toto and from the very beginning,
and if by the majority, by {he brute
majority they pass this Bill, let them
at least, in fairness to the people, cnce
again think it over. This is my
appeal.

gfea watraT T s (Fasr
saR—g) : N fadww 3@ @ww
TR g Jufeqd & 99 & @A
I AT g & afafe W oge
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# fagra = fagg & O w4
sr fEia wTdr agg i ¥w
fagrr & fagg & g A
afafem sk oad ae=@l 9 =@
fawg ox 9@ 7% @ qF F A Sy
%3 97 fFmr §, S A 4 wgi a% quw
T, CF farg I agea a1 |y
o gzl T 77 @ @ e g
f& gt o g fafreex &1 9w &,
A T IR FET G X
g1 R 918 3 93T g & g 9T 4d
Tg AT G W A & fFod
T a$r Todt T AT @ HEA F
AN T HR TG IF geArgad
@ (Advisory Board ) #1 qrawy §
9 F faww § ot qF @ g F @
smar f& fFeY ), 9] s o & &,
g faow & i, fFt geew w1 w1
i frraa g A0 aua F Gearead
TS & grrT § at 1% o freraa T8
gt | A fawraa S & @@ wia:
faor A€l & a1 97 & am fyer
afoede oY 819 &, S & wWaw ¥ ar
AT T AR Foa awT @9 5@ FE
g T4 T 48 G 3€T gvaew A
a7 fF Q¥ TR ® g A I9 FEA F
TTS [T AT I FT TN FT A9
g 1 faad 39 (Cases) ¥t gt
IR O R, 3T 99 W oA O
YT & TR ¥ T Y A AR & T
T oad o da § FewamAa
TEEN I AR & T AT W
@ & M § T on v F fod ag
A Srefaar awr § 1 @Y a& feafa
¥ fo@iv &7 & gWr0 TAUw  SA @
afafa- -3 & ¥ qgs e fer )
v fram & o @ faam s@ §
AT agE@ W § o7 & Afafaa —aa q

H S ows
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< uaTT #7919, d9 T A amfd,
Y g mnfadi F1 gé & 9 W &
ATHL F L IH FET F GRIIW
&1 WFAT & ST WAHTS F g1 ATr § |
@ A faege s 7§ a® A
aFar & f 8 FE gewEm W &
AR ag W Q) sFar § ¥ wmwe 7
TERNT U &1 | TgT ¥ ¥ a9
W, T FF 41 W R
T o 7 IR0 T AT . AT FqT
N, amafar & w9 fF gAm, @R
99 SR # WY 9w W, T T
&Y I FHX IR FT FF FC A6 AV
#R uros"  (grounds) T &
frgardy 5 91 & aR § & mi o,
I BT IA T TAT FH LA AT H
3T ¥ L A W fawe oo
afeT I 97 1 3 ¢ a0 A AW
g% @ 9 a3T fF IR OO A g
TS AR T 9 A A, I H
1S o7 TE T | g7 & S|l A A
fry O ga fom 7 w9 gz @1
fF a8 9t 39 a3g FT AW I g §,
3% & firewanfai g€ €& agam o o |
TERS JH TFS IW EET F g
Ry AN E Tawmar g &5
I T [FS TAH BT TS §, T
0§ 79 ), Y frd A1 3 Sw I
¥ @ @ W QW wfed
9T & 4 § fF W I S wew
s AR W @ g, ot fadaw g
qHa § AT faoae FRE § am0q a7 F:
[N T F AET TE G W E, I
FT & AT gAR T &, 9 TIS §
T ¥l O TR & aRd & AT A
gau &t fyor afw@dz & gra ar fadr
Y JIATE AT AR HHAL ¥ gIT
& 9 AT TFAT §, AG FEl qF gAR
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[dfeq g aw Iveam)

FIX I G M F Iy A
% fF a9 I TONAE A Gt &
1% St fadwe FAE F W FEA F g
§ o< 75t ¥ o o9 e < o
TR AT AT, 39§ et afwedz
FT A7 ATAS AR FT 7 AfTHR
WHRTE | 99 39 F Fa5 T &
afeec & fes et 7o & o Y
R awd fFag ¢ It &<
T & AR o T g FA ST T &
& 77 39 F faeg feward #1 g
frere awar & 1 fcwEra w1 g
gt & ae & 99 A FRwarQ
A gdl & 1 TF A a2 8, A AT aI”
), qafeT & o A9 AR ), WA
a1z Y AT 7 W AfET Y wwar & R
TEg VT qF A | TWFAA A A
forag @ WY §, ag ag wE
ff o SwF g™ freem & a®
Q9 ¥ avet a=x waa @< w1
g omarg 5 ag o fward
g & ® Frafm & wfes §
#R v8 # fedaw (detention) #
@ aﬁ%&' ar ﬁaﬂ%ﬁ CIEE G
I fefgme afede & g@ & &

X femr smm

AT AR FX | AT T S F a9
& Farn £ 2R fer # frae &1 & s
WY TH A FEAT ATGATE | ST K A
TR F 9@ T AT HET & I
freaart &1 Y afoge g, @t 9w
fromardr ¥ g § 1 fr & ae
9g g TR THIT FIT @I &Y
ST AIfEd HR SR RET TR I
T qTER FIAT § a9 A 9g gHT @aT @
IR IR AT TR W g N
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dgE T T A A g A ® aw
< 77 T 59 F gvae § a8 g
§ FAIY I I w7
g & AV g Freware A far s,
R R g e Y I918 v &t
fer org faar s @Y 3w
frafem R fm &t fmam
e € & o ag g fom #1 A
A 7T AR 3 F a1 7@ 6T 8,
& wvmen g fF a8 faege & 7 ]
R ¥ oAy g geT W ORN
wrer ¥ s R fm fr e
wif g I 7 F 3 fa F a7
T ard 1 g Il T F A
fica 1 & T &1 gEw I
FH ¥ T & Frewardy g awet § 1R
R Ao f@ae
a1 gag fer A &

T AT F FR/L FT &9 § I
TR S R arfaa) & faard T §
AN guw #9g vear fwe ) F
78 awmar fe #E Q@ g9 g &
2x Wit a8 qus 5 wgt awas gsuw
ST 3T & At g fafrex whE
& wwa & ar i gt fafreex A
R aF § I} T TR FTHT FT ATAST
& a1 I g 7 &) agr fafaex
Iyfera T @) A | A FIF A T A
AT A F T & FIAT A
TG W AW IR B 99 ATedT FH
Fr ATITFAT A g1 A9 oA FH RV
T FHEAA § F FIAT § av 14w
TR AT ITF T F T€ @, Sf
LECUEACE SRR R R g
o feafa & o 39 A aga @A
& gamT W g fF awaae e #
g § 47 AfEHT AT AT IT A AT
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W g fr ag a9 e AT AR
# gaman g v ag waredt w1 A o
WHaE@ e @ g I wmH
ST TR gE A AR AL §
i T gaaT A aw7 7 feay s Ay
T AT WRA;MT THFR F T R
AT F AR o TGN AR 7 I q
o faaR #3F g fear smoadwm o F
awaar § 5 ag a9 surar a8 §
Y F7 S q9T =T gEAT & q8) fear v
&1 AR A 7 S Y A Y At
a1 fem g & a8 =@ +71 w9 w3
fiF e ag IT A FT AHST &Y
A I g F A WA 3w
JGT AR AR FRIAT TTHR T & av
TR TER & TF G4 g qg
ST qEm) § g gwmar 5
JET AT AT T H FQ AW § AR
Y e H A gH & S #1 3| 7¢
T FY AR qgT FIL G AN E
gt O il 1 avarw § F qwaw g
% 5@ FWF FT aO@T T gH F
TomEAT AR g 1

T & Foran Geargad) a1 Ft AW
1 ffe gRY QEared 9 ¥
mwEryawe oo & foow
FE aq G g Mmwd
A A gEE S gAT aTeY e 9@
AR o FY qoreiT gaTR " aedt
AN ™ F T qwwar
fF o @ § WY =S FE i TR
ar FE N qwaT § AR T XA
aifee SR TeTC X & AT § )
S f ag Quarewrdr s & faan @
g

aga & anfqgl & ag a7 A w5
A FT GRIGNT g7 § AR S qfew
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feméde § 9@ ¥ weww Ay qRWNT
T NaEwd @i g =
a7 Gzaie ( advocate ) & s
YA fwadgs Fgdr 7 &)
RN T e da W
F1 91 § o ST qEmE AR Gagee
( abuses ) &1 faw @ Jl
AfFarg 9% dagEy @ S A
Fae ol & & Rl T g g
AT =T G § AR R Foreg et §
R agw gt § AR SE F 91 A
aR feredr ot @Rt & A wef
NI E 5+ = o0 q°m
& A & SR o ATy S Y vy §
#R I TT TATEY F ATH 9K SF &Y
T T a9 Y AT & SR
& WY § W § 1 Ag Few fw
dfs oF 99 I |7 91 | 9 IS
# A FT @ g § w@leq T
9 gu ifeam dme e (Indian
Penal Code) @@ sk 7 ffas
TgaR #1 (Criminal Proce-
dure Code)w&d, #gi d% 3F
ger # A wwmar & oSw
o | AT R FTA § FTH TwEq
AT FY ]G FT YT FIA | T gH TG
#g @5 § 5 4fF W F Fm w0
TR GFA § THfed gW W ®S
W A W@ &g aw
a1 78 § & St oF wgsy 1 g §
wpAl F W A ¥ AT dW g
afar d FA MR EaRAT AN
& 1 gafod 7g T 1 w5 & faeyge
& @ FA T §F o T g
TR W TF T &Y g1 § agr
% T H1 I T IR ALY

fipT S wrew fieware fear s
I F FRHR R ¥ 0 faT Famx
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3T ¥ AEIH TR @ g o
Rud e s @ 9@
g foT & amt av s & W ER |
OF I § AgHH FT 3 fF o 39 A
#RX TR TRETS TS AT T 93
S wA ¥ owEE X oEw o a
T GZATEINY A1 § 99 F qIF qi G4
(facts and circumstances) d
Y € &R qeared A #1 fedy
( detenu ) #F TeT FA W
R 9 ¥ qEAEE T F AR E |
A yareTE F A & 98 g € B S
TG I F JIAA @ I § §ATS
FAHTZITIIAG ST AT 98 GITSTT
FE Gearwd a8 ¥ fm
at & 7 awan fF OH gred § fy
qE W FAT T I § |

R forat qoid <@ T § <&
T §, oY S gEE A el w1
AT Y Y Yo T F T T TF A §
FOT F09 IR F T GAE AR W
A A ) AR T ATE G
I F 18 59 W T AT A G G
T d X a9 T
LrsGikad!

T T ST £,B W T A A
§ 6 oGl 7@ W ST FA €@ @
agt 58 W oF| fFar 9w | T dE
. gt fr St I it § F@t frewan &
2t & o gl & weew Qe
frthard AE Rl A WE FER
@ EGFH BT AT EHT G
s fAImEFHIT AT AN A
muaw gE WA @A AT
A aga T G g |

# o ag wwrq 30 g a1 fF
T FWA #1 framt (43 aF & w@r
I 1T THAT §H Q1Y TF qGrT
s I ¢ s F W oA |
FAFom N W@ HFaE d 3 7€
T € o fF sR ag A
IS 58 3T J 1497 qY g qTS g FIT
a0 | 3w fed Ay ser § fR
T 1 q AW ¥ fog agmr s @
fod & & o ageT e @1 fen
Y A CF AT A AW Fa 7 I e
feewr @Y 1 F guwar g fF ag @@
FOT A gW FNT TW HIA | I TR §
ST FT FFEL WX AR FE AT &Y
aY 91 9T ghIY | GEY aTal Y g FT
g FE 5 a1 FF a9 § AT T
& qwwan 3 6 ag wnfaa = & o

e T TH FA F IEN g W
¥ae § g #1 o (ruling) &
9N # Ig EwF 5 anaar e
99 T agd fraew 7% | 3 @A
RNA TR I ARy, 5w
T 39 FAA A Ao strawwar §
TR AFAIT §IET W 39 AE 98 §
g I AT AEUT TG FLA | IJAFY
% @ T WA EfF A W
A g ¥ gwwar g froag
famme 97 1 1T [T Aigh WF ag
ARG T NI F AT 481 §, ag iy
qet  (Party) & fea ==& &)
ag F S ¥ o § Y sty Frdarsar
oY F W § AR wafeq w7 ¥ o4
g @ § A TS & TR
9gY | IR I WA G WA gw
EIA A0 gww ¥ Fadt 7w §
3 forert o § @€ AT A G v
w1 & A onft wg g, ol Tw
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AT 936 1 @ 9 A1 q9F a8 o
wafFagamad s A
FA T Y T § AT TEST T
forgeam & & o @ ) 7y w1
AT | AT S A g qHHAT &) 4%
& g ¥ Fifrw w2 FF 9g w9 T
T IfFT T F}E I @ )
ag FMA 9 s & fed A §
Y arFg auer & fawraw & o

I T I | TATET T Fg FT T &
AT W AEEH § qg T AGATE |
T a1 78 fF Gearsdr 91 F awe
S AMSTT IS § Al FEAAA A qET
oy g wifgd fF deargad &
F AR F R A G 9T IR
I F 99 ¥9 AT @ A X R ag
YT T FTH FT TP AR BT AT
g qAd, [ fawg oX s
WS aT TEET AT qF, TR F qF
ARFEHTEE F | a8 T 6 v Yy
Hwr 2 fr ag fag F @R agw W,
FFER @ AB T | T T
a I | ¥ Y 9 +ifgd 1 few
FIFATT I F I gl a8 99 9 AT
FY 0 fed s 1 3w ¥ wafEa § 9K
IJWIARF AR F Faw@ R AR
w3 afE F1E A9 T T Q)

arfed =Y § ag FgAT AR
f& oy weze f@smA § S FT @
TS gAY wifgd, QU ST gEr
afgg ey aganmar e s
T a9 T & g AT FATE

Ht T ww b (§%9)
FH 4 fqd E T F a7 TS |
TIW apurTEE TATSE TR N

AT AT WEIET F A {qqdd
Jufeaa § “frares fw” s &
R fafre afefs &t e d kg @
frig &1 M gw oW e w9
&) M @A F Ak I WA A
FgaT § fF w9 A @ 9> fomw W@
oo § S FT WG B GWAT
frr mar & wF wEean § B st
gl § ¥ W it gAR qEaEr
TGN 7 q97 o4 AT AOT F
T FE & o1 5 AqF www o,
ATEE F T ¥ fod s g
qfed | F9 § FH IF FT AT AL
T F IR A F fod @1 qof
gfaer & s | g Ag FEA &
fF zw a7 ¥ faeg =) e FRfe
frd & ooom FEy ©, e o
R A+, AR N AW
g1 TSY T AT FW & |

TG |

R FITA I AR FET W
3 AT A AN &Y TST F AW FT TF
FRUE 1 o o F AR ST FAR
@, foE ST F oY STt &
fod, <t & fou & @1 faaw
F grT, 9@ TSA  FAl S ARG
FTFAr, N AWM F fou 9w &
g fafe &6 w wFan
o o@ oa® wem g owg
f/e  (Communist)

fiRlt T FT owANE A4S 0 X
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[= 7% w1 i)

T Wt T awma 5 sefre e
ug ATeq @ 5 ot 9y dw A feaw
W | e g AR § frdfea
fs&am (Preventive detention) 3,
fore e 1 ord § fr 99 el R
1 39 9o faqr, @ &1 R RS
(Court) #& gy, ~maew %
g Efea fvw W ¥ =Y &, S
T A @ IE AR A FAET
ST | A9 56 FT A A G (Freaatan)
THTSY FT AT H S T A1 |

Mr. Speaker: He may address the

Chair. He need not mind the inter-
ruptions.

M@t 7 s wi: I am still
addressing the Chair. ¥ 77
ww g F W fagem &
freg i &1 T|@ ¥ gardx  FEET
99 N AR Y w0 R oaig
fearews difq @1 afcamr s=fee 33
& A1 g9 FT T T FIS ATEGHAT A TS |
& guean g 5 afe 3@ oo & am
[ AR @ aE: FEAR @
A @ @ I AT I3 & faQefy g
I B 73 G T g | g
Tg AR @ AT @ A A @R
WEAM S A9 qe F1 99 q9y
frge @1 SN o wfa @ e
Frfree, FAfee  (Communa-
lists) s 3% wafezw (Black

marketeers) |

TF ATEE %€ R T |

=Y A% o Wi TF AR T
g fefew (Capitalists) &
TRXATTEE | AN 9g Iq IO A
frqe & &7 7 7 St Nfewr F o&a
JIET AT AT § ...

TF WA AT S 06T A |
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off 7= o gaf ;W § @
faum AT &1 Wi § F1€ wwfa
@ #T {R ARG 9 TGl FAQT |
9 &1 waw e F a5 3R
|UTH gaAT T QHAT F w2 7 gt
§ 9o & woar & Jgi R q@ I W
Iodt | mied A famm & 5 ag
e &R ger aif@a e |
T Sl R d w5
= 1 78 At AT Tifgd {5 ag
et & favg fegardy #71 s frae
¥ | A gama g 5 Prare aft domfa
FEgAF W NI @ A AIE
f& Fai 9 4T I & A g
ST F® FFT [ § AR
@y faw & &3 | 9T §, 5| & sw
fF S &1 g@U AW Aowe § 1 T
W @ AfF St 99 F A 9, 6w
Fgw A e e sma & frem @
T AT T FTAG TGH H qH (5 e
w1 I@EW #4 fFm 9@ FRw
M §? R TFF H@W
ST TF G @ | FLTE F g 7 Afg
Wﬂé&mma‘tamffaﬁ

ﬂ@m&fymmé
fF “qf T WG F ATAAFAT

& g =

wed IR R
ara &1 faQw 39 fagra & 78+ 5
Fryfree a1 fRedt gER Y e
ot de A e w12 1 Faw faw §
@ ow ¥ fF 9w A famr 9@ & Ay
X Uy F Fad A faar 9@ F;
o A9 a1 frgfa @1 sEes i s
AW AF @ AT R | WA FH
T & AT A QET S ST 9nfed |
™ HE AgTAEl #Y Wi
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AR FW & | AT FRfaee a8
§ N @R @ @ F oH qERA
i s U w1 fadw #X @ frdfeq
fedam @t #m agg &, AT ¥ waTX
A AOfgd X ag E©A{F
TSq G 9% %A1 | ALY a1 ST 48
fawraa & f5 safre aai Frds A
FAIH AR AR AT aF T |
TAARE, MAT IS F I I
froq 4, ¥ (Cake) faor 9,
ToH faest €Y, 7w faear a1, &R
st (Jersey) IR R F fed
afgar ¥ afenr o fredy 4, SR s
7 foe awer #@ g |+ w6 fer WY
e WG 9T, § A o1 R aar &
F@a, arFx 9 5 gma ar
mmamar g f& fr  a e
T@® ¥ TEEE F BSOS FET |
s gard 7g femre (Demand)
gfF et W T@ w1 deew
(Allowance) @t | & g &
a8 TR FF q AW - S
Tl §fF qw @1 W @
IR, I NN IFH | AT T
farng & fF PR S F IRI A F
qTY T THL HT JTATE FT qT HAGC
frar T AR WEET ¥ WEF IO
fFar & TS A TATAT FT QY AR
# FRfew (Communism) &t
T TG ;A | AR FRAH e HT
78 a9 G 5 Iaw grgarg A1 AE
w@q T & faer fam w0 @R
@ AR @ AgTaw 4 Far 6
T e fagr & % e
& g, T Al IS ] W [AAT 9,
T A AT AT | TR/ W AW
1 @ § 5 o afem 51 g9 &
w3 s E R SRR A
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ag fear 1 aY 3 @Y €% gew W,
¥fFT agt W IS 91, de  qef A
T qg w1 feur g o

FAAY WTEAT TS gY AT I ¥
frae §, T d99 ¥ Y AR aud
RAN AR I N fRAE i fF aw
N A TGy IN | @ e w7
I 98 AT QI & AT H9T
sfafafedl & o @ | 9w F 5fa-
fafy Rl & o7’ WA A W g
g o § TR ER g s o
T 1 A A sl &) &,
fefeae afaee & & @ar 1 W
fafreex #1 sfafafe @w fafres &
O A & gwar §, & ewar
aifa ¥ afear X faaw @@ § ™
foa 31 a8 fae & 5 e <@ gaim
1 & Ffd |

fame s fsd=  (Minute of
Dissent) & st waam w*e ¥
™ § T@R T S9 F SEwR
f/d om aY wE 8 g 1 W
agt grew # faww feomr qar ar
fF awga: e & R qW e @i
q@l 9 g gufend 5 S g,
7 ARE R X @E @ 1 Fg AG
g s fadae ST F § ar av
T AR aE T T F aw =@ g,
frgsu e & o1 s=ag f5 o9
gaEl ®1 agt R SR ¥ s
T o w R g fw
fegr 1 grow F R fFar w@T 90
4 fagr #1 fadwe FUE § Wi &iFR
FET afgd 9r 1 AR faQdt @
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[#R 7% =T 7]

gra Soferm g 9w EIS]
fagr=l & waemi #1 5 ¥ Jr Trhed
qT 1 3@ § fadwE< Gzansd 99
(Advisory Board) & st 9=
Ffedwgrmn f& g€ S &
W afed, g€ T W AE o Y
W@ G AT W, HR we
T T o7 dATq ST I wA9 HY
avaT TEar @1, o w1 o § f
T a8 @1 dfww (Practice)
faw @ex (Pleader) #' & 9
g 1 T Gearsg) A1 § |91 I
< fredt amet | faafes fedam
@ 3, AR qE W g T H G
A W faaaF Ao A 7
qfso® T AQHT AT GHAT § | AR
Tl A F% a9 fea 5 o
FHRTQ @ g § Toid™ & o g,
TG FT 44 FT WLHF FIAT
AT FaA & AR & g WAV ART W
ag JaeHr 9ga § fF s 8
foaer are ot fafea fedaa &1 ad
ATl § s=T qA @z &
T A 1w g¢ B 9@ A ¥ aga
sfaw ot Fgfeerord & ar w18
39 9l gfeFio F1 % ag g &
i F @S FEF gfaew Fa FA
FaE 9z TN ;R F AR g )
ag a3 fadl 1 food & form & g &
oF fae Hes AR AEAT g WA
gy faerar, SWAFAY F9
ty FrfmEl #1 fea (detain)
fear mar uE @ WS (ground)
@, 9fq @ F AMEEHI TR
FANMAATII FEFY oF Q
afral & o Gar 91 9g T W
T AW, IFA AT @9 T AW

1 &) gfave Frdw ox Sefar e
aifeat & grg Gar W a1 froard
FE d 9F &R I ] FTIW
F @ A o wE W
fod T ag TAE X R4l wrgaw
F qre GET R AY 9 grE FE a% 9ge
< gfasm w9 w7 3w, S T
ARAT JV IGT AES I | W A
e FW FW ! AR TRE
(War times) & fof, oot
ez (Emergency times) &
foa $33s anfx w2 & s A7 =
T EAE A gl § W ATRaay
# oo/ I qg AT Y g R W
i ®N gm aw fee W@
TFRFX R ET@ AT R @ g1
H agar g fr so T @R FT W F
9> FweT ar a8 & fF R I
W R fum, fegm e we
(Indian Penal Code) ama @t
Qi T A [T AU AL FT
I F & four sy 99 < faue &
g FX) &% faam @ gmfaa
FFNING 99 | W& (govern)
TER & 97 & fod 5@ R F JRW
(section) @ fis & =& 3Rk
g frafes fedma & Am & @
I FY FEAT I § a7 F § FH T3qQm
F AWM, IHGA F AW, AW faq™
FIFH § FH AW T FT FEA @A
F A AT FY ITAT AT FAT AR
fs ¥y (detenue) =t AW
TFE FHT § A g0 @, feg
I H AT TH F AL A KD T ¥
¥ O AT ¥ FAT WA AT FY
Jufeaa W FT d99C § | | W
afesr ¥ dfaa T8 1w a9 amy
T w7 9
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‘&Y TE FRORG §
o sfaas safa som €
sfeat #t Rl §
fasa Frqm gm 27

% 9% S T A 9 D @ F-
g # afvma safs s &7 av
gaRE A Ffwad Ay SR A
qIAE 7 gEAE § 3T F T FA W
%81 @A ArS W gHIR Fig a9 )
doq qF wEAWET 1 IT W Al
RN A1 ATHA 1T &Y X g A THAY
& 5 wivw 1 Aifg & qro a1 g
T g AR aE MR F g
# 21 918 WX foell @raey §, R ag
Ig qUEN & A 3T Y § AR
@A F G WO SAF S H
&9 faar s AN R TN grag a g
& grr (anarchy) # X @w
& g @ afcg & FA
g W & A% I A gy gl w9

&T 94T AL |

wafed Aw Fg g v & fray
FII AT BT FAWT T ALH FAT F0gal
¥fspa 3qar anaza FF (F ag T AwlAq
fF 98 9% 9%T QAL XM | 4g 9%
TS GTAZ( F1q < FHAT, S5 AT H
weq ¥ AT E, U W AW F FeF F
ARTE, FaAT GBI &Y BT Tg AT §
ag fyafcs fed g7 9@ Sdy 9T &
W A IFFA M AT E AT
fo wgar g fF ardq g wfeged
qifree & qft v @F F My =W
WE | o oo o afiq &
TART o | w5 A A AR g
WX § @ oy FRfAE, FRQAfoR

(Second Amendment) 5il4
Bill

(communalist), &% wFed A
#faifeee  (capitalist) #ga &€ aY
JEF A AT E ? T FF AV
uwF7ss fasa (There is no ex-
cluded middle) : a=t a9 &
a1 e Y AT g S S
a T FT WA RO AT AT ST B
FAfORE T, IR 99 FT T AT
T AT AT I® F FEfaee, @
gafere $3 1 gEr  qfifafa
q ok sw Rt N @ a@
qfsfess  wafer  (Political
blackmailing) ¥ g7 géam Fw@ &,
Q1 98 Fgi aF Sfaa SR qAIfaT ghim |
¥ e & oo am W aw A
Afefess swafer ¥ 5@ st #
91T g g1 At ag Sfaa & 5 g
I9 F 97 FE (open court)
# q7r X gt 9% 98 99 F fawrg R
g AR AT AT qwRIE T 9 AT
9 F A I W SW A @ R
dTEqET qF 30ad ®idY F qEI 9T WY
w1 e ar & /1 99 F AR § far
®T ATAE AEI GNT | AT F A
F A, 96 FAIQ NIV TT TFH
aw, fsg # snT B 9T ggid fear
FW &, 39 WEAT F W7, f99 F aed
I q UG I NARIAF Swaw
AT BFaT W oA o e
§ T F W AR W AW W
#, fo@ 1 am 1 % fae w@r g,
fie Fwar g 5 oo o et &Y
ifeq $ F U@ IT F AT qHE
¥ FW M F@ET &, Y Al q@
IGT X W FIUE FEAT & 1
7H TW g A OF 91 SR At §
oF 0T e o1 fag Ao w0
{food control ¥ Fw DG
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[*r = =1 7wi]
g9 &1 @ A9 @R 98 sER
TF MET FT A FAT A I3
T TR O W FRE I8 W
ad W AR " ¥ wowey Iy
ST | W F AW IATA AT TG
Y el a9 TR ¥ faear AR sw
ST 98 FAT F T 9gT AR A F A
g, %9 I9 F I o » fod
I CH I AT HqE, I9 A Fgr 5
TEFiF IR I ag e fF e
T A A A F AA AR AT, AR
o & fold F eI 5| F A Y SiF QA
FHIT OF AT FIX F vl THT I §
AT I § T FIF Iq 7 39 TG
¥ fyifea fedow & s &R qar
FA F A1 T AV I B F JTEO A A
e dfmam s E @
TS T AT F4T §AT ! IF 1R AW
I Fe T ARG HF F
fafeg fedam @ ¥ Y gora @y
I AG | TH TS FY F79T @
& I g, 99 A § 5 ena e
w7 o T OF 9 & Hqg ¥ Ao
et T ¥ fodl %9 T TR g A
W, IR G A FP A T
IR A AT A1 IT B oS & diE=
F a2 F< g9 9, WL AHA IF A=y
1 39 ¥ fod fafea fedam o =%
TTST, TH FT AG F 6 F, I9 A 7
T | TaW F IR T© F AT smvear

¥ & 1 F fawEy tmﬁmﬂJ

far @ IAFAA [ WAHEHS
ffyg: N IT & fou W @ A9
FEeaq €Y, ag FEY a1 9T TG S99
ST AT GTESTT F SIS F AT qH b,
ofpq SR Sfer &t aferr w
afm feqr 1 @ar & afor 1 afqear

1 ag Arew S fRar St
o R fam ¥ g & AR W
I TAEY FS § ARG Al oE q9
T S 9T Y SR W FQ § AR
Iq Y IO AT FAE | wg qE
TATY AT TG AT FT FAAT o
& gaErAl ¥ ggfafamdan g i
THIE T A A Mg I 4
F YA A AT O Ay s ¥ 4,
FIMH T AR §©
F AL AT, 9 GHR & FA1 |
S qw AE G
[MR. DEPUTY-SPEAKER in the Chair]
# g &) wmgan g fF o =@
frafea fedam & gro 9w fqQfas
FTHE T O T AT T I, TG
AT ST AR ATIETT AGH ZR |
# gg g Fear f a9 AATayaEsF < A
faara 7 %9, 3T i #Y sy &feq
FET A8 99 B FIET gHrE JIfeaq
FE T FGEL E HX 9 F T19 AfT
78 fag g1 w1g fF araa 7 ag Aqqa
g A AT Y ggd WAFT ¥ waAH<
e ¥, I d fedy Y sufa adl &Y
aedr & 1 dfFT R ey qEr AGY
w3 AR fom A g frega @ &
IT T GEE AW FE BT FAGC AG
] Y I FT ATA FAAFT F A
o st R & swem oft
I ¥ I GeW FH FT VAR FIF
WNfammfaNad s wrg S
@ MM AT e TSy W
FOH X F | fRaeT oW €
Fq A A Sutar 7 Fgd gY fawh Ag
wET fo 9 & WA ST SR Sufed
gU & S A g9 WS wuvEAl Y
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93 g IW T F T A€ A
gfasr s #% | afs a9 q@r FE
R FT S a@Y §F qwaar g o o w7
7g fait 7@ W T A Ay FT g
T AR q A w7 I >

Shri C. C. Shah (Gohilwad-Sorath) :
Before referring this Bill to the Joint
Select Committee we had a full debate
regarding the principle of the Bilil and
the opposition to the Bill disclosed two
categories of persons: one who were
opposed to it in principle, that is to
say, who were not prepared to have a
measure of this nature under any
circumstances, whatever may be the
conditions prevailing in the country,
and another category of persons who
said that they were prepared to have a
measure of this nature i1f they were
satisfied that there was necessity for
it, and they asked for facts and evi-
dence to prove the necessity. I wi
deal principally with the second cate-
gory of persons, I do not wish to
argue with those who say that they
will not have a measure of this nature
under any circumstances, whatever the
conditions in the country. I think the
large majority of the Members in this
House are committed to the principle
that a measure of this nature can be
had and must be had if it is neces-
sary to have it. And that is our Con-
stitution.

When persons like Mr. Chatterjee
and Dr. Mookerjee asked “What is the
evidence on which you prove the
necessity for a measure of this nature”,
it appeared a very reasonable attitude
and a very legitimate ouestion to put.
But I am going to analyse whether
they really asked that question with
an open mind with a desire to be con-
vinced or was it another form of op-
position, a more subtle and a more
clever one, but nontheless an opposi-
tion, to this Bill root and branch.

The Home Minister in his opening
speech gave certain facts and in his
reply he gave more facts, particularly
the figures which Dr. Mookerjee had
asked for of the detentions and releases
after March. But some more facts and
irrefutable figures were given by my
hon. friend Mr. Nathwani regarding
conditions in Saurashtra. @ What was
the reaction of these persons who ask-
ed for evidence and facts to be convinc-
ed as to the necessity of a measure of
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this nature? Was it the reaction of per-
sons who had an open mind and who
were prepared to be convinced, or was
it the reaction of persons who were
annoyed that facts should be placed
before the House, irrefutable facts for
which there is no answer? And they
were annoyed that they could not give
an answer to them.

I will deal with the nature of the re-
action that the evidence produced iu
them andhitlie nat\’xlr‘e of the amend-

. s which they ve suggested to
this Bill. Both go to show that tneir
opposition to the Bill is not
s0 reasonable as it appears
to or as they attempt tc
make it to be. What was the reac-
tion of Mr. Chatterjee to the facts
which Mr. Nathwani pointed out as
regards Saurashtra? Only abuse. This
is what he said: “You talk of a little
trouble here and there; what was
your Government doing in Saurashtra;
it was an inefficient and incapable Mi-
nistry; the Ministers were fighting
among themselves; they were absolute-
ly unfit; they ought to have been
thrown out of office. Was there no Pre-
ventive Detention Act and why was
it not applied?” .

5 P.ML

I do not know, but I believe there
are some persons who are really brave
and whose boldness of assertion seems
to be in the inverse ratio to their
ignorance of the subject they talk
about. Like some lawyers, they seem
to believe that the weakness of their
case must be made up by the vehem-
ence of their attack. Probably
that is the line which Mr. Chatterjee
wanted t§ follow. He is a great lawyer
himself. A shrewd judge however soon
finds out that when abuse takes the
place of argument, there is some thing
wrong with the case; and I am sure
that every reasonable man in this
House was convinced that the facts
which my hon. friend, Mr. Nathwani
had stated were such as had no answer

That is not all. Mr. Chatterjee may
have talked out of ignorance, but the
people of Saurashtra know it better;
they know their Ministry and they
knew their Government. I can speak
with some knowledge. I have been as-
sociated with that Ministry ever since
it was formed in 1948 and what are the
facts? If the Ministry was so ineffi-
cient or incompetent, the people of
Saurashtra had only a few months ago
opportunities to throw it out. But
what happened? Everyone of the Mi-
nisters was returned with an over-
whelming majority and out of the 60
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seats of the State Legislature the
Congress captured 55 seats and alb the

s1x seals to the House of the people. -

Is that a record of a Ministry which
was mcompetent or inefficient? Only
three days before the date of polling in
the consutuency of the Chief Minister
Ir. Dhepar, eieven murders were com-
mitted within ten or 15 minutes with
a view to -terrorize the people and
prevent them from going to the polls
anu voting. What was their reaction?
I was there personally myseif on the
day of polling and on the day that this
event happened. The Chief Mirister
called the leaders of the people from
every village of his constituency and
told them: I am prepared to postpone
the elections if you like. The people
said: Nothing of the kind. We are
not going to be terrorized by such
tactics of feudal forces which are out
to terrorize us and prevent the land re-
forms of the Saurashtra Government
and on the day of the poll an over-
whelming number of people in every
village voted for the Chief Minister and
he was returned with an overwhelm-
ing majority. That is not the reaction
of the people who considered their
Ministry to be inefficient. I can say this,
of course. Such sweeping allegations
made without any regard for truth can
have only one answer and it is the
answer which I can give with know-
tedge that every one of them is totally
unfounded.

Now let us see what was the re-
action of Dr. Mookerjee? He made a
very eloquent and a very moving
speech. He made certain assertions; he
put certain questions and he hurled
certain accusations. I will deal with
them very briefly during thg time at
my disposal.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I expect hon.
Members not only on the Treasury
Benches but other Members also who
were so seriously and vehemently argu-
ing here. to be present in their seats
when answers are being given to what
they have said on the floor of the
House. It ought not to be one sided
show like this. It is rather strange
that hon. Members are not in their
seats.

Shri C. C. Shah: This is what Dr.
Mookerjee said : “Who is this Bhupat?
I hear he was a police officer under the
Bpmbay Government. I hear he and
his gang were of great assistance to
Congress in capturing Junagadh a few
years ago. He was a loyal citizen who
helped in a great cause. Now today
he has gone astray.” I do not know
where Dr. Mookerjee gathered his
facts from. (An Hon. Member: From
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the Communist side.) Bhupat was nei-
ther a police officer nor even a con-
stable in the Bombay Government or in
any other Government. As a matter of
fact Bhupat never helped or gave any
assistance 1o the Congress in captur-
ing Junagadh. My hon. friend. AIr.
Nathwani knows Bhupat. Mr. Nathwani
was a member of the Arzi Hakumat
which captured Junagadh. Bhupat was
only a driver of a petty
jagirdar and only once he drove
the car of a Congress  WoOrk-
er because of his knowledge of
the countryside roads of that area.
That was the “great assistance” which
he was supposed to have rendered in
capturing Junagadh. After the Saura-
shtra Government took strong action
against those who were harbouring
Bhupat and assisted him, these
interests—they are very rich and
powerful and they count no cost—have
scrupulously spread a story that Bhupat
was some patriot, that he was some
hero and that he had turned into a
dacoit because of some misdeeds of the
Saurashtra Government or sorething
else. I am sorry that Dr. Mookerjee
fell a prey to such a propaganda.

What else did he say: “Was there
no Government functioning in Saurash-
tra? Was there no Preventive Delention
Act? Why were things allowed to go
to such an extent?” Relevant ques-
tions. I hope he will pause to think of
the answers to these questions. Who
were the persons against whom action
had to be taken? Rulers and great
jagirdars. This had nothing to do with
any political party, I can assure vou.
The Rulers thought and stily think that
they had some privileges and immuni-
ties, that they can never be arrested.
that no action can be taken against
them and they acted with impunity.
You can understand the difficulty of
collecting evidence against the Rulers
when they harbour dacoits in their
palaces, when they supply arms and
ammunition to dacoits. It is very diffi-
cult to get evidence against them. It
takes time to get that evidence and as
1c_ards the arms and ammunition sup-
plied by the Rulers, they are immune
from the Arms Act and like ordinary
citizens they are not bound to main-
tain a list if the arms which they pos-
sess nor are they bound to make a
report of the use they have made of
those arins; they can do whatever they
like. After all Saurashtra is a smnlil
State and action had to be taken
against Rulers, a thing which was never
done in India; it was something un-
precedented. Great caution had to re
exercised before taking such action.
You cannot rush. You may have your
suspicions but you must have material
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at least to justify detention under ‘the
Preventive Detention Act. I do not
know, of course, and I presume that
betore taking action against the Rulers
even the Government of India had to
be consulted. It was setting up a pre-
cedent, something which was new.
Even the Government of India had to
be satisfied that prima [facie there was
evidence enough to justify action
against the Ruiers who had certain
privileges and immunities under the
Constitution. It takes time. But that
is not all. All these activities of the
dacoits were intensified during the
election period.

Allegations have been made on the
floor of the House and elsewhere that
the Congress has used the Preventive
Detention Act to crush Opposition.
What would have been the condition of
the Saurashtra Government and of the
Ministers who were standing for elec-

tion if they had then
taken action against political
opponents? You can imagine

the kind of allegations and the malici-
ous propaganda which would have gone
round. We knew what was going on
but it had got to be endured and suf-
fered until the elections were over. It
was a great and trying task indeed and
1 can assure Dr. Mookerjee that I
was there in Saurashtra for more than
three months during that period and
we were careful to see that the political
opponents should have no opportunity
of making any allegation against the
Congress and the result was over-
whelmingly in favour of the Congress.
What happened? Soon, following upon
the elections, after the people returned
a vote of confidence in the Government
and the Ministry, they took action;im-
mediately within a week of the elec-
tions. the Chief Minister made a speech
in Bombay that however highly placed
may be the persons who harboured
these dacoits and supplied them arms
and ammunitions, he will take stern
action and firm action was taken with
immediate results. I submit that irstead
of the Saurashtra Government and the
Ministry of that small State being
abused by responsible Members of this
House, the Saurashtra Government de-
serves to be congratulated by this
House. It was no small thing. I am
sorry to say that Dr. Mookerjee did
not stop at that. He said something
more. I am really sorry that he said
it: He said, “The other day one hon.
Member said that Bhupat was being
helped by police officers”. I do not
know which hon. Member of this House
said that. No hon. Member has said
that. Something more he said: “We
ere told he was helped by one section
of the Ministry. We are told that there
was a lot of conspiracy, party-split etc.,
in the tiny little State”. I do not know
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who told Dr. Mookerjee but whoever
told him, I can assure him has not
served the cause of the country and Dr.
Mookerjee by his repeating that aliega-
tion in this House—I say with utinost
humility and respect—has not enhanc-
ed his reputation. It is an utterly un-
tounded allegation and it is totally
false. We, Members of this House have
certain privileges. But. we owe aiso
a duty and a responsibility, while criti-
cising the State Governments who are
not here to answer our charges, to see
that we do not say anything which de-
tracts from our prestige.

As I said, we did not take action, or
the Government did not take action
against those people because it was
election time. Who were the persons
against vvhom action had to be taken?
‘iwo of iae persons against whom ac-
tion was subsequently taken were
actually candidates for the local As-
sembly. Action could not have been
taken against them. Even after action
was taken, one of the Rulers, who was
arrested under the Preventive Deten-
tion Act, made a petition for a writ of
habeas corpus to the Supreme Court
I shall read to you the grounds of de-
tention which were given to him. It
will give you some idea of the diffi-
culties under which the Saurashtra
Govenment had to work:

“(1) You have supplied arms and
cartridges to outlaw Bhupat and
his gang from time to time dur-
ing the last 12 months ;

(2) You have met personally out-
law Bhupat in Rajkot in the month
of August 1950 and thereafter from
time to time; you have been send-
ing instructions to outlaw Bhupat
for arranging his activities for com-
mitting dacoities and murders; you
have remained in contact with him
and in that manner you have main-
tamed your contact with Bhupat
up to January, 1952.”

The elections in Saurashtra ended in
January 1952. These are the grounds
of detention. What was the attackon
these grounds against preventive de-
tention? That this action was taken by
the Saurashtra Government mala fide
out of political antagonism, and that the
grounds were so vague that the detenu
or the person detained could not make
a proper representation to the Govern-
ment against the grounds. The Supreme
Court held—I have the judgment of
the Supreme Court before me; I do
not-want to take the time of the House
hv reading it in detail—on a review
of all the facts, that it was im:vossible
to infer that the order made under the
Preventive Detention Act was the out-
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come of feelings of animosity arising
out of strained relations due to polifical
antagonism, and that in their opinion
there was no substance in the charge
of mala fides. The Supreme Court also
held that the grounds were not vague
and that they gave the detenu sufficient
indication of the case against which he
had to make representation to the Gov-
ernment.

T am only mentioning this fact to
show that the Preventive Detention Act
was the only measure which could have
helped the Saurashtra Government to
meet a situation of this Character. All
kinds of forces, feudal, communal,
capitalistic and communistic all
combined to fight the forces of progress
which are represented by the Congress.
The result of the action taken under
this law was immediately seen.

Dr. Mookerjee put a question, how
was it that Bhupat ran away? Well, the
story will be told some day with fuller
details. This is not the time to do so.
But, he could have as well asked, why
was it that Bhupat had to run away?
He ran away because his royal har-
bourers and those who helped
him were behind the
prison bars. Immediately the
effect was seen of the action under the
Preventive Detention Act. Therefore,
I respectfully submit that this Act,
odious though it may be to many of us
according to our notions of liberty and
democracy, is absolutely necessary
under the present conditions of our

country.

T do not want to deal with the amend-
ments which are suggested; but I shall
say a few words about them because I
have carefully studied them. What are
the principles by which we shall judge
the amendments? 1 submit that the
principle should be this. Any amend-
ment which is intended to prevent an
abuse of the powers conferred under
the Preventive Detention Act* should
be acceptable; but any amendment
which is intended to weaken the Act,
to dilute the Act, to take away powers
from the executive and make them use-
less or ineffective, is not one which we
can accept. I respectfully submit that
a majority of the amendments tabled
by the Opposition are of the second
category and therefore they are not ac-
ceptable. Let ug once for all recognise
that preventive detention is an extra-
ordinary measure and it cannot be
measured by the ordinary canons of
jurisprudence which Mr. Chatterjee is
so fond of quoting. I have also read
those judgments. But, in the extra-
ordinary circumstances that we have to
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dea} with in this country, let us see
to it that while we should be very
cautious in clothing the executive with
authority or power, which is likely to
be abused, we should not distrust the
authority of the executive to the ex-
tent of nominally conferring that power
and at the same time making them in-
effective. I would rather like that this
Preventive Detention Act were repeal-
ed and take risk, than incur the odium
of putting on the statute book an Act
which appears to allow preventive de-
tention, but which has no use and
which cannot be effective. Therefore, I
submit that every one of these changes
that have been accepted by the Govern-
ment—I do not want to go into each
one of these changes—has been accept-
ed with this intention, namely that no
injustice should be done to the detenu;
there should be no abuse of power; the
matter should be reported as quickly as
possible; it should be looked into by the
Advisory Board as quickly as possible;
the personnel of the Advisory Board
should be such as would command the
confidence of everybody. But let us
not, for heaven’s sake, introduce into
this Bill amendments which will take
away and destroy its value and effect.
For example, there are amendments to
say that lawyers must be allowed to re-
present and cross examine. It sounds
very reasonable apparently. Even in
America of which we talk so much—I
am reading from the minutes of dissent
of Acharya Narendra Deva and
sthers—

“There is only one exception and
it is that the Attorney General is
not required to furnish information
the revealation of which would dis-
close the identity of the infor-
mant”.

What to talk of cross examination?
Take the case in Saurashtra itself.
Who will give evidence against the
Rulers of what they have done in their
palaces? Only their servants. Can
you possibly disclose to them the
names of these people? Can you pos-
sibly produce them before the Advisory
Board for cross-examination? Their life
would not be safe. You can never do
that. I therefore submit that the amend-
ments which the Government have ac-
cepted are all amendments which mini-
mise—I do not say they completely
eliminate all chances of abuse; it is im-
possible to eliminate completely all
abuse; some are bound to be there—
the chances of abuse of power. Any
other amendment would certainly
weaken and destroy its effect.
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ot e (Srfaesr-fazar) : §7
@ 19 e #1 fearifes wdra (de-
mocratic countries) ¥ a aY
eHl ¥ qael ¥ gEwer e @ F
T30 4T gart 5 ag 4 ¥ 9feT g
H§ AT | I H GAH AT FE
W § ar |y € e & Qo afe
e qAmar | It 91S & i ge
FAR TZT F TH I3 AT ARHT &R
Tewer  fag, W a@ W @R
q9E & FHfael & § a8 99 a1
A@E | QY IFEA ATAT F FB A F;
qFffEda (experience) a1 ag T4
fe R ge A ani v09 &9 fa
FUAAET | @ F g O ¥ fod =qor
TATL FFF A IT A AT AT gAY
@ # 97y gan fF AW F g
T IFF AN 97 AT JAQAA
3T F IFA ST F qAT Few fowar
S 97 qF FY ZAAT AT q@ fa@v o
I I F1 731g) Fifas aris F14 97 1
IEH 99 F T g OF TS Wrh O
R FE W] ag Famn 6 qiw wEH
F = 9 ifaw qEl FIA
(corruption) =1, €z (State) ¥
Ffgers fas 7ade (movement)
F IR ¥R T Fig a9
NHgaaam s N 1T T wfF
A 98 9 a1 fAfqSw a1 @ .-
Sw 9 & g ar f5 for T
a #X fear | o = aw @ ]
ot wg Fp 1% %9 R g ¥ |9Te
T AR @1 g w EFAT § 1 f
IR aqem fa N9 § Fgfee et
F N fi 9T F A T AR G A
FEE A G FE F AR agr N
Prafer fedga e o1 98 Q@T G A1
fs &S (temporarily) w9
124 PS.D.

1 fZw (detain) ¥ & afw
I F NS A I3T T TS
(permanently) frdfex fedmw
a4 %1 @ W fEfw
fedmm T & qofas 5@ Q@ smefl
FIN T F O F g7 [ J9F ¥,
M F AT F7 g g A A Y
gH st i & feRex (Dictator)
T dT F Fga 8 AN G, A9
AH AE F R A F TGS HLAT
FRIAFT A, S ST F I ST
§I7¥ = (interview) w1
Al IR T FsT § ey, fRar av
ST ¥ Fr 5 T qw o F9T F0
# 3 @ fiw qro e A7 J@T A E R
TH FY T T M WY 1 ar
ST FT A FT AT g1 WY Tl eq |

IR ST W oA fear fF g
g q9 F AR At e 2 A1, e
gt g7 7 T wEihET o qEt ¥
for a1 g MA@ aF I AT E, IR
TF AT A9 T FEET AR F R
[N F | g frare FEw ) s
5 o Al @ W N ferw
T FE, ¥R M FESIEST
(completely) sra®z (uproot)
& IFEN 1 IR T T &
wx &1 I WS #  fmmer
T TER e fag @ d
¥ F N IR T T A
g dRI I amT T AR TR R &
TF GO FAT AGA £ 1 F N
qaraR 2w § frew s o
JEAT A | g SN SfeeE
fir wETHT AT 7 gW Y OF qET A%
g M EN & s O 98



8127 Preventive Detention

[ T

(man of the peace) &, gfmr
F oA qEAT & | S g IR 9
frit sos F X TR §, T AT
MFAE @A W adEn
o FE ¥ A o Tdo Yo
(U. N.0.) & ozt i am
d= (nation) F Y faex
St faemead dfss € 9w
1 Efas fmm (good-will

mission )

g fegmw #  ( anti-social )
SRl FY OeaA F  FIEE g, @7 SR
& qorg § fasr $T e faemr
A § @ A f T o AR )
Ah T F A e @ wfe
qef W & oF FW FE & AN
fogam ¥ T | 9 TRR AR
geR o a8 Nfefere @ § @ 48
ST &3 ARV F gl TG I AT A
1 7Y | Tawie § e (riot) g
& 133% ¥ aY JgH T §T A A
fafeeT oM@ | S BIA & A
TaE A T | WA e
AT, Gsdae 7 99 ¥ gor 6 oEt
T @R gfeq weR @ 97 o Wy
M A Fow W Y SR TE TS T

g ‘
fr o v figfes fedmm e d
g ¥ I F HE 1 @A
g ¥ weeR (follower)
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¥ TR wWE T F ERER §
g Y T, o+ SR g ¥ €Y gfrn ay
o 3Ry § 1 ag  WNARST FAT
F o A w1 F TR §
ag facwe wow & 3 wwar
F 9y A &, T F Ay
TR W wgwAT Aty AT S &,
WE F & SF §, AR 99
TgHET AT &, eWdl I9 A IS
& ag o fiEfeq feémm dae & a7
A ST St F gy Yo o o §
N ST FT @ OL, K AT FF
Flrsw@ g fas s am & foa
gafF s Fay 1 ¥4 fag =
¥9 ANATE (opponent) F A
TR & SR ARl ¥ ogEr &t
g A I AE WX FI S fF gw/R
R AT &1 g uiwamie &
JAES W& Y TG, § 7 @1, |
B[S AT F &Y, TR F A 7 QY
T IMES AR @ 9N 4, AR a3
ey g 9 9, ofew s@ g oww
WM ARG WE, 73 TEeH
T a2 AFC T E § SHaT & 1 ar
Ty st feafee & @g @ gy wgrer
Y TS gL §, T 99 ¥ TORK &,
foag et & fomr 7 sy o @S
& g, o 9T 9w A F,
IG FT GHTS F & FT FT @A G
FFaT 8, S AH! FWH A9 =
FT § W 1 AAod g § 5 g
Fogs  feara (unlawful
design) @@ § a|@ FE WEw
(crime) FT FT AR W@l §,
g@ifod gaxmr §, a9, WK
WA F Tx W og oA W
T g !
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v 7g frafea fEam fae ame
T G799 9T ST 9gF g5 I g FI
qR T[T AT | F Fglae] Y
e asmamr g1 o shmr
AT S FT AL @ E, JFEA K Fg
9T FI@E (operation) Fw@T §
@ T8 79 F oA & o A
g # enfad st g S fRe
TFAF § J@AT AT | A QU SArEar
g o ¥ foow & v frfafed
(criminality) &@smg & =
Wifrgaasad®) WwiE
=t Mared F F@1 “qTE 9 T AR
as fo www, o aw fr dfase
% f7 3o o FEA” W@k R
T FO9 & ToF § fafea fedmm
8%z # fgar feor man, @1 98
T 5@ g T8 g A\ o Ay s
ofgdy o, o FH9 F SR @
S ) 39 a%g § g@ T faar v ?
q Y s ¥ wiws g, w09 FE
@ﬁﬁaﬁmﬂ?ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
fed= OFe & & |@y=w o 5 @
FUE UF W IMioEEETS TRl
(unreliable party) # ? ¥ 9=
UF AT AHY doT 4T I@ A FW
g ®W oo@m g w o w’?
T ga & o, gt &
@ g o s f TR
/T AW FE, S99 @ F oz
T F AR AW o e ¥ &
qfed, sk =W ¥ W 5 ;|
§ A9 aT H @ Aq T GET
], fF o s & «q feai
&, w dfear dR g@Q wE
a¥s  (run-away wife) st s
off & g FEd FOT LE A
NEWAIREAEF AN WY
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# R 2 T 1 A AT S 571 gged
T Fag et G § ag 1€ Frafed
FAW T L) Fogd 5T A1 /)
gz /@3 qgar ¢, < A7g ¥ FAA
A wa ¥ awa 31 A fafirw G2
1 FRR ARe feg aHamer
Se F T 1 &Y AT F71 qOT 47 q@l
Ty frER s & 9o 7 =@
& ™ 1| TER e faga gfese
¥ g =T ATl F q6l o § o &
g SaRdAlE | Sreiv TRl R
T & foi Y o= &Y T =ifEd, A
e, 4 wfed 39 w7, M= o
ot FEg |« T oF FEHT G
g aY 39 &r &7 & # Y =gy o
g 9= qER T A =w
(black sheep) it Fii= &1 &A™
@ 3 fod o7 o3 Wi A q®
w9 & afee & W@ § a8 a1 S
I &, W FUF FT FIATH T G
I F IO ug frafeg fedmm e
S T ST &7 W TH O HAT & |
R A e AfesaR SEw dY
g € wm =0 fF T3t fed=m
OFE a1 A AT AT S ST AT
St ? sizwmes  (underground)
¥ T 99 Q1 T T | a9 a9
A § 1 s § o 5
fiee 9 {59 &7 a9 gwz @ 97 T
TS F AR &, ;AT A} AN IA
qq & @R | 9@ IgE A ST at
et fFAg axo@ S &,
E a7 aQwT g gy fF ¥ oad |
7 WS | 7 fear 6 o adimd =&
g 42 F1 foan 5 5 F w3 ome; @Y
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[=t )

FH9 gar &1 o A 4 & foear ),
9 # gE g 39 o 7 Gan g feamy
99 FIF ST X TG I A9 W™
[ 9, oF S ard HK A
o1 fam, @ o oW IS & W
& FT wicadl 7 a6 @A o AR}
Fg & 5 g A F F ol ¥ AT
TR A A A g W g g
W A FHT T BT IS @ |
g sewe @ 1 AT qEE 7@ @
g qro #Y gan Ry R ww § g
S 3 qIg FT AT FET AR &
FFfIEIRE NI TR
T AEY FEY I F A g |

T H OF Q¥ G Fed AT @E |
ST o gieT @ Sfed v @9 & samar
o fergeam Y €, 7 T A
(Secular Policy) =1 @z &1
AT F WA qIfFETE FT SIS
LT 99 @I AU 3fF Iq F ae A
AT FTGAT ? I SrIEAT AT
F am g gieem o F 9k g,
FEE AT & G, O A9 &
g, faa 9w & @, §FFwr
& 55 s st el 7 gfen ) st
Mg Fmagd fowam
THET AW AW &, W WHIGEH
{Memorandum) =g fegem
waenEl 4 faar 9| w1 qax g
I T EH 33 TS AT A R @Y
F e | A fres fe (Middle
East) & #town @ga ¥ WM
FT AT w@T ogEm ! qaE @A
fif@r a9q a7 @ T 1 Tg AR
Ho™T grga A dfeq st & =ata v
T g F Twm wewy wew
TR AW A W & 1§ el w7

W@ AT E, g ¥ A A I° T
el wTefic 989, Tai Teas W A,
9F | TgES A9 TS, T 4Tew
NagId AT Awe @&
for o frgem A S g1 @
oE A J9 FegeoT AR A & AEfeai &
W e R fow T ™ 99 A
AN ww = | frat Aw fraay
¥ I g St F fafawe @ wot
fram v o Y fag R fom s &

HEUd §T & AR T ST AT 4

ST F AR dEdEd & & TEewE
I AW AwfeaR q@  segeeT R
dax fFr W fergell ok faal av
T BRATE | I A F Q9o TASATH
Zit A AR @ | 3fE fET i Sw
Fegee A I F I 7 IxweA B
T BT | AR AGTHT ST F TR FGH
Crdl EORCIE-CI R R IR S e |
o frar & g Sl 7 39 A frars
W I RdFER e @A
el forem &1 gagr & i =gl
¥ fggeam A sgfe @Ef & @t
Tl qifeat 98 g% & 97 & Fa g
fF g%  agT s s a8 99 G
Ear | a9 99 ghaar gfwar @ g€
T ag Fraw T W1 JaR &
qfess  STHAT IX TFIX FW Y I8
Fare g f & awr A oE g A
ST 95T F /1S 2 HA A AR TrAw
¥ @y # ag oY SoMT qE v
R A RIS A AXR
T WYOE N IO & w4rT far
g7 fF oF wafzF Wee S gl
A N gNTA N A@RNE, wWw
IT IR & % AW A w4
IS g |
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AT AT F I AT A T
gRAFA N ar S S W@
g weuw St F W A A R G
4t 3§ 9= e, oy ofs & e
Seoua frar, @Y 99 #T 3w ST @ o
el FTFgm EnE ey ag g
We appreciate your hurry
and even hurry takes some
time. We appreciate your
kindness but there should be
a limit to the kindness. =&Y
# Frgfael 1 9o, gEl ani
Wl R qq F1 99T § fF FET A
qrr S 1 # FRfaee o ¥ ade
F& i 98 Wt gAR 91T AT TF qS
71 g fggam wfyyw g e
gfrar &t ggraT F9 a9 €, e}
JAT FAT ATEHT CF ST F gY T
ar ST o 9T W) gH &1 SH
s 7 ¥ foret < Ag) AT T1fed
& gf ¥ 9% fradt sk s=nfaaa
T AT Y §C AT FAA @ § TR
MA@ AR AoFe A (TS
I 1 39 e @ 99 R gog
GaT FA A AT Y TET AT & |
& = § 5 dfF o feger &
zafed g0 S T O | a1g, 3%
FAS |

¥t = (Ism) &
faors i g, & @ W S F
& (lot) #1 dgR T W ¥ fod
S oft T AR AW, 99 % A7 g,
>fem ¥ T & e ar
& FY o FT o waew fag
F Ay g, 91 F IHfeN
(tactics)®r & ga @ g AR g7
@ F NG F AW A T
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A F a9 § S gEA F AT
T ST FT FT F I F1 faaa S #T
Q@R T 4, 3T 3§ 9 IF1 359
T 4 S AT X qoaR ) @ w7
T@R 94 q | 1T IFT qARF §
S EF A R a9 8,
3fF & oy A qqOTS gW A8 AW E
foiv 3 A dgad &} aEr &
g Rl o1& #iT A w9t
F FOA TR TFEH FV AT IW)
FY @fas FATAT SR Sfaw 4 v
¥T S Ag FE FI F HRX gEGET
FLH A TR BT F AT F
AR T &, g ST H I aUAT F
AR § qTARAT @ WA F@TE F
g A1 H W E, ;g
F1uw feard aifF o9 o9 T
fifs ik wE w1 ¥ R
Ty TET  dfE@ # | W
HIIHT FEAT AT {Y, IE &1 A AT
T gEAT §, ST R AT I
gC ¥ W1 AT 99 F € R §Er
T 9T T FST AT At f6e 7 ¥
ST qRES § | a9 § TAAT Y g F
FUAT & & FIAT § S SR qH
¥ FE T AT TG IEET fFS
&1, @ 99 & fou e IRaT §

Shri H. N. Mukerjee : In spite of the
picturesque banalities which have jusi
been indulged in by the hon. Member
who has sat down, I sense in the
House a kind of exhaustion. and this
exhaustion is not merely physicai be-
cause we are sitting twice a day, but
it is due, I suppose, to an ide2 :n the
minds of many Members of this House
that this Bill is as good as passed into
law, and that there is a certain amount
of discussion going on, desuitory or
otherwise, and there is nothing for us:
to take any notice of. Except cn that
supposition, I could not understand the
speech which was made this morning
by my hon. friend the Home Minister.
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I do not think—I may be wrong, but
I do not think he had even taken the
trouble to read the minutes of dissent
to the report which he presented to
us a few days sgo. If he had read
these minutes ot dissent, I am sure,
he would have tried to make out a
case for the report of the majority of
the Joint Select Committee. He did
pothing of that sort; but what he did
was in the confidence, against waich
I warn the Members of this House,
that today for the time being for
certain fortuitous (circumstances he
enjoys a majority, a majority which
he is going to use as a steam-roller
against whatever Opposition there
might be in the House and in the
country. And that is why we find him
coming forward to ask tne House fcr
an extension of the life of the Freven-
tive Detention Act for as long as 27
months. The hon. the Home Minister
with whom I had associated all ideas
of humanity had the gumption to say,
“I am going to extend it up to the end
of December 19254, not even up to 30th
September 1954, because I do not waat
Members of Parliament to be called
to Delhi in the humid heat of July and
August. I want them to come in more
propitious circumstances and in very
comfortable conditions—the aircondi-
tioned comfort to which we are getting
accustomed—when we chall pass legis-
latiop in order to extend such per-
nicious things as the Preventive De-
tention Act.”” And we are now get-
ting a 27 month extension of a most
mischievous piece of legislation. and
the reasons put forward are really nil.

Only sometime ago, an hon. Mem-
ber on that cide spoke about Saurash-
tra—Y¥es. what has happened in
Saurashtra? In spite of myself 1
tried to listen to what he was saying,
and he tried to give an impression that

in Saurashtra there is an attempt by -

the Government of this country ‘o

bring about the abolition of the feudal

system, and there is an attack on the
feudal forces, an attack which is being
conducted with all the paraphernalia
of Government and Congress party
support, and that the feudal forces are
resisting it, and therefore to put
down these fsudal forces, you waunt
this preventive cetention. What in
the name of the devil, are these feudal
forces against which the Congress
Government is fighting? I tried (o
ransack my brain, and I remembered
a few names. There is the Jamsaheb
of Nawanagar who goes to ail soxts
of conferences representing  this
country, and I expect he is one of the
highlights of Saurashtra life, then
there is the Maharaja of Bhavanagar
who was the Governor of Madras
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State. There are other people alsa.
There . is Major-General Himmate
singhji who has been made Lieutenant~
Governor of Himachal Pradesh—he is
a very estimable man, and I have
nothing against him—only the other
day,; . then there is Prince Duleep-
singhji the great cricketer who is re-
presenting our country somewhere in
a diplomatic or a quasi-diplomatic
capacity. These wonderful rcpresenta=-
tives of the aristocracy are a part of

.ee

Dr. Katju: Is it in order, Sir, to
criticise those gentlemen by name,
who are not here to defend them-
selves?

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: Fle is o
extolling them. i

. Mr. Chairman: It would be better
it the hon. Member were not to bring
in the names of persons who are not
here; I think this practice should be
adhered to and I would appeal to the
hon. Member, without giving any rul-
ing, to consider whether it is proper
to refer to them, and I think he will
agree with me that it is better to
;voxd the names of those who are not
ere.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: The point
which was being made by me was not
at all contradicted. I was merely say-
ing that these feudal gentlemen whom
I have named are representatives of
a feudal aristocracy of that region of
India which is being placarded today
as the only serious justification for
preventive detention and who are
hand in glove with the ruling party
in this country. I have nothing to say
against them personally. If the
Congress Government is really serious
about the abolition of the feudal syse
iem in Saurashtra, why is it afraid ot
the people’s movement in Saurashtra?
Why does it not join the common
people’s movement in Saurashtra and
elsewhere to bring about the abolition
of the feudal system? Why does it
not try to do something about the
basic and fundamental land problem?
Why does it tinker with the land and
with things like Bhoomidan Yagna
which is merely charity-mongering
acrobatics which do not work in the
conditions of the modern world today?
Saurashtra has been mentioned as aa
illustration which shows that we
should have preventive detention. I
have heard nothing about any other
area of India. As {he last rescrt, some
Members who have submitied minutes
of dissent to the report of the Join?
Select Committee have sald that if
there were really and truly in India
certain regions which are in chronle
disorder, for heaven’s sake, have them
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declared dangerous areas, where in a
limited sphere, you are going to apply
the minutes of dissent, there is a
preventive detention. I say that in
reference to this sort of thing, but
Members of the other side of the House
<do not even have the courtesy to go
through the minuies of dissent wnich
have been presenied.

I would say that if the minutes cf
dissent were read by the hon. the
Home Minister and by Members on *he
other side, they would have done
something. I t.ougni at least tney
would modify tne provisions of this
exiicinely  pernicious measure which
no civiiised Government would touca
with a pair of tongs. I find, for ex-
-ample, a very highly respected Mem-
ber of the Council of States, Pandit
Hirday Nath Kuazru, submitting a
note of dissent in which he says very
unequivocally—he is not a Communist
for whom the hen. the Home Minister
has so much affection!—absolutely
without equivocation: “The Committee
discussed the Bill without any accurate
information of the working of the Act”
‘because the Members of the Commit-
tee had suggested that we should have
at least some representatives of the
Advisory Beards which were working
in those Staies where you found the
Preventive Detention Act very neces-
sary, so that the Committee could
anderstand how exactly the Advisory
Boards were working. Nothing was
done, because this legislation had to
be rushed through Parliament. Noti-
ing was done because the Government
is sure of the majority which it has
got in this Housc and that is why
we find this sort of statement made.
‘These minutes of dissent go to the
country, the people will find out all
about it; they have already got some
idea. Read the newspapers of India
to find out what the public reactions
are. I read some Congress newspapers,
particularly {rom_ Calcutta, and I find
thal they have all reacted in a manner
which does not redcund any credit to
the policies which are being pursued by
the Government in this countrv. The
Government attach no importance
whatever to what has been said in
these minutes of dissent. Then they
come forward and say: “Well, we have
made this Bill extremely qcceptable.
It is a model piece of legislation”. That
is what the hon. the Home Minister
is trying to do.

But, the point remains, the fact re-
mains, as Mr. Chatterjee vointed opt
this morning, that if in England in
wartime certain provisions can be af-
forded, certain measures which assist
the detenu at least to present his case

¢o the authority concerned, then why -
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should we in peace time have the kind
of legislation which is here suggested?
The detenu gets no adequate informa-
tion in regard to the case against himg
he has no facilities for legal assis-
tance; he cannot call in evidence and
under the very expansive definition of
‘prejudicial acts’ a situation is created
by which this legislation is bound to
be used agajnst the political parties. I

know it has been said over and over
again by the Home Minister that it is
meant only against anti-social ele~
ments, but then he goes on, almost in
the next breath, to say that the Com=
munists are these anti-social elements.
And they go on talking about violence
etc. etc. Now. I personally am
absolutely fed up with this sort of
thing. They raise this bogey over and
over again. T.ast time in the debate
over this very important measure I
had brought in the hallowed name of
Gandhiji and a very worthy disciple
of Gandhiji on the other side got up
and protested that the hallowed name
of Gandhiji had been brought in by a
very unhallowed person like me. We
have talked about it over and over
again, and I repeat it again. We have
charged the Government and the rul-
ing party in regard to the violence
which has been practised, particularly
in those regions which have been publi-
cised as the main regions of Com-
munist violence. I am sorry to say I
was not here to listen to my hon. and
holy friend from Hyderabad who
spoke earlier. But our challenge
stands; this is the fifth time that this
challenge is made. If it is shown be-
fore an impartial tribunal that over
the question of violence it was not the
Congress Party but the movement of
Kisans in Hyderabad which was res-
ponsible, then we are prepared to ac-
cept the decisicn of that tribunal
No answer is given to this challenge.
I perscnally repeated it even in the
presence of the Prime Minister who
often so magnificently responds to that
kind of thing. But nothing happened.

Nothing happened, because the ruling

party today has not got the guts to

face an impartial tribunal. The boot

is on the other leg. I charge you over

and over again.  You talk of

violence. You ask: “Do  you

believe in violence?” Violence

as it is practised. is a fact of social

life: it is not a question of my belief

or disbelief in it. You are practising

Vviolence and if you go on practising

violence against the people, then the

people in the righteous anger will take

certain steps—in spite of the fact that

they are completely disarmed in this

country—they will “take certain steps

which you cannot run away from. Our

people are very patient. Our people

have certain traditions of gentleness

They will not easily rush off into things -
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which the friends on the other side
fear very much. But they will if you
Bo on at this rate: they will, I amr
sure, if Government treats with im-
punity such very responsible expres-
sions of opinion as are found in the
minutes of dissent before us.

I have said, and reference has been
made particularly to the absolute
necessity of the detenus getting legal
assistance, an opportunity of arguing
their case and calling evidence, cross-
examining and all that sort of thing.
Reference was made by Mr. Chatlterjee
to Mr. C. K. Allen who wrote a book,
a very well-known book Law and
Orders. 1 have had the pleasure of
knowing Mr. Allen when he came to
Calcutta as Tagore Law Professor. I
knew him at Oxford where he was the
Professor of Jurisprudence. not a
mere lecturer or tutor but the holder
of a Chair, and he was an undiluted
Conservative, a Conservative of the
bluest dye. And he says it is very
necessary for these people who are in
detention, who have not got the pro-
fessional equipment, it is very neces-
sary for them to have the kind of as-
sistance which has been asked for
in the minutes of dissent. But nothing
was done about it.

There are so many other points
which I could refer to, but I am
afraid I have not got the time. But I
do wish to say that the speech of the
Home Minister was extremely provon-
cative. 1 thought he was trying to
make a reasoned presentation of his
case. I thought he was trying to
argue that “after all conditions are
improving, but in spite of the condi-
tions improving, I have these facts and
figures to show that still there are very
serious elements of danger”. He said
nothing of the kind. On the contrary,
as Mr. Chatterjee pointed out and as
the Home Minister himself admitted,
even in those conditions when the
Advisory Boards were working ia
such a fashion that the interests of the
detenus were not resnected. as much as
30 per cent. of the cases showed that
the Advisory Boards recommended
that the detenus should be released,
And almost every time—perhaps that
will be going a little too far—in the
overwhelming majority of cases when
matters have come up before the High
Courts for adjudication. they have said
that the grounds of detention have
been usually absolutely unacceptable,
But such moonshine and nonsense is
passed off as justification for clapping
people in jail, for keeping them in de-
gention in conditions which might ap-
pear to my hon. friend, the Home
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Minister, to be extremely delectable,.
but which, as my friend, Mr. Nambiar,.
pointed out, are such that detenus
would certainly like to change places-
if the Minister chooses to accept the
proposition.

When the Minister was talking to-
wards the end of his speech about the--
conditions of the detenus, he referred,
for example, to the question of family
allowances and he said: “I have no
doubt that in needy cases, deserving
cases, something will be done”. Then
he said that he could not possibly lay
down any hard and fast rule. Weii,
I thought it was a humane man speak-
ing, and possibly he would give a
direction to the State Governments
that they should do something about
providing adequate family allowances
to detenus. After all even those who
were detained under Regulation 3 of
1818 used to get fairly lavish allow-
ances for themselves and for their
families. When I heard the Home Mi-
nister say that he could not lay down
any hard and fast rule, but that he
expected that discretion would oe
used in favour of the detenus, I
thought he was a humane man speak-
ing. But then he rushed on to say:
“While for convicts and under-triais®
families we have no sympathy, it 1s
only in regard to those who are held
up under the preventive detention law
that you say that the Government is
tyrannous and therefore that tyranny
should be softened by giving something.
to the dependants of the detenus them-
selves”. Then he went on to say:
“We have got these laws for the preven-
tion of crime and let there be no
sympathy for criminals”. What is the
idea behind it? Has the Governmenf
said goodbye to its senses? If you
say: “Look here, we are going to look
after the families of these detenus be-
cause they have not been tried in a
court of law. After all, they are here
on suspicion only and there may be
some mistake here or there, and there--
fore. at any rate, if they are to be
punished for their past records—
may be because. like Mr. Gopaian, he
was the President of a Provincial
Congress Committee or something— if
they are to be punished for their past
record. we do not punish their
families”. I could understand that
sort of thing. But he went on to say
that we cauld not have any sympalny
for these criminals it was only for the
prevention of crime and we were wast-
ing our sympathies and saying that the
Government was tyrannous and the
tyranny had to be softened by givirg:
something to the dependants of the
detenus concerned. = Then later he
went on fo say that in the last three
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- months there has been the most in-
tensive review of the cases of these de-
tenus and very few of the old de-
tenus are left in custody and that so
far as these cases go such persons are
to be released by 1st April, 1953. Now,
what does it indicate if very few of
the old detenus are in custody and
very few fresh detentions have been
ordered in the last three months or so?
What is the deduction to be made by
an intelligent person? He had begun
by saying that, of course, they did not
expect any v1tal change in the situa-
tion, there will be no great, material
change in the world position and in
India’s position in the next two years.
He hoped the situation would improve
but he said there were very black
clouds on the horizon, very big danger
signals. We should like to know the
evidence. Where are the danger
signais? You do not show those danger
signals—you only point out that you
need these powers. Why do you want
them? As I said the last time, why do
you want the apparatus of a police
State? And do you hope to abolish
feudalism, as you claim you do in
Saurashtra, by this kind of method?
If you are doing so, God bless you, all
power to your elbow, we are with you
if you are fighting feudalism. Certainly,
if you are fighting the battle for the
democratic rights of the common
people we are all with you. Why are
you afraid of popular opinion in that
case?

The hon. Minister went so far as to
make ironic references to conditions in
which the detenus live in jail. He said,
“I had been to Murshidabad jail and
there I saw they were living in great
comfort”. Comfort! If that is comfort
any day the detenus will exchange that
comfort with the comforts which any
of us have who are free. Have the
Members of the Government forgotten
altogether the histery of the past? I
remember on one occasion many years
ago the Government of India in the
British regime sent a few representa-
tives to go to the Andamans and re-
port. and thev came back with a re-
port that the conditions were like
paradise! I remember also a Congress-
man—TI think it was Lala Hansraj who
went there—who wrote a minute of
dissent to that report. That was all
they could do in those days. It is
exactly in line with those reports that
today Dr. Katju comes forward in this
House and says that these detenus
live in wonderful comfort—when the
people of West Bengal are living in
penury! What should we do? Dn we
want to keep these detenus in jail and
do we want at the same time to in-
tensify the penury, the suffering, the
woes of the common people outside?
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That is exactly what you are doing. If
you are fighf in. order to eliminate -
and abolish the poverty and the suf--
fering which stalks our land today like
an ugly colassus, then you will find
you will mobilise people’s enthusiasm,
then you will find you will not need.
this kind of legislation. @ But today"
you want this kind of legislation. You
want to extend it for twenty-seven.
long months, you want even to deprive
the detenu of all facilities for legal
assistance and cross-examination and
tackling of the evidence. You want
altogether to deprive the detenu of
even the means of making his de-
pendents’ lot somewhat less unbearable
than otherwise it could be, and that
is the kind of legislation that you.
have before you.

I would submit. therefore, that in-
view of the minutes of dissent which :
are here for all to read, I would make
a last minute appeal to the hon.
Minister really to go through the mi-
nutes of dissent to ind out what exact-
ly are the points that have been raised
in the minutes of dissent, and then after
that come to the House and say that in
spite of it all he wants an extension
of the Preventive Detention Act for
twenty-seven long months.

Dr. 8. N. Sinha (Saran East): T am
glad there is one subject on which I
can speak with some real authority
and justification, perhaps with a little
more justification than our Home Mi-
nister or the Leader of the House,
with all due respect to them. This sub-
ject is the subversive or the under-
ground world. the main target of the
Preventive Detention Act batteries
about which the hon. Members of the
Opposition are so much scared of.
Our leader himself said a few weeks
back that he never indulged in any
subversive or underground activities.
We have no reason to doubt it. But
my case is quite different. I know
that world thoroughly and I am
afraid unless you know a little about
that world you will not be able to
judge today what dangers are con-
fronting our country, where we are
standing today; what cases of emer-
gency exist today—you will not be akle
to imagine. Therefore, Sir, will you
allow me to take you along with this
House for a couple of minutes for a
stroll to the underground world? It
is a very fascinating world. I have
lived in that world. So long as the
British ruled our country I had never
a chance to walk overground without
being accompanied by a couple of de-
tectives. And those experiences were
very rich. And at that time I knew
a great many secrets—State secrets.
My activities were not confined to-
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India only. I went to Central Europe
-and to many other countries of the
world. I went there as an emissary
-of the underground world of the poli-
tical party here to come in contact
‘with foreign organisations and to some
-xtent also with foreign Governments.
(Interruption) You will be surprised.
Sir, to know that there is a special
technique about which we have not
talked as yet in this House. It is. as
I have seen in many other countries,
‘that certain Goveruments are interest-
«d in subsidising underground move-
ments. or doing such acts #s may
weaken the countries in which they
are interested. It is very easy to meet
the Heads of State of those countries
if you work underground. If we come
‘here to meet the Head of our State
.it is very difficult, but there I have
found that it was very easy. At that
time we had a moral justiication for
-such actions, because we needed help,
and we took that help from any Gov-
- ernment which assisted us to_drive the
British out of India. But after we
gained our independence things have
thoroughly changed. You wili find a
great many changes in.th2 under-
ground too. The underground today
is no longer the same underground—
we could never go so low as it has
gone today. There is no
crime for a man than to fight against
his own country, but today, we find
~“that being done. I have enough
material to- prove this fact because
during the last few years I have been
doing nothing but spending all my
money and all my energies to {ind out
the real dangers which confront and
threaten our courntry. I have wander-
ed a lot during these years from the
Arctiz to the Adriatic, to Eurcpe and
many other countries—also to Tibet.
And for what? Not aimlessly, but just
to find out how things stand today ir
that world which fascinai2d me so
much., Today I find that the urduer-
ground in our country is in cluser
contact with certain foreign Govern-
ments than it was under- the British
rule. And there is one change, a
very significant change, that is, those
foreign Governments themselves are
interested in fostering chnaos and
anarchy in India. What I am saying
is from personal experience. There
are many things which you cannot
prove with documents. But if you
come along, I will drive you in my
car straight to that building on the
sixth floor, 1o room No. 632, where
those people chalk out plans for sub-
versive activities in many countriec of
the world. I will return to this in a
moment. Before doing so I must take
.you a little deeper, because you will
not understand this language of the
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underground unless I take you desper
and show you a brief picture cf our
underground......

Shri A. K. Gopalan: On a point of
order, Sir. In the morning when some
of the Members were speaking about
preventive detention the Speaier said
that we have to talk about the amend-
ments. I want to know on what
amendment he is speaking now —-whe-
ther he is speaking on the minutes of
dissent or on the amendments given
notice of.

Mr. Chairman: There is no point of
order. The hon. Member, Mr. Gopaian
will remember that there were so
many other Members who did not
strictly confine themselves to this rule
98. Now the same latitude may be
e;f:]tended to another Member on this
side.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I wanted to
know whether he was speaking on an
amendment.

6 P.M.

Dr. S. N. Sinka: The hon. Member
protests too much.

Mr. Chairman: The hon. Member
should proceed in his own way with-
out minding the interruption.

Dr. S. N. Sinha : I was going to show
you a picture of the underground
which exists today in India. Very
unifortunately, our Home Minister has
not evolved such an apparatus. more
sensitive than the radar, which could
find out, detect and record the
whispers which go on in the uader-
ground world. Many other countries
have found such an apparatus. But
unfortunately in our country we have
not evolved one. Unless we study
those whispers. we will be nowhere,
because they affect our securily.

Now, I shall give you concrete
examples as to how foreign espionage
nets are spread out in India and how
they are operaied. Taking the foieign
spies, I shall give you proof in tlack
and white to show that such activities
are going on quite openly. The most
recent fact that has emerged fcom the
underground—unfortunately 1 cinuot
produce any documents—is this. I
can tell you this with authority and
I had a good name in these matters
even during the British days. Lue to
all this knowledge which I have ubcut
these activities, once I landed during
the British days in Elysium Row.
day it is called Lord Sinha Road—not
yet Dr. Sinha Road. It may be so
some day, because I have greater justi-
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fication for it. I was tortured there
because they wanted to know a great
-secret from me. That secret was the
liaison between the Indian political
underground and a foreign country.
They could not know it, but that secret
is at your disposal today, and I am
going to explain it to you, so that
you will realise fully the dsngers
that are threatening our country to-
-day.

The most recent whisper which has
come from the underground—ard it
4s again from that office in the sixth
floor—is that there have been some
changes in the underground vsorld,
and a great underground warrior has
come into power again, a warrior who
used to create much violence in the
country. They say that he has been
Pput into power again and he is trying
his best and waiting for an obD-
portunity. What opportunity I shall
tell you. Before that, let us have a
look at his lieutenants in this under-
-ground world. As soon as you enter
the underground world, you see a
whole panorama of people. In the
first category come those fashionable
«©Oxford and Cambridge educated
people, with  their melodramatic
speeches, talking of revolution and
.other things. They are quite harmiess
from the point of view of the under-
ground. They speak too much. In
‘the second category come those people
who indulge in our trade union move-
ments, in our factory strikes etc.
But they are also more or less harm-
less. You can ignore them. In the
third category come those people who
are a type of Moscowite partisans, and
“their activities are alarming. You will
have proof of it. then you wiil realise
how alarming they are. But let us g0
a little deeper into the underground
‘to see their activities.

You will find a few small arms and
a few transmitters. and if you have
a good memory and you_ are a con-
noisseur of arms. you will recognise
that those armaments are of the same
which are missing from our State
armouries. You will find a lot of them,
and such armaments in their hands
creat? a great danger to our country,
to our secusity. to our defences and
to our foreign relations. Thesc arma-
ments may be used some day. You
should not be afraid when you are
travelling with me. because I am a
good shot myself! Their armament is
a bit rusty. They have to polish it.
They do not know how it should be
used., But they might come to know.
“I'he most recent whisper is—my ears
are very sensitive to the underground
‘whispers—that a few of their techni-
«cians are on their march towards
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Uttarapath,—towards Kailash, for deli~
berations, meditations and collection
of new arms. In the Mahabharatha
days people used to go to Himalayas.
Today we see some more interesting
things. These people are proceeding
furtner north. The news which I have
received only this morning is from a
Chinese newspaper. It says that
whereas so far there were schools for
subversive activities only in Central
Europe, now there is also one in
Canton. The Red net is being spread
over South East Asia. -Some Indians
who have been in Canton and have
received training in espionage are om
their way to India.

Shri Raghavaiah (Ongole) : Is this
all relevant? :

-

Shri K. K. Basu (Diamond Harbour):
The hon. Speaker has ruled that
whenever any reference is made to a
publication, the daie and the author
should be mentioned. My hon. friend
is only saying, “I am going to give you
proof.” He has produced none. He is
making generalisations. Is this in
order?

Mr. Chairman: There is no point
of order in this. At the same ti
I should tell the hon. Member that he
has sufficiently elaborated the back-
ground and given the justification for
the Bill. He will now come to the
points in the Bill.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: On a pcint
of order. Sir. The hon. Member about
whose habits we are aware has just
said that in Canton which is situated
in the People’s Republic of China with
which our country has the friendliest
relations, there is some sort of a
school for giving training in sub-
versive activities all over the world.
Apart from all questions of cecency
which my hon. friend abjures, is it in
order to refer to this sort of thing om
the floor of the House?

Mr. Chairman: I do not think there
is any point of order in this. He is
only referring to an alleged fact. What
is the point of order in it? 1 would
appeal to hon. Members that by in-
terrupting - any Member, whether he
belongs to this side or the other side,
the cause which this side or the other
side is interested in is spoiled. There-
fore, it will be much better to let the
hon. Member advance his points. I
have already told him that he has
already made out the background and
the necessity for these provisions. He
will perhaps take a little more time.
Therefore, patience will be far more
useful from every point of view rather
than interruptions and points of ordee
at every stage. :
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An Hon. Member: He is not giving
the background, but the underground.

Mr. Chairman: Order, order. I
would again appeal to hon. Members
not to get excited at all.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: I am absolute-
1y cool headed. I want to point out
to you that one of the professed ob-
Jectives of this legislation as propound-
ed by the Home Minister is that we
do not want to have any disturbance
in our foreign relations and this sort
of thing which the hon. Member is
mentioning is definitely going to dis-
turb our foreign relations.

Mr. Chairman: I do not think the
hon. Member has said anything which
will imperil our foreign relations
with any other country. Let hon.
Members have patience.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: He has given
us the background picture. Let us
see something of the underground.

Dr. S. N. Sinha: Yes, it is like this.
Supposing you are today in Helsinki.
You have seen the Olympics. You
want to visit an Eastern European
country, and you apply for a visa.
What do these people do? They send 2a
copy of your papers to subversive
groups here to check up. This thing
happened in my case, and it proves
that there are groups in our country
who supply dossiers to foreign
countries, which is the gravest crime
a man can commit.

Coming to the masses about which
our hon. Member from Calcutta haz
spoken, I will say a word only. These
subversive activities are so discredited
and people are so enraged about them,
that if Government in the near future,
do not take any action, the masses
will take the law into their own
hands and tear off these fellows from
the face of the earth, because they
are so furious. Nobody tolerates a
foreign agent in the country; nobody
tolerates espionage which endangers
the security of the country.

1 have to say many things, but since
time is short I will conclude. Returv-
ing to our own country, there are
heavy clouds hanging on the
Himalayas—very low. They are no
more black; they are turning red.
What we have to see today is that the
subversive elements may not invoke
those clouds to shower blood cn vs. If
not for anything else, then at lecast to
save the country from bloodshed, it is
necessary that we pass this Preven-
tive Detention Bill, and say in chal-
lenging words to the whole world:
fet this red storm burst and rage; we
will do our duty and conquer them.
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Dr. Krishnaswami (Kancheepuram):
I am very reluctant to refer to
the speeches that have been delivered
on the other side, partly because they
have not taken account of the view
points of the Members of the Opposi~
tion, partly because our suggestions
have been turned down and partly
because there is an utter lack of ap-
preciation of the seriousness of this
measure. But there is one remark
made by my hon. friend Mr. Shiva
Rao which I cannot pass unnoticed.

Speaking this morning the hon.
Member in the course of a long speech
said that so far as the Congress Party
was concerned, it had received a
mandate from the people and had re-
ceived the backing of the people to pass
this measure. My understanding of
the Congress Party’s programme is
different. During the long camnaigns
we had to witness in many of our con-
stituencies, the speakers of the Con-
gress Party who spoke to a brief
were very definite on this matter and
in fact one of the fundamental talk-
ing points that they brought before
the electorate was that they had widen-
ed the area of civil liberties and that
if elected, they would end all repres-
sive measures. There was no mention
of the Electorate giving them autho-
rity to enact a preventive detention
law—far from it, they obtained sanc-
tion to widen the ambit of civil liber-
ties. I mention this incidentally in
order to refute some of the observa-
tions that have been made by hon.
Members opposite that because they
have a majority, they can carry
through this measure. It is true that
in this House majority counts. But
there is a country outside which is
watching our proceedings and each of
us is on his trial. We have to search
our hearts and find out whether this:
measure is necessary., whether the
circumstances are such that this mea-
sure should ever be passed by this
Parliament and whether the period
for which we are passing this measure
is justified.

When the Prime Minister and Leader
of the House. in one of those rare
speeches which raised the level of our
debate, pointed out that the parent
Act could be examined completely and'
that we were at liberty in the Select
Committee to suggest amendments to
it, the House—and we on this side of
the House in particular—went into the
Select Committee with higlr hopes, stil-
ling our lurking fears. But what was
the fate of the amendments moved by
us? Not one of our amendments was:
accepted by the majority in the Select
Committee and today we have a feer
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ing that however constructive we are,
we cannot make an impression on
those whose minds are encaved in tra-
ditions of repression and power into-
xication.

We went to the Select Committee
with high hopes; but our hopes turned
out to be dupes, On almost every
material issue, we have differed from
our colleagues opposite.

We suggested at the outset that the
term of the Preventive Detention Act,
granting that an emergency situation
exists. should be only for one year;
but that suggestion was turned down
on the superficial plea that it would
be a waste of parliamentary time to
discuss the limitation of civil liberties
once a year. As though Parliament
had more important duties to attend
to than to consider how the rights of
individuals were affected!

In the United Kingdom when a
similar measure, Regulation 18B, was
being discussed during the war, when
the nation was locked up in conflict
‘with an unscrupulous enemy, when
the question of survival hung in the
balance, what happened? Parlia-
ment reserved each year four or five
days to discuss the existence and the
rontinuation of the measure and I re-
collect that in the year 1943 they
had a discussion of well over three
or four days on whether and how best
to continue the emergency powers en-
trusted to the executive. Parliament
could not abandon its resoonsibilities
and Parliament had therefore to re-
view each year whether there was ne-
cessity for the continuance of this
measure. And in fact, the Home
Minister, Mr. Herbert Morr‘son poin-
ted out on the floor of the House that
if the House deserted its responsibi-
lity, the executive would be cranky
and there was all the more reason to
see to it that the executive was con-
trolled by the Parliament and he
therefore welcomed the House keep-
ing the executive in a state of *“con-
trolled jitters”.

That was what happened in that
country and I do not see any reason
why we should not emulate that ex-
ample here, After all fifteen days
spent to consider how best to widen
civil liberties, cannot be considered a
waste of time and I should have
thought that on this matter at least
hon. Members opposite would have
accepted our amendment. But they
did not accept our amendment, and
our modest probosal was voted down
by a ruthless majority.

Then there was another proposal
put forward. The proposal was that
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the Preventive Detention Act should
be confined only to a few areas and
such areas should be declared by noti-
fication by the Central Government.
The purpose of this amendment was
that so far as these areas were concer-
ned, the Central Government would be
ina position to make an objective stu-
dy of the emergency situation and to
place those facts before Parliament
and get the sanction of Parliament to
declare that the Preventive Detention
Act should be extended only to those
areas. We had long arguments as to
whether the object of the Government
would be advanced by extending it
only to a few areas. Some there
were who pointed out that this par-
ticular legislation, if confined to a few
areas, would lead to the States pass-
ing other legislation and therefore our
purpose would be defeated. But those
of us who had given some thought te
the constitutional aspect of this matter
realised that once the Union adminis-
tratian occupies a field, it would be
extremely difficult for the State to
pass legislation covering that area.
In a way we would have had at least
the consolation in this House that we
had opposed this emergency legisla-
tion for the whole of India. If the
Preventive Detention Act is extended
to the whole of our country, our fel-
low-citizens—all of them—will have to
walk through the valley of fear and
anybody can be preventively detain-
ed if he is suspected to have commit-
ted a prejudicial act. Is this fair?

How is “prejudicial act” defined?
The Home Minister in the course of
his speech pointed out thal the defi-
nition of a “prejudicial act” was very
simple and that it covered a few cate-
gories. Our objection is that it
covers far too many categories, When-
ever you define a certain act as pre-
judicial, it is extremely difficult to
demarcate the boundaries of that act
and that is why in legislation similar
{o the one that we are having, people
have put in one or two categories in
the definition of a “prejudicial act”™.
That was why we suggested that some
of these items like friendly relations
with foreign powers and the maintenan-
ce of order might be safely omitted from
the definition of ‘prejudicial act’. Our
purpose was simple. We felt that so
far as these two items were concerned,
neither the security of the State nor
the security of society would be im-
perilled if we omitted both these cate-
gories. Because, what is that we are
doing by having these large catego-
ries in the list of ‘prejudicial acts’®
Friendly relations with foreign powers
are not likely to be imperilled by “any
prejudicial act” committed by a pri-
vate citizen. It is after all ore of
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those things which has to be analysed
to be understood. and you will realize
that so far as these prejudicial acts
are concerned a few acts of the indi-
vidual citizen have never imperilled
friendly relations with foreign powers.

So far as maintenance of order is
concerned, what is the argument put
forward? The argument that is put

forward is that unless and until these .

powers are there, there would be a
wvery serious threat to our security. I
have not been able to understand this
argument at all. In any democracy
the deliberative forces should always
dominate over the coercive forces,
but if we are going to draw the line
at a place where we exalt security at
the expense of liberty we would
reach a position when we cculd
safely be said to be on the high road
to dictatorship. What comes under
‘maintenance of order’? Suppose to-
morrow for ins‘ance Swami Sitaram,
with whose idezs I do not have any
sympathy, starts a satyagraha move-
ment and as a result of his starting a
sntyagraha miovement for the Andhra
State there is difficulty experienced in
certain areas. under this Act we could
put him in prison, because he is the
man behind the agitation. he is res-
possible for starting the satyagraha
movernent, Or. to take another less
vivid examnle; rebelling against pro-
hibition being introduced in our
State. Suppese there comes on the
scene a party wedded to the doctrine
that this ought to be abolished and
there is a great agitation carried on
and certain disturbances occur in large
areas would not these responsible for
the agitation perfectly constitutional
and perfectly democratic be liable
to be locked up. And yet this is
what would. »naradoxically, happen
by your having this maintenance of
order provision included in the defini-
tion of a ‘prejudicial act’. I would be
told no doub* that the Constitution
authorises your putting all these acts
under the definition of ‘prejudicial
act’. I am aware of that line of ar-
gument. But the Constitution, while
it certainly gave you enabling powers,
did not make it mandatory on your
part to include it in the list of ‘pre-
judicial acts’ which you pan utilise to
detain citizens in our country and
tliaetain them without facing courts of
.

What are the powers that you are
claiming? When you consider the
judgments delivered by  various
courts, the definitions whichr they had
given of ‘prejudicial acts’, you will
®nd that we are in a very very serious
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position in which the executive has
got practically unlimited powers and
in which any aet of the citizen can
be brought within the meaning of
‘prejudicial act’. Even speeches are
not completely exempt {from the list
of prejudicial acts. The Supreme
Court and the other High Courts have
held that even a speech delivered
comes within the definition of ‘pre-
judicial act’, and any man can be
locked up in preventive deilention for
having infringed what they call main~
tenance of order and discipline. I
strongly hold the view that if an indivi-
dual has committed an offence against
the law by his speeches or writings,
the ordinary criminal law is quite
sufficient to bring him to bock and
we should not have resort to preven~
tive detention in order to control free-
dom of speech and freedom of ad-
dress and freedom of thought. It was
a great pity that this amendment
could not be accepted by the majo-
rity of ocur colleagues of the Select
Committee and that it was not view-
ed with favour by the Home Minister.

Let me briefly deal with those as-
pects of the amending Bill with which
I am not in agreement. Section 7
deals with the rights of a detenu to
have the grounds submitted to him
by the detaining authority. Hitherto
the objection that was.raised was that
it was not sufficient to supply the
detenu merely with the grounds:
what is necessary is that we should
supply him not only with the grounds
but also ‘particulars’ so that he might
be in a position to make an intelligi-
ble and valid representation. Section
7(2), as you will realise, contains &
provision to the effect that wherever
the detaining authority considers it to
be in the public interest it need not
divulge the grounds of the detention.
It was pointed out when we suggested
that this should be omitted that the
Constitution of India had made it
clear that so far as this particular
matter was concerned the government
had the right not to disclose any facis
to the detenu if they were so minded.
Now, there is some force in that ar-
gument. But I think there is greater
force in the argument that has been
put forward by many of us that there
was no need for this provision being
put in here, because such a provision
being put in the Preventive Detention
Act leads tn many officers withhold-
ing information on the spurious ground
of ‘public interest’ and taking shelter
under the plea that public interest
would be infringed. This has led
in the past many High Courts and
Judges of the Supreme. Court to point
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out -that on very many occasions the
grounds and the particulars wera
withheld from the detenu and that
they could easily have been disclosed
without violating the canons of public
interest. I have grave doubts as to
whether there was any necessity for
this provision being inserted in the
Constitution. but that is a different
matter. After all, every State has the
privilege, the definite privilege to with-
hold any facts which it considers to
be ln the public interest from any one,
and if the Secretary of the State or
a responsible Minister swears on an
affidavit that the grounds cannot be
divulged in public interest no court
of law can go behind it and compel
the Minister to disclose those facts.
That is the inherent power of any
State. Therefore there is no need to
emphasise it in statutes, particularly
in statutes where you have preventive
detention. because it is generally consi-
dered that it would not be in the in-
terest of the detenu or even of the
State to withhold the grounds from
him who after all must have an
opportunity of removing the suspicion
attaching to his name. This idea of
preventive detention is something
which is infectious. It is not realised
by those in authority that often those
who are detained. those who are sent
to detention camps, lose caste with
the vast majority of their fellowmen.

Mr. Chairman: How long will the
hon. Member take? He has already
taken fifteen minutes. If he will
finish in about five minutes we can
go on,

Dr. Krishnaswami: I will require
another ten or fifteen minutes, Sir.

Mr. Chairman: Generally we have
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been allowing fifteen to twen'y minu-
tes so that other people may gzt a
chance. That is the point. If he can.
conclude in another five minutes, we:
can sit for five minutes more.

Hon. Members: No, no.

Mr. Chairman: Very well. He may
continue tomorrow,

MESSAGE FROM THE COUNCIL OF
STATES

Secretary: Sir, I have to re-
port the following message received
from the Secretary of the Council of~
States:

“In accordance with the provi-
sions of rule 125 of the Rules of
Procedure and Conduct of Busi-
ness in the Council of States. I
am directed to inform the House
of the People that the Council of
States at its sitting held on the
1st August, 1952. agresd without
any amendment to the following
Bills, which were passed by the
House of the People at its sittings
held on the 17th, 22rd, 28th and
29th July, 1952, namely:

1. The Indian Ports (Amendment)-
Bill, 1952.

2. The Central Tea Board (Amend-
ment) Bill. 1952

3. The Central Silk Board (Amend-
ment) Bill, 1952.
4. The Notaries Bill, 1952.”

The -House then adjourned till a-
Quarter Past Eight of the Clock on
Saturday, the 2nd August, 1952.





